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In 2009, the world economy was still affected by the swell after
the financial tsunami. To cope with the unprecedented financial
crisis, governments and central banks jointly launched
rescue programs by injecting substantial capital into the
financial market to save endangered financial institutions and
implementing lenient monetary policy to boost the economy.
As a result, the world’s economy managed to step out of the
threat of depression during the year. At the same time, the
economic stimulus program of the Chinese Government has
been effective in bolstering domestic demand. With an 8%
GDP growth in year 2009, China is expected to be among
the first to recover. Given the strong economic ties between
Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland, the economy and the
people’s livelihood of two cities are expected to benefit from
the recovery of their motherland.

During the year, the gaming promotion business of the Group
continued to record a satisfactory profit and the performance
was encouraging. Hotel Kingsway, previously acquired by the
Group, has been renovated and re-launched under the brand
name of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (“Lan Kwai Fong”). The
grand opening ceremony of Lan Kwai Fong was held on 2nd
August 2009. Lan Kwai Fong, the award winner of “5th China
Hotel Starlight Awards 2009 — Best Designed Boutique Hotel
Of China”, is an unique, contemporary and cozy hotel which
features comfortable suites, exciting dining, cool bars and
exclusive gaming rooms. Since Lan Kwai Fong is situated in
the most prosperous business area along the new coastline
of Macau’s commerce and tourism zone, with geographical
advantage and effective promotion, Lan Kwai Fong has
become one of the new tourism and entertainment focuses
in Macau just after its launching. The new casino operated
by SJM-Investimentos Limitada, the biggest gaming and
entertainment corporation in Macau, in Lan Kwai Fong has
also contributed a satisfactory and stable financial return for
the Group.

In view of that, during the year, Hong Kong and Macau
economies were benefited from the economic recovery of
mainland China, especially in the sectors of tourism, retails,
property and securities, the Group had started to expand the
business to Macau property development and investment
in order to further grasp the business opportunities of the
economic development of Macau.
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% Ji #it 3% Chairman’s Statement

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Chen Ming Yin,
Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”), an executive director of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to
purchase the entire issued share capital of Modern Vision
(Asia) Limited and Reform Base Holdings Limited (the
“Targeted Companies”) and outstanding loans in an aggregate
amount of HK$750,810,007 due by the Targeted Companies to
Ms. Chen at an aggregate consideration HK$900 million. The
major assets of the Targeted Companies are their aggregate
75% equity interests in Over Profit International Limited. Over
Profit International Limited indirectly owned 100% beneficial
interest in a lot of land (“Macau Land”) with the area of 4,669
square meters, named Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da
Baia de Praia Grande, located in the Nam van Lakes Zone,
at Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho. The transaction has been
approved in a special general meeting of the Company held
on 3rd September 2009. The Group intended to develop
luxury residential apartments on the Macau Land for sale.
The development costs of the Macau Land are intended to
be financed by proceeds from pre-sale of the apartments
and bank borrowings. The project will be one of the major
development plans of the Group in future.

During the past year, the Group had succeeded in deploying
diversified business strategy and hence to make a satisfactory
growth in financial results, despite the hardships still faced
by the cinematic productions in the local market. In addition
to the expansion of stable income and business operation,
the financial position of the Group had become much
stable after a series of financing activities as well as the
introduction of strategic investors. Our colleagues are all
loyal and dedicated to the Group, and have always been very
progressive in exploring new income sources for the Group’s
long-term earnings. With those competitive edges, the Group
is able to obtain a more privileged strategic position in future
development. The Group shall also continue its prudent
practices in business policies, to better grasp business
opportunities so as to reduce the unnecessary risks in
investment to a minimum. The strife to gain lucrative business
profits is to reciprocate the benevolence of shareholders for
their years of support to the Group.

Heung Wah Keung
Chairman
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the Group’s turnover
increased by 139% to approximately HK$543,429,000 (2008:
HK$227,747,000).

Profit from operations and profit for the year amounted
to approximately HK$251,153,000 and HK$164,395,000
respectively as compared to HK$121,695,000 and
HK$65,590,000 respectively for last year.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31st December 2009 was HK$204,388,000,
representing a 126% improvement over HK$90,604,000 in the
last year.

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2009. The
directors recommended a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share
for the year ended 31st December 2008.

BUSINESS REVIEW

This year, as Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (“Lan Kwai Fong”,
formally known as Hotel Kingsway), a major investment of
the Group had its grand opening in August 2009, it started
to contribute revenue to the Group during the year. Lan Kwai
Fong presents 200 rooms and suites with 112 deluxe rooms,
82 grand suites, 4 exclusive suites and 2 luxuriously appointed
LKF apartments. Casino located in Lan Kwai Fong (the “Casino
LKF”) situates in the first and 18th floor. Located on 18th floor
is the sky casino with red carpet suite features eight VIP rooms
with unique decoration. Lan Kwai Fong also operates dining

restaurants, a flower shop, retail shops and a spa.

Of the total turnover for the year, HK$222,043,000 or 41%
was generated from hotel and gaming service operations,
HK$294,806,000 or 54% was generated from gaming
promotion operations and HK$26,580,000 or 5% was
generated from film distribution operations.
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Hotel and Gaming Service Operations

Hotel and gaming service operations included the hotel
operation in Lan Kwai Fong which was recorded in an indirect
subsidiary of the Group, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau) Limited
(“Hotel LKF”) and services provided to the casino situated in
Lan Kwai Fong which was recorded in an indirect subsidiary of
the Group, Classic Management & Services Company Limited
(“Classic”).

Revenue in hotel and gaming service operations mainly
comprised of hotel room sales of HK$18,611,000, food and
beverage sales of HK$3,972,000 and service income of
HK$197,027,000 and HK$2,433,000 from table gaming and slot
machines respectively. Hotel and gaming service operations
recorded an aggregate segment loss of approximately
HK$76,635,000. For the year ended 31st December 2009, Lan
Kwai Fong had operations for only around 5 months but had
to expense for the whole year's administrative expenses, the
grand opening expenses and pre-operating expenses, it then
attributed a segment loss for the year.

Casino LKF is run by licence holder Sociedade de Jogos
de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”). Classic has entered into gaming
operation service agreements with SJM. Under the
agreements, Classic will shared certain percentage of service
income from SJM based on the gross wins of the table gaming
and slot machines in Casino LKF. As at 31 December 2009,
Casino LKF operated a total of 87 tables, targeting both for
the VIP market and the mass market. It also operated a total of
104 slot machines.

Gaming Promotion Operations

The Group’s investment in Best Mind International Inc.
(“Best Mind”) has continued to share strong profit from
Ocho Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), one of the
leading gaming junkets at one of the VIP gaming rooms at
the Grand Lisboa Casino in Macau. The Group had shared
revenue and segment profit of approximately HK$294,806,000
(2008: HK$203,327,000) and HK$292,710,000 (2008:
HK$201,604,000) from the gaming promotion business.

Film Distribution Operations

Film distribution operations includes production and
distribution of motion pictures and television drama series
and provision of other film related services. The Group had
released only 3 new films in the market in response to the weak
market condition of the entertainment industry in these years.
In year 2009, turnover for film distribution operations amounted
to HK$26,580,000 (2008: HK$24,420,000) and its segment
loss amounted to HK$11,738,000 (2008: HK$19,128,000)
respectively. In response to the weak market condition, the
Group had impaired the goodwill of HK$15,416,000 (2008:
HK$13,646,000) for the cash generating unit of film distribution
business as at 31st December 2009.

7



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

T B ESERFERZ2FA

% P1 g W 2k X 43 Bt Management Discussion and Analysis

THEX
\Eﬁzé:?ihi+*ﬂi+—5¢¢ﬁ§ﬁqvﬁBzBﬁ
TNBRAELHEERNE RERJEZWTE) A
254,518,000 1t ' B & F[F H)%277 330,000 It 1% A1
229% ° WIHEMEBZANFNLEBERERREL
BEBRH - EERANFAEZH32,774,0008 T ME
77,651,000 70 ' WIEEMERBESIR ST AFN
ARBKES ABILIMATE -

RBESRUBER

RZTENF+ZA=ZFT—H AEEZBEENA
3,190,275,000/% Jt mm%b EEFE aw #£247,563,000
B IREBEERBI4(ZEZENF 13) cAEEZ
iﬁﬁ&iﬁi,\\nﬁ%,ﬁﬁi@ﬁ173 188, OOO}ETE(f =T \F -
138,145,000 L) - RZZEZAF+_A=+—H K
EE 2 B EHEE A590,071,0008 T - BIF—BIRTIRIS
& 3%5,906,0005% T « —IB B H 1 R 17 1F % 178,764,000
BT B IR 1T E 8 B 275,000,000 7T ([EHE
A - AR 1T E HIE 360,000,000/ 7T ([EHE K
1) ~ 4 I I 88 17 F #3 & 5%70,000,000% 7t ([E B E &
1)) REh& A EER401,0008 70  IRITIRIBERAARE
EPRMEE61,310,0008 T 2 IR EMEEET FEEE
BEREBFERF2EE B - WANIHT AEE - R1T
BYER THERRETHERINAEELERED
761,223,000/ 7T (ZE & J\ 5 : 991,034,000/ 7T) 2
Etih BFREBIBEER - RITEXEFIRIET
REBFAXRRIETE RERKEBEYHFTEFR
o EHMERRBITREBFNEFETS  LAEH
BRI ERABHBENEARRREY B18EHEES
Z {8 1825,000,0007% 7T © 7E H BRI KX E B E RS Bl
—EABBBITRERSMEFR R22E RIELTE I
/,\EEE/AEZHXEJMB;@t—ﬂﬁéﬁﬂﬁ“‘;%mﬂ P
tméﬁwoooooo,%m RZETNFE+ZA= +—

C—HEARFRMBARBESEE ZRITEERLER

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31st December 2009, administrative
expenses (net of amortisation of leasehold land and
depreciation on property, plant and equipment) amounted to
HK$254,518,000, a 229% increase from HK$77,330,000 as
compared to the last corresponding year. The increase was
mainly attributable to the operations of the hotel and gaming
service operations during the year. Employee benefit expenses
increased from HK$32,774,000 to HK$77,651,000 with respect
to the increase in the number of employees in Lan Kwai Fong
after its grand opening in August 2009.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December 2009, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$3,190,275,000 and a net current assets
of HK$247,563,000,
(2008: 1.3). The Group had cash and cash balances of
approximately HK$173,188,000 (2008: HK$138,145,000).
As at 31st December 2009, the Group had total borrowings

representing a current ratio of 1.4

of HK$590,071,000 comprising a bank mortgage loan of
HK$5,906,000, a secured bank overdraft of HK$178,764,000,
a secured bank term loan of HK$275,000,000 (“Term Loan [”),
a secure bank term loan of HK$60,000,000 (“Term Loan II"),
an unsecured bank term loan of HK$70,000,000 (“Term Loan
[11") and obligation under finance lease of HK$401,000. The
bank mortgage loan is secured by the Group’s investment
properties with carrying value of HK$61,310,000, interest
bearing at 2.5% below the Hong Kong Prime Lending Rate per
annum and repayable by 49 monthly instalments. The bank
overdraft facility, Term Loan | and Term Loan Il are secured
by the Group’s leasehold land, buildings and construction in
progress with an aggregate carrying values of approximately
HK$761,223,000 (2008: HK$991,034,000). The bank overdraft
facility is interest bearing at 1% per annum below the bank’s
best lending rate, repayable on demand and reviewed by the
bank annually. Term Loan | is interest bearing at 2.0% per
annum below the bank’s best lending rate, repayable by 18
equal consecutive quarterly installments of HK$25,000,000
each commencing from the 9th month after the date of the
first loan drawdown. Term Loan Il and Term Loan Il are
interest bearing at 2.2% and 3% per annum respectively over
1-month HIBOR,
installments of HK$10,000,000 each commencing from the first

repayable by 12 equal consecutive monthly

month after the date of drawdown. As at 31st December 2009,

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 5
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Hotel LKF, a subsidiary of the Company had banking facilities
amounting to HK$535,600,000 which were utilised to the extent
of HK$513,764,000. The Group’s gearing remained low during
the year with total debts of HK$590,071,000 against owners’
equity of HK$2,075,122,000. This represents a gearing ratio,
calculated in the basis of the Group’s total borrowings over
owners’ equity of 28%.

As the majority of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Macau
Pataca and United States Dollars, the exposure to fluctuation
in exchange rates was considered to be minimal and no hedge
activity were considered necessary. As at 31st December
2009, the Group had no contingent liability.

On 8th December 2008, the Company announced that it
proposed to subscribe zero coupon convertible notes in
principal amount of HK$60,000,000 to be issued by China
Star Film Group Limited (formerly known as Golife Concepts
Holdings Limited) (“CS Film Group”) in five tranches of
HK$12,000,000 each due on the tenth anniversary of the date
HK$60,000,000
convertible notes were issued by CS Film Group to the

of issue for such tranche (“Subscription”).

Company on 29th January 2009.

At the same date, the Company also announced that
1,064,486,080 offer shares of the Company at a subscription
price of HK$0.05 each on the basis of two offer shares for
every shares held on 23rd January 2009 with bonus issue on
the basis of three bonus shares for every one offer shares
taken up under the open offer of the Company. The estimated
net proceeds of not less than approximately HK$42,000,000
were intended to be used for the Subscription. The offer
shares and the bonus shares were alloted and issued on 26th
February 2009.

On 29th January 2009, the authorised share capital of the
Company increased from HK$100,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each to HK$500,000,000
divided into 10,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each.
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On 26th February 2009, the Board announced that the
Company intended to put forward to the shareholders of
the Company for their approval a proposal involving capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) of the Company
comprising (i) share consolidation that every 20 issued
and unissued shares of HK$0.05 each be consolidated
into 1 consolidated share of HK$1.00 each of the Company
(“Consolidated Shares”);

issued share capital of the Company be reduced through

(ii) capital reduction that the

a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the Company to the
extent of HK$0.99 on each of the issued Consolidated Shares
such that the nominal value of each issued Consolidated
Shares will be reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 and the
credit arising from the reduction of issued share capital of
the Company be credited to the contributed surplus account
of the Company; and (iii) share subdivision that each of the
authorised but unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$1.00 each
be subdivided into 100 new shares of HK$0.01 each. The
Capital Reorganisation was completed on 4th May 2009.

On 11th March 2009,
agreement with China Star Investment Holdings Limited

the Company entered into a loan

(“China Star Investment”) pursuant to which China Star
Investment agreed to grant an unsecured loan facility of up
to HK$200,000,000 to the Company. HK$200,000,000 (the
“Loan Advance”) was drawn on 29th April 2009. Mr. Heung
Wah Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany are the common
executive directors and have beneficial interests in the
Company and China Star Investment as at the date of the
agreement.

On 12th May 2009,
agreement with a placing agent to place on a fully underwritten

the Company entered into a placing

basis an aggregate 800,000,000 new shares of the Company
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.20 per share.
800,000,000 new shares were alloted and issued on 11th June
2009 under the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 5th June 2009. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$158,000,000 were used to finance the hotel operations and
for general working capital of the Group.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 ¥R
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On 16th July 2009, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent to place on a fully underwritten
basis an aggregate 207,900,000 new shares of the Company
to independent investors at a price of HK$0.22 per share.
207,900,000 new shares were alloted and issued on 29th July
2009 under the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 29th June 2009. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$45,238,000 were used for the general working capital of
the Group.

On 23rd July 2009, the Company entered into a subscription
agreement with China Star Investment pursuant to which the
Company has agreed to issue and China Star Investment
has agreed to subscribe for the convertible notes (the “China
Star Investment Convertible Notes”) in the principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 to be issued by the Company. The
subscription price should be satisfied by setting off against the
Loan Advance. The China Star Investment Convertible Notes
were unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate of The Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited and carry
the right to convert into shares of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.20 per share (subject to adjustment)
during the conversion period from the date of issue to the third
anniversary from date of issue. The China Star Investment
Convertible Notes were subscribed by China Star Investment
on 21st September 2009. During the year ended 31st
December 2009, the China Star Investment Convertible Notes
were fully converted into 1,000,000,000 shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.20 per share. China Star
Investment become a substantial shareholder of the Company.

During the year ended 31st December 2009, certain option
holders exercised their option rights to subscribe for an
aggregate of 49,087,000 shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$0.268 per share. The net proceeds
from the exercise of option rights amounted to approximately
HK$13,155,000. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, a
total of 52,790,000 options were exercised at an exercise
price of HK$0.180 per share to convert into 52,790,000 shares
of the Company on 8th January 2010 with net proceeds of
HK$9,502,000.
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Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company entered
into a placing agreement on 4th January 2010 with a placing
agent to place on a fully underwritten basis an aggregate
540,000,000 new shares of the Company to independent
investors at a price of HK$0.14 per share. 540,000,000
new shares were alloted and issued on 11th February 2010
under the specific mandate granted to the directors of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 8th February 2010. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$75,400,000 were intended to be used for the Group’s
investment projects in Macau and general working capital of
the Group.

On 26th April 2010, the directors of the Company proposed,
subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, to make
the proposed bonus issue of warrants (“Warrants”) by the
Company to subscribe for new shares of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.193 per new share (subject
to adjustment) to the qualifying shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on the basis of one Warrant
for every five shares held on the record date as announced by

the Company.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited (“Bestjump”), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany (“Ms. Chen”), an executive director of the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which
Bestjump has agreed to purchase and Ms. Chen has agreed
to sell the entire issued share capital of Modern Vision (Asia)
Limited and Reform Base Holdings Limited (the “Targeted
Companies”) and outstanding loans in an aggregate amount of
HK$750,810,007 due by the Targeted Companies to Ms. Chen
at an aggregate consideration HK$900,000,000 (subject to
adjustment). The major assets of the Targeted Companies are
their aggregate 75% equity interests in Over Profit International
Limited. Over Profit International Limited indirectly owned
100% beneficial interest in a lot of land with the area of 4,669
square meters, named Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da
Baia de Praia Grande, located in the Nam van Lakes Zone, at
Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho, registered with the Macau Land
and Real Estate Registry under no. 23070 (the “Macau Land”).
Details of the transaction were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 17th August 2009. The transaction has been
approved in a special general meeting of the Company held
on 3rd September 2009. The acquisition has not yet completed
up to the reporting date.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 ¥R
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MATERIAL DISPOSALS

Disposal of equipments of China Star Production Services
Limited

On 4th December 2008, the Company announced that China
Star Production Services Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a memorandum of agreement
with Hong Kong Movie City Company Limited to dispose a
number of system/unit used for post production process to the
final cut of films for a total consideration of HK$11,200,000.
This disposal constituted a discloseable transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules. These assets were classified
as assets held for sale as at 31st December 2008 and the
disposal was then completed on 30th April 2009.

Disposal of Bingo Chance Limited

On 8th June 2009, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose 100% equity interest in Bingo Chance
Limited at a consideration of HK$22,960,000. The major assets
in Bingo Chance Limited were its investment in 700,000,000
shares in Daido Group Limited which were classified as
available-for-sale financial assets by the Group. The Group
recorded a loss on disposal of approximately HK$29,602,000.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31st December 2009, the Group employed 526 staffs
(2008: 93 staffs). The directors believe that the quality of its
employees is the single most important factor in sustaining the
Group’s reputation and improving its profitability. The staffs are
remunerated based on their work performance, professional
experience and prevailing industry practices. Apart from basic
salaries, pension fund, medical schemes, housing allowance
and discretionary bonuses, share options are awarded to
certain staffs according to the assessment of individual
performance.

13
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PROSPECT

During the year, the gaming promotion business continues
its dominant contribution and provides stable cash income to
the Group. The Group believes that the Macau gaming and
entertainment business would growth internationally when its
infrastructural development becomes more matured. One of
our major investments, Lan Kwai Fong had its grand opening
on 2nd August 2009 which has attracted wide attention of
the hotel and casino market. It has successfully established
the boutique hotel image which was enhanced and proven
by being awarded as winner of “5th China Hotel Starlight
Awards 2009 — Best Designed Boutique Hotel of China”. The
performance of Lan Kwai Fong is encouraging and shows
trend of improvement. The Group believes that Lan Kwai Fong
can continue to provide stable revenue and cash income
to the Group. The performance of our businesses in Macau
encouraged and strengthened the Group’s confidence in the
prospect and development in Macau. On 29th April 2009, the
Group has entered into a sale and purchase agreement to
purchase the Macau Land. It is intended that luxury residential
apartments be developed on the Macau Land for sale. The
development costs of the Macau Land are intended to be
financed by proceeds from pre-sale of the apartments and
bank borrowings.

In the past few years, the Group had succeeded in deploying
diversified business strategy and hence improved both the
earning ability and financial position of the Group. Looking
ahead, the Group will continue to streamline its business
operations which can enables the Group to operate in a
much cost effective manner and concentrate its resources on
investments opportunity with good potential of revenue growth
and a positive impact on the Group’s return in the long run.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Mr. HEUNG Wah Keung, aged 61, is the Chairman of the
Company. He is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany,
Vice Chairman of the Company. He has over 20 years of
experience in the entertainment and multimedia industries. He
was the founder of Win’s Entertainment Limited (“Win’s”) and
One Hundred Years of Film Company Limited (“One Hundred
Years”), which produces films recommended by audiences
and distributors around the world. He is also the vice-chairman
of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion Picture
Industry Association Limited. Mr. Heung was appointed as an
executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. CHEN Ming Yin, Tiffany, aged 53, is the Vice Chairman
of the Company. She is the wife of Mr. Heung Wah Keung
and has over 15 years of experience in the entertainment and
multimedia industries. Ms. Chen has produced a number of
blockbuster films for Win’'s and One Hundred Years. In 2003,
she was selected as one of 2003 Women in Entertainment —
International Power by The Hollywood Reporter. Ms. Chen was
appointed as an executive director of the Company in 1996.

Ms. LI Yuk Sheung, aged 42, is an executive director of
the Company. She has more than 10 years experience of
management in the entertainment and multimedia industries.
She is responsible for the overall operations, and is familiar
with the Group’s system. Ms. Li was appointed as an executive
director in 2001.

Mr. HUNG Cho Sing, aged 69, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He has over 30 years
of experience in the film distribution industry and founded
Delon International Film Corporation in 1970. He has been the
chairman of Hong Kong Kowloon and New Territories Motion
Picture Industry Association Limited since 1991 and was the
chairman of Hong Kong Film Awards Association from 1992 to
1995. Mr. Hung was appointed as a non-executive director in
1996.
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Mr. HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 59, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. He is the sole proprietor
of Paul W. C. Ho & Company, Certified Public Accountants
(Practising), and is an associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, United Kingdom and
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ho was appointed as a non-executive
director in 1996.

Mr. LEUNG Hok Man, aged 47, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr Leung read law at the
University of East London before completing the Legal Practice
Course at the College of Law, York. After having admitted as
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in 1999, he has
moved into the field of intellectual property. He is currently
an in-house solicitor at an international patent and trademark
agency firm. He has substantial experience in intellectual
property practice. Mr. Leung was appointed as an independent
non-executive director in 2007.

PROFILES OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. NG Cheuk Fai, aged 52, is the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Ng is well versed in the Macau gaming market
and is responsible for providing updated market information as
to the trend, the move as well as the performance of various
market practitioners in Macau. Mr. Ng joined the Group in
2008.

Ms. LI Yee Mei, aged 47, is the Talent and PR Controller of the
Group, has 30 years of experience in entertainment business
and culture industry. Ms. Li joined the Group in 1996.

Ms. TSANG Anna, aged 45,
Administration Department of the Group. She has 15 years

is the Manager-Legal

of experience in the TV and film industry and with extensive
knowledge and expertise in all legal aspects relating to
production, distribution and copyright enforcement. Ms. Tsang
joined the Group in 1999.
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Mr. WAI Kai Fai, aged 47, has served as the Group’s Film
Consultant since 2000. He has produced and directed films
and television drama series for more than 20 years, many of
which earned awards and were screened at international film
festivals. Mr. Wai's “Look Back with Anger” and “The Greed of
Man” were hugely popular television drama series attracting
over 100 million viewers when they were on air. His recent
feature films “Needing You”, “Love On A Diet”, “Fat Choi
Spirit”, “My Left Eye Sees Ghosts”, “Love For All Seasons”,
“Running On Karma”, “Fantasia”, “The Shopaholics” and “Mad
Detective” have earned a total of over HK$200 million dollars.

Ms. WONG Shuk Han, Dorothy, aged 44, is the Financial
Controller, Qualified Accountant and Company Secretary
of the Company. She graduated from the City Polytechnic
University with a bachelor degree in Accountancy in 1990.
She is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant. Prior to her employment with the Group, she
worked with an international accounting firm for over 10 years.
Ms. Wong is primarily responsible for the supervision of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting procedures and
internal control system. She joined the Group in 2001.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
responsible for ensuring high standards of corporate
governance are maintained and for accounting to
shareholders. The Company has applied the principles and
complied with all the applicable code provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) for the year ended 31st December 2009, except for the
following deviation:

. Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-

executive directors should be appointed for a specific
all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed

term and subject to re-election. However,
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of
the Company’'s Bye-laws. The Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those in the Code.

The Board will periodically review and improve the corporate
governance practices and standards of the Company with
a view to continuously improve the Company’s corporate
governance practices by assessing their effectiveness with
evolving standards to meet changing circumstances and
needs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for securities
transactions by directors of the Company. All the members of
the Board have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31st December 2009. The Model Code also applies to other
specified senior management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board represents shareholders of the Company in
managing the Company’s affairs. Members of the Board
are expected to maximize the investment return and the
Company’s long-term value.

The Board comprises three executive directors and three
independent non-executive directors. There is no relationship
between members of the Board except that Mr. Heung Wah
is the husband of Ms. Chen Ming
Yin, Tiffany, the Vice Chairman of the Company. The names,

Keung, the Chairman,
biographical details of the directors are set out in the “Profiles
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 15 to 17 to
the annual report. In addition, one of the independent non-
executive directors possesses appropriate professional

accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.

The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) so that there is an independent element on the
Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment,
and that non-executive directors should be of sufficient caliber
and number for their views to carry weight.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent. The independent non-
executive directors are explicitly identified in all corporate
communications.

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for
guiding and monitoring the Company in discharging its duties,
certain responsibilities are delegated to various standing
committees of the Board including Finance Committee,
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee, and the Vice Chairman and the senior

management of the Company.
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CBEERARRDS  BhBE 4

matters relating to conflict of interest for a substantial
shareholder or a director of the Company;

formulation of the Company’s policies relating to the
overall strategic direction and strategic plans, key
business and financial objectives, dividend policy or
entering into contracts involving significant capital
acquisition or expenditure;

financial controls, compliance and risk management
for the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, the Company’s financial
statements, published reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosure required under
the Listing Rules or other statutory requirements;

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of
new securities;

major appointments or removal to the Board, the
Vice Chairman, the Company’s chief financial officer,
company secretary and external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or membership of
any committee of the Board and the authority delegated
to the Vice Chairman and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the Vice Chairman
and the senior management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes
of the Corporate Governance Practice Manual of
the Company, the Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions entered into by the directors and other
specified senior management of the Group, group
legal policy (if any) and group system control and risk
management policy.
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During the year, twenty-one full board meetings (of which four
were regular board meetings) were held and the individual
attendance of each director is set out below:

HEESEERRHY &

Attendance rate

D=
Heung Wah Keung

R B8R 5
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany

FEIE
Li Yuk Sheung

HEE
Hung Cho Sing

&%
Ho Wai Chi, Paul

REX
Leung Hok Man
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EETAEEENEREREE R LR RE
RMBAGTERREAM B REER -

ARREERBEREARAPBHRRZEML  LMA
BE ARREELETHRUBR REBPRERRER
BAMEFERTHES
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21 100%
21 100%
21 100%
21 100%
21 100%
21 100%

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements of the Group which give a
true and fair view, and are prepared in accordance with the
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards in force, and are published in a timely manner. The
directors of the Company are also responsible for selecting
and applying on a consistent basis suitable accounting
policies and ensuring timely adoption of Hong Kong
Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the financial statements of the Company and
report that the Company has announced its annual and interim
results in a timely manner after the end of the relevant period,
as laid down in the Listing Rules.

A statement by the auditors of the Company about their

reporting responsibilities is set out in the “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 39 and 40 to the annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN

The roles of Chairman and Vice Chairman are separate and
not performed by the same individual to ensure that there is a
clear division of responsibilities at the board level to entail a
balance of power and authority.

The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board, for
ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and for ensuring
communication of the views of the Board to the public. In
performing this role, the Chairman’s responsibilities include
chairing meetings of the Board; ensuring the board meetings
receive accurate, complete, timely and clear information
concerning affairs of the Company; ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive directors;
formulating for discussion and decision, questions which
have been moved for the consideration of the Board; ensuring
that all directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings; acting as liaison between the Board and
management; in consultation with the Vice Chairman and the
company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking
into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed by
the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at least
annually hold meetings with non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) without the presence of

the executive directors.

The Vice Chairman is primarily responsible for recommending
policy and strategic directions for Board approval;
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the
Board; and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and should
be subject to re-election. The independent non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for specific terms
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
least once every three years in accordance with the provision
of the Company’s Bye-laws. As such, the Company considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to serve the purpose
of this code provision. Each of the non-executive directors has
remunerated at HK$120,000 per year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises two independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and
Mr. Leung Hok Man, and an executive director, namely Ms.
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany. Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration
Committee is principally responsible for formulating and
making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structuring for all remuneration of the directors of the
Company and the senior management of the Group. The terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
the website of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year or as requested by the director responsible for human
resources function.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to
review the remuneration packages of the staff of the Group. All
the committee members attended the meeting.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director,
namely Mr. Heung Wah Keung, and two independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing and Mr.
Leung Hok Man. Mr. Heung Wah Keung is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee shall make available to the public on
request.

The main function of the Nomination Committee is, having
regard to the independence and quality of nominees, to
make recommendations to the Board as to ensure that all
nominations are fair and transparent.

23



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

T B ESERFERA2FA

1 3 4 76 #t W Corporate Governance Report

ZEGIRENIBEEAREANERAEEARREEE
EWERZ ERRMLAEASAREZEGEEZER -
TEAEMEBYT  BEAERERKKRIICHER
NEERAZBCEEZLETAMGR - TRBEAN
BRABEAMB T MAEXEHREAREZESS
FROMNEBE WEREERSHEILRGEREAR M
FIERBDHEZLENERRFRERA - UHFm &
T HEAETEARNIZESBRETRERE A
RAEERS - TEACNSETNENEEESH L
BETMNERBRT YAREFEREMARNEZLR
FHEZRS - REZEENERACLHRELEZEEMARL
EASMNER MR -HERBRET RRZBEEAZ
BITRER EEXERBEEZIURRARRSER -

ARARZARMBAMBECEERFRE BUESAS
PE-FERRBFAGSLBRRET R -REEEH
BRREEBE-

BEREEG
EREEERERRE-UBUFATES AHEEE
EARESEEMREXALE -AREEEREREZER
IR -BRZEEZEARLKENA LTRAES21
R BX BERZEG BEAEHN A AR ML

24

The chair, in consultation with the person responsible for
human resources and the secretary of the Nomination
Committee, should be primarily responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each Nomination Committee
meeting. The chair, with the assistance of the secretary, shall
ensure that all members shall receive sufficient information in a
timely manner to enable effective discussion at the Nomination
Committee meeting. The chair shall, with the assistance of the
person responsible for human resources, brief all members
on issues arising at each Nomination Committee meeting.
The secretary shall circulate the draft and final versions of the
minutes of meetings and reports of the Nomination Committee
to all members for comments and records within a reasonable
time after each meeting, subject to any legal or regulatory
restrictions restricting such circulation or the making of such
reports. The chair shall report in the forthcoming regular
board meeting any key decisions made and shall table before
the Board an index of meetings and issues discussed. The
secretary of the Nomination Committee shall record minutes
of all duly constituted meetings of the Nomination Committee.
In the selection process, the Nomination Committee shall
make reference to criteria including experience in the industry,
professional and education background and commitment in
respect of available time.

The re-election procedure set in the Company’s Bye-laws
provides that every director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at the annual general meeting at least once every
three years. A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Hung Cho Sing, Mr. Ho Wai
Chi, Paul and Mr. Leung Hok Man. Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The composition
and members of the Audit Committee complies with the
requirements under Rule 3.21 to the Listing Rules. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are available on the website
of the Company.
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The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board
to oversee the financial reporting system, risk management
and internal control procedures and the internal and external
audit functions. The Audit Committee annually assesses
the appointment of the external auditor, taking into account
the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the audit
service provided, the audit firm’s quality control procedures,
relationships between the external auditors and the Company,

and the independence of the external auditors.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each member is set out below:

HESHERH &

Attendance rate

&

Ho Wai Chi, Paul
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Hung Cho Sing

REX
Leung Hok Man
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2 100%
2 100%
2 100%

The Audit Committee has reviewed with senior management
and the Company’s external auditor their respective audit
findings, the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company, legal and regularly compliance, the internal controls,
risk management and financial reporting matters. During the
year, the Audit Committee has selected and recommended to
the Board for appointment of a professional firm to conduct an
annual review on the Company’s internal control system. The
Board agreed with the recommendation of the Audit Committee
and passed the resolution to appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Consultants Limited to conduct an annual review on the
Company'’s internal control system. To monitor the integrity of
the financial statements of the Company, the Audit Committee
has reviewed the 2009 interim report and 2009 annual report
before their submission to the Board.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Company engaged Messrs. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng to perform audit related services only. Audit fees
of approximately HK$605,000 was incurred for the year.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s internal
control system and to ensure that a sound and effective
internal control system is maintained. The Board is responsible
for approving and reviewing internal control policy while
the responsibility of day-to-day management of operational
risks and implementation of mitigation measures lies with the
management. As the internal control system is designed to
manage the Group’s risks within an acceptable risk profile,
rather than to eliminate the risk of failure, and to achieve
the business objectives of the Group, it can only provide
reasonable assurance but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement of management and financial information
and records or against financial losses or fraud.

Key control procedures of the Group’s internal control system
are as follows:

o Segregation of duties and functions of the respective
operational departments of the Group

o Monitoring the strategic plan and performance

o Designing an effective accounting and information
system

. Controlling price-sensitive information

The Board has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group and this process includes updating the internal control
manual when there are changes to business environment or
regulatory guidelines.

The Board has conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of its internal control system covering all material
controls,

including financial, operational and compliance

as well as risk management. Besides the Group has also
engaged HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Consultants Limited (the
“Consultant”) to conduct review and make recommendations
for the improvement and strengthening of the internal control
system.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 ¥R



1 % B 1 #t % Corporate Governance Report

BRZBRAD2ZEEQAMASRM 2 [AAREER
HME.EE BERREIMBA 2 RREST - FFHERTRE
g 28 ARNKEAREEES IxW*W% K fE#
ZZD‘%IEEEEW*BE*T TEHBRERRERRIKRR
EFHHEENERS Hﬁ—ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁé/@\m:’

REERZFG BRZEeREFZERA/TEEA
ERNESIEROVOFISEZE  BFUEEH
AEEARNETERRE ZEZHS  BHE-—FHER
HREZIRHIE -

ERRzBERREERREZ

RIETTERE  ARABNEBLRABMRE
REERFFEYSE -

RARARNEDREBFASHERAEZERREBNE
WoADNRNBNEEFR  FHRERFTEBRREM
EWFRORITER o KRNAF IR I A vhwww.chinastar.
I 7 R &
R EAMER 2 F

com.hkswww.irasia.com/listco/nk/chinastar
WU TIBEARARAREHER &8
BEH -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 3R

CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
o E & "R o F

The review by the Consultant is conducted with reference
to the principles outlined in Internal Control and Risk
Management — A Basic Framework issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The assessment
covers the major internal controls and measures, including
financial, operational and compliance as well as risk
management. Any material non-compliance or failures in
internal controls maintained by the Group’s management and
relevant recommendations for improvements are reported to

the Audit Committee.

Based on the assessments made by the Consultant, the Audit
Committee and the Board considered that the key areas of the
Group’s internal control system are reasonably implemented
with room for improvement. The Group shall use its best
endeavour to implement the recommendations made by the
Consultant in order to further improve the internal control
system.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

To enhance transparency, the Company endeavours to
maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and investors
through a variety of communication channels.

The annual general meeting is used as an opportunity to
communicate with all shareholders. The Company is also
committed to providing clear and full performance information
in its annual report, interim report and press releases. The
Company also maintains a website at www.chinastar.com.hk or
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chinastar, where detailed information
of the Company'’s business developments, operations, financial

and other information are posted.
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The directors are pleased to submit their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and the
Group for the year ended 31st December 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the Group is principally engaged in film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, investing
in operations which receive profit streams from the gaming

promotion business and property and hotel investment.

The activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates
are set out in notes 51 and 52 to the financial statements
respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December
2009 are set out in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 41
and 42 respectively.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2009.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31st December
2009 is set out on page 176.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
interests in leasehold land and investment
18 and 19 to

and equipment,
properties of the Group are set out in notes 17 »
the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of
the Company are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements during the year in the reserves of the Group are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 46. Movements during the year in the reserves of the
Company are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distribution reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$253,252,000 as at 31st December 2009
(2008: HK$21,986,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December 2009, turnover attributable
to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for
approximately 94% of the Group’s turnover and turnover
attributable to the Group’s largest customer accounted for
approximately 54% of the Group’s turnover.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, purchases
attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for approximately 14% of the Group’s purchases
and purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 5% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owned more than 5%
of the Company'’s issued share capital) had any interests in the
Group'’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Heung Wah Keung
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
Ms. Li Yuk Sheung

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Hung Cho Sing
Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul
Mr. Leung Hok Man

Under Bye-law 99(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr Hung Cho
Sing shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election.

The term of office for each independent non-executive director
is the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s Bye-laws.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties
regarded as “Related Parties” under applicable accounting
principles. These mainly relate to transactions entered into by
the Group in the ordinary course of business, negotiated on
normal commercial terms and on an arm’s length basis. Details

are set out in note 50 to the financial statements.

The transaction also constitutes “Connected Transaction”
under the Listing Rules, as identified below.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Ms Chen, an executive director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company, in respect of
the acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of the entire equity interest
of Modern Vision (Asia) Limited and Reform Base Holdings
Limited (collectively referred as the “Target Companies”) and
outstanding loans in an aggregate amount of HK$750,810,007
due by the Targeted Companies to Ms. Chen with a total
consideration of HK$900 million (subject to adjustment). The
major assets of the Target Companies are their aggregate 75%
equity interests in Over Profit International Limited. Over Profit
International Limited indirectly owned 100% beneficial interest
in a lot of land, namely Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da
Baia de Paria Grande, located in Nam van Lakes Zone, at
Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho. The Acquisition is regarded as a
connected transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Acquisition are set out in the Company’s
circular dated 17th August 2009.

The independent non-executive directors confirm that
the terms of the agreement of the Acquisition are fair and
reasonable and the Acquisition is in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Acquisition
was approved by independent shareholders on 3rd September
2009 but the Acquisition has not been completed up to the
reporting date.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

The Acquisition as set out in Connected Transaction constitutes
a contract of significance of Ms. Chen, the executive director
and substantial shareholder of the Company as Ms. Chen is
vendor in the Acquisition.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31st December 2009, the interests of the directors and
their associates in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register (“Register of Interests”) maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)

were as follows:

1. KAREERER 1. Interests in ordinary shares of the Company
RS
ERal=g )
FERGHE Approximate
EEpE 514 Number of percentage of
Name of director Capacity shares held interests held
DE=:Pis REEEZER 137,025* 0.00
(TmsEED
Mr. Heung Wah Keung Interest of controlled
(“Mr. Heung”) corporation
Rzt RELFEZ#E 137,025 0.00
Ms. Chen Interest of controlled

bR RTR -

corporation

* It % B 17 faGlenstone Investments Limited2 & A 2
%2 EBARNAIEE - Glenstone Investments Limitedm
B8 2+ 2 &% A 2 Porterstone Limited } [A] 55 4 5 B 3%

H1EH60% K40 % HEZS ©
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All interests stated above represent long positions.

These shares are held by Dorest Company Limited (a company
wholly-owned by Glenstone Investments Limited which is in
turn controlled as to 60% by Porterstone Limited (a company
wholly-owned by Ms. Chen) and as to 40% by Mr. Heung).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company
(a) Share options

As at 31st December 2009, the directors of
the Company had interests in share options to

MRl subscribe for shares in the Company granted as
follows:
HRTEZBRES R EERGHE
Number of underlying shares comprised in the outstanding share options
H-22h%-5-8 H-BENERR ) H-B2RERY HoBRAETZAZT-R
As at 01012009 Adjustment during 2009 (Nots d) Granted during 2009 As at 31122009
it &4
fifa LR fifa R FAtHE
SRAEE BiER BEER BRER fERR BiER B5ER BRER fERR Approximate
153 {T68  Exercise price Direct Deemed Direct Deemed Direct Deemed Diet  Deemed 88 percentage of
Name of director  Exercisable period per share interest interest interest interest interest interest interest interest Total  interest held
(k) (W)
(Note c) (Note )
n
HKS
ik 28032000 27.03.2010 64228 50,054 50,054 (38,006) (38,006) - - 12048 12048 24,09
Mr.Heung  0206.2000- 01.06.2010 3112 2,663 2,663 (17.208) (17.28) - - 5,45 5,45 10910
16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 65.68 1202 12021 (9.128) (9.129) - - 28% 28% 5,786
17.07.2003- 16.07.2013 2160 24806 24,806 (18.83) (18835) - - 531 531 11942
109,544 10954 (83,177) (83177) - - 2,367 2,367 5734 000
(i) (i) (i) (ki)
(Note &) (Note &) (Note &) (Note &)
[ 28032000 27.03.2010 64226 50,054 50,084 (38,006) (38,006) - - 12048 12048 24,0%
Ms. Chen 02.06.2000- 01.06.2010 3126 2663 2663 (17.208) (17.208) - - 5,45 5,45 10910
16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 65.68 120 12021 (9,128) (9.129) - - 289 2893 5,786
17.07.2003- 16.07.2013 260 24,806 24,806 (18.83) (18.835) - - 591 531 11942
109,544 10954 (83,177) (83177) - - 2367 2,367 52734 000
(K (i) (Hiy) (i)
(Note b) (Note b) (Note b) (Note b)
FIRLT  16072002- 1507012 65.68 120457 - (91.464) - - - 28,993 - 28993
Ms LYk 1707.2003- 16.07.2013 260 248,068 - (188.359) - - - 59,709 - 5,709
Sheung 17.07.200- 16.07.2010 0.268 - - - - 10395000 - 1039000 - 10395000
366,525 - (279.623) - 10395000 - 10483702 - 10483702 100

Lt AFE
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All interests stated above represent long positions.
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(b) ARAKTETZAEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

2. Rights to acquire shares in the Company (Continued)

(a) Share options (Continued)

Notes:

a. These share options are held by Ms. Chen, the
spouse of Mr. Heung. Mr. Heung is therefore
deemed to be interested in these share options.

b. These share options are held by Mr. Heung.
Ms. Chen is therefore deemed to be interested
in these share options.

c. The exercisable period commenced on the
date of grant of the relevant share options.

d. The exercise prices and numbers of options

which remained outstanding during the year
(except those granted during the year) have
been adjusted due to completion of open offer
with bonus issue and capital reorganisation
during the year.

(b) Convertible notes to be issued by the Company

TRBRRBESRZ

HEROGHE iR

Number of BALAE

underlying shares Approximate

EEHSE comprised in the percentage of

Name of Director convertible notes interests held

R 2z + 700,000,000 30.48
Ms. Chen

A5 & 700,000,000* 30.48
Mr. Heung

LR ERIFR -

: WERBRAERETHA Bt
% A R B R L B4R AR 15 o
% -
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All the interests stated above represent long
positions.

* These underlying shares are held by Ms. Chen.
Mr. Heung is therefore deemed to be interested

in these underlying shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Other than as set out above, as at 31st December 2009, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the Register of Interests or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company or the
spouse or children under 18 years of age of such director, to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes, details
of movements in the share options to subscribe for shares of
HK$0.01 each in the Company granted under the share option
schemes and the fair value of the share options are set out in
note 49 to the financial statements.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st December 2009, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO showed that, other than the interests disclosed above
in respect of certain directors, the following shareholders had
an interest of 5% or more in the issued share capital of the

Company:
R LAY
FrERAEA Approximate
&% L) Number of percentage of
Name Capacity shares held interests held
mEERERRLAF REEE R 680,000,000* 29.61
China Star Investment Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled
corporation
Riche (BVI) Limited LBz ES 630,000,000* 29.61
Interest of controlled
corporation
Simple View Investment Limited ERBEA 680,000,000 29.61

Beneficial owner
FPRERERTE -
It % 15 & e Simple View Investment Limited#% 7% ©
BEXHBEEEN RZBEAF+-_A=+—H &

ARG A T 5 AR T BT R A%
LA b7 AR -

R AKE R E

AEEZRARA G EF BN B wRME6 -

BE-LERERARAFZL®

; i
Stk
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All interests stated above represent long positions.

*

These shares are held by Simple View Investment Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified of any other interests or short positions representing
5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital as at 31st
December 2009.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement benefits schemes of the Group are
set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31st December 2009.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme is set out in note 49 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 18 to 27 to the
annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed amount of public float
during the year and up to the date of this report as required
under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the significant subsequent events are set out in note
53 to the financial statements.
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112"( g( Eﬂi AUDITORS
AABNBERERCHEESAMEBAEZ  BENE  The financial statements of the Company have been audited

BRAVEREBEERE LEF HEEATERIEEBE by Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng who retire and, being

BETARDNTZEN - RAFBRENEEITZI’REE  eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment as auditors of

FREIRBEREZR BERFGSHMELRAALRLT the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A

ZIZEAD resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng as auditors of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

AEEGW On behalf of the Board
FE Heung Wah Keung

FEE: Chairman

B ZT-TFMA=+H Hong Kong, 26th April 2010
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Hodgson Impey Cheng

31/F Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

11 Pedder Street
Central

Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Star Entertainment Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 41 to 175 which comprise the consolidated
and company statement of financial position as at 31st
December 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of
the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31st December 2009 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Chartered Accountants
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 26th April 2010
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—EZhE —ETN\F
2009 2008
ik FTER FAET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

BER Turnover 7 543,429 227,747
B E A Cost of sales (34,556) (19,471)
EFH Gross profit 508,873 208,276
H s Other revenue 8 10,104 7,920
H 1A Other income 9 55,088 43,987
THFRX Administrative expenses (300,355) (80,141)
miGHEERETHRE Marketing and distribution expenses (9,514) (671)
AR 27 2 SRIBR 2 Share-based payment expenses (8,039) (7,463)
DEABFEEE 2SR Gain/(loss) arising on change in fair value

BENATEBEZD of financial assets classified

EEzWE/(BE) as held for trading 15,622 (14,877)
BREMENTEEEH Gain/(loss) arising on change in fair

Efz Wz (EE) value of investment properties 19 19,652 (11,930)
EHBEZEER Impairment loss recognised in respect

ARS8 of goodwill 21 (40,278) (13,646)
EHREXRE 2R Impairment loss recognised in respect

HEEE of film rights 27 - (9,760)
£ ) Profit from operations 251,153 121,695
A& KA Finance costs 10 (22,272) (31,522)
FEALE S AR EE Share of losses of associates (14) (3,303)
ERRERIRREEAS Loss arising on change in fair value in

2R EE 2 AT EE respect of conversion options embedded

SEELEZER in convertible notes receivable (31,565) -
TERBARZEBRE Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 46 (30,059) (6,170)
WAL BN E S Loss on deemed disposal of interests

Z B8 in associates - (17,551)
Wk 15 A1 g 7 Profit before taxation 11 167,243 63,149
FE (i) HEe Taxation (charge)/credit 12 (2,848) 2,441
FE R Profit for the year 164,395 65,590
AT AL FELS - Attributable to:
KABIHER A Owners of the Company 204,388 90,604
FEIERE R Non-controlling interests (39,993) (25,014)

164,395 65,590

BREF Earnings per share

N Basic 14 HK$0.22% 7T HK$0.145% 7T

B Diluted 14 HK$0.207% T HK$0.147% 7T

BEM < MY SE AR S B MR 2 — &0 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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BE-ZEZANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

F R

Htp 2 EWA

HEMB AR

oy NI S

HEBIEBELZ
EHER

EEBE AR 2B E2E
WA
ARHEZEREEL
RFEEHE

FEAMZEEA

FE2HBALE

ATALTREZEBALRE

ZAUNETEZ 2SN
FEiR i &

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Disposal of subsidiaries

Winding up of subsidiaries
Exchange differences arising on translation

of foreign operations

Share of other comprehensive income of

associates

Fair value adjustment on available for sale

financial assets

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

BEM 2 MY EER AR UL F R B wR 2 — 80 °
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The accompanying
financial statements.

—z2hs JEEELIC
2009 2008
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$' 000
164,395 65,590
- (11,141)

- (476)
39 (146)

- 10,982
9,800 (32,235)
9,839 (33,016)
174,234 32,574
214,227 58,899
(39,993) (26,325)
174,234 32,574

notes form an integral part of these
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E S H B R

N

4% A BB IR 3 % Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZBENF+-A=1—

H At 31st December 2009

—EENE —ETNF
2009 2008
ik FERT FEL
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - R REE Property, plant and equipment 17 773,254 494,983
HE LR Interests in leasehold land 18 484,333 502,524
BEME Investment properties 19 61,310 49,930
S Goodwill 21 8,975 24,391
mEE Intangible assets 22 989,205 989,205
AHEEZEREE Available for sale financial assets 23 - 16,800
FEY AT IR AR E iR Convertible notes receivable 24 20,015 -
NN E Interests in associates 25 - -
2,337,092 2,077,833
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 26 1,091 399
B RE Film rights 27 22,914 29,753
RUEREF Films in progress 28 19,238 18,379
Z 5 EWER K Trade receivables 29 105,428 68,770
B BANFUEREMEMRFIE  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 30 396,968 61,077
JEWR AT MREBRANE 2 Conversion options embedded in
A% HA convertible notes receivable 24 10,908 -
BIEEERE Held for trading investments 31 97,641 25,713
BT RVEBREZER Loan to a minority shareholder 32 - 183,750
JE W Btk & R B RR Amounts due from associates 33 16,435 -
TAEHIA Prepaid tax 1,100 632
e MIRITH Cash and bank balances 173,188 138,145
844,911 526,618
DEABELHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 35 8,272 716
853,183 527,334
BmEE Total assets 3,190,275 2,605,167
BAR#EE Capital and reserves
N Share capital 36 22,965 26,612
fE Reserves 2,052,157 1,392,099
ARRER ARG ERS Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,075,122 1,418,711
FEERE R Non-controlling interests 244,271 284,264
R Total equity 2,319,393 1,702,975

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f
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R-ZTAEFE+=-H=+—H8 At 31st December 2009
—EEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
HieE FHET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EREBEE Non-current liabilities
RITIEE——FRIH Bank borrowings — due after one year 38 178,275 280,906
BEHERBE Obligation under finance lease 39 305 -
AR E R Convertible notes 40 - 138,390
BLERIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 41 86,682 88,317
265,262 507,613
REBaE Current liabilities
RITHEX Bank overdraft 178,764 174,826
WITBEE——FAHH Bank borrowings — due within one year 38 232,631 102,561
MEREFE Obligation under finance lease 39 96 -
B S EMER Trade payables 42 21,426 7,083
BEWERIES - EFTEE R Deposits received, accruals and other
Hib e 3008 payables 43 132,201 69,271
FET D SR R RRIE Amounts due to minority shareholders 44 40,502 40,502
1718 Tax payable - 336
605,620 394,579
EEHRE Total liabilities 870,882 902,192
BREREEARE Total equity and liabilities 3,190,275 2,605,167
REBEETE Net current assets 247,563 132,755
HEERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,584,655 2,210,588
R-E—EFENA -+ NEHESS & RITET R Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors

CIE-3:4
Heung Wah Keung
EF

Director

BEF 2 MY EERE AU F M IR 2 — &0 °
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on 26th April 2010

PR BA 3%
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EBEF

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.
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B % Ik Pt # Statement of Financial Position

RZEBEENAF+-A=+—H At 31st December 2009

—EThE —ETN\F
2009 2008
k=3 FExT FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
INGEPNGIEE Interests in subsidiaries 20 2,048,957 1,582,452
W AT IR AR ZE 4R Convertible notes receivable 24 20,015 -
2,068,972 1,682,452
REBEE Current assets
A NN Amounts due from subsidiaries 20 105,075 87,041
EWABRREEANSZ Conversion options embedded in
ik B convertible notes receivable 24 10,908 -
e BAFEREA Deposits, prepayments and other
i W R receivables 30 468 826
Re MIRITEGH Cash and bank balances 94,342 115,579
210,793 203,446
BEE Total assets 2,279,765 1,785,898
BRAEARFE Capital and reserves
A A Share capital 36 22,965 26,612
B Reserves 37 2,104,868 1,424 217
KARERA Equity attributable to owners
iR of the Company 2,127,833 1,450,829
*RBEE Non-current liabilities
FE BB~ R A Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 133,061 172,698
BELEFHIBAEE Deferred tax liabilities - 4,878
Al R E & Convertible notes 40 - 138,390
133,061 315,966
RBAE Current liabilities
EWEZE - EBETEB & Deposits received, accruals and other
H A pEA K08 payables 43 18,871 18,997
AR EPNGIE @ Amounts due to subsidiaries 20 - 106
18,871 19,103
EEAHE Total liabilities 151,932 335,069
REREEBHEE Total equity and liabilities 2,279,765 1,785,898
RBEEFE Net current assets 191,922 184,343
BEERRBAMR Total assets less current liabilities 2,260,894 1,766,795

RIBE-ZFNA -+ AEmEFSIAERKETH

LE-3

Heung Wah Keung

Director

BEF < MY ERE AL S B I|MR 2 — &0 ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

BREIE
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany
EF

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 26th April 2010

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these
financial statements.
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%% 5 BE i 32 B) & Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BE-ZEZANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009
HRE%S TER g SREE i
BE RBEE  4AB%  ENRE  KRRE ZRGBE RERE  EMER  EMBE  WMEE  RaRd M FEREER it
Financial
Share-based ~ Convertible  Properties assets Capital Non-
Share Share  Contributed  Exchange Special  payment notes revaluation revaluation  reduction  Retained controlling
31} The Group capital ~ premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  eamings  Subotal  interests Total
ThL Tén Thr ThL Thn TEL Thn ThL T Thn ThL Thn Thr Thn
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
W) () () (Wza) (e Wz () R
(note &) (note b) (note ¢) (note d) note ¢) (note f) (note g) (note h)
W-FTNE-F-A At 1st January 2008 140305 1,356,450 186,624 10540 (6,867) 55,292 1241 - (12,600) 316,008 (872866) 1,174,133 138 1,175,461
ExSE Exchange alignment - - - (146) - - - - - - - (146) - (146)
BREBEATERZENA Share of other comprehensive income
of associates - - - 10982 - - - - - - - 10,962 - 10962
hERBAA Disposel of subsidaris - - - (00 - - - - 9,073 - a1 (0%8) (1183 (1)
HBLAER Winding up of subsidiaries - - - (348) - - - - - - - (34) (129) (476)
Fair value adjustment on available-for-sale
financial assets - - - - - - - - (32,235 - - (32,235) - (32235)
ERARERENN Other comprefensive income for he year - - - (9520) - - - - 23,162) - 9 (31,708) (131)  (33016)
EEHT Net profitfor the year - - - - - - - - - - 90,604 90,604 (25,014) 65,590
ERRENASE Total comprefensive income for he year - - - (9520) - - - - (23,162) - 91581 58,899 26,3%5) 3574
EEBENFEE Shere ofreserves of associales - - - - - 1079 - - - - - 1079 - 1079
HEWBAR Disposel of subsidlaries - - - - 6,867 (7.844) - - - - - (o7 - (o)
HEBHE-EBENTREE  Reloased on desmed disposal of an associale - - - - - 930) (1.247) - - - - (2.1 - 21
BRAEARARLE Transfer fiom liabilfes associated vith
LEEEE 8B asses classified as held for sele - - - - - - - - - - - - 30961 309261
KE-HHBAERES Issue of consideration shares upon
RERR acquistion of a subsidry 11817 2363 - - - - - - - - - 14,180 - 14,180
RERH Piacement of shares A0 102576 - - - - - - - - - 176076 - 17676
RiERL Share issuing expenses - 4.290) - - - - - - - - - 4.290) - (4.290)
Juer Capial eorganisation
-lAalE - capltal reducton (199910) - 199910 - - - - - - - - - - -
-HEROER - share premium cancelation (note ) - (1364500 1356450 - - - - - - - - - - -
-§ - set off against accumulated losses (nots i) - - (864,669) - - - - - - - 864,665 - - -
TS Issue of convertitle notes - - - - - - TiR - - - - 71491 - 71491
BERIERRE Surplus on revaluafion upon transfer - - - - - - - 6,383 - - - 6,383 - 6,383
RETARRE Redemption of convertible notes - - - - - - (33672) - - - (w4570 (18.242) - (A
gl Deferred tax - - - - - - (5,354) (1,089) - - - (6.407) - (6.407)
BREXN Share options lapsed - - - - - (13%) - - - - 1304 - - -
R ZER Share-based payment expenses - - - - - 7463 - - - - - 7463 - 7463
PZFEN\EFZAZT-8 At3fsi December 2008 and
R=EENE-A-A st January 2009 26,612 100,649 878,319 1020 - 53,666 32,665 5330 (36,762) 316,008 0204 1418711 84204 1702975
[3E] Exchange alignment - - - ki - - - - - - - k] - k]
e eEE AT Fair value adjustment on
FERE avaiable for sale financial assets - - - - - - - - 9800 - - 9800 - 9800
EEEBRAAA Other comprehensive income for the year - - - ki - - - - 9800 - - 9839 - 9839
ER4i Net prof for the year - - - - - - - - - S M 4B (0%9)  1643%
ERRENASE Totel comprehensive income for the year - - - ki - - - - 9800 S M3 2427 (30093 1742
HEWBLFARER Release on disposel of subsiclaries - - - - - - - - %962 - - %962 - %962
BELREEREAIR Issue of shares under open offer
ThkiA and bonus issue 212897 (100,282) (59.392) - - - - - - - - 53223 - 53223
B Issug of convertible notes - - - - - - 23,546 - - - - 23546 - 23546
EIEREEREL, Recogniton of defered tax upon issue
i of convertble notes - - - - - - 3,885) - - - - (3885) - (3,885)
aRTRERE Conversion o convertiole notes 1000 190672 - - - - (B4 - - - - T -
ShTBRZERERY Released of defered tax upon conversion
] of convertible noes - - - - - - 375 - - - - 3753 - 3753
EIERES e Redemption of convertible noles - - - - - - (38,019) - - - (8728)  (46745) - (46,745
BOTARZERERZELRA Released of deferred tax upon redemption
of convertible nofes - - - - - - 5,354 - - - - 534 - 534
EERf Placemen of sheres 009 195659 - - - - - - - - - TR - WTR
BiRAER Share Issuing expenses - (2.424) - - - - - - - - - (2.404) - (2.424)
WRAR RS Share-based payment expenses - - - - - 8039 - - - - - 8039 - 8039
fEBRE Exercise of share opions 491 16,460 - - - (3,796) - - - - - 13155 - 13155
ElvER Expiry of share options - - - - - (53) - - - - 53 - - -
E1Ef Capital reorganisation
-REER - capital reducton (237,114) S Al - - - - - - - - - - -
E4he Dividend pad - - - - - - - - - S ) ) ]
At 315t December 2009 22,965 400,734 1,056,041 1,059 - 57376 - 5330 - 316,008 215,609 2,075,122 £4m 2,319,393
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EES

BE-NN—FBREQREGER) - BhaE B
ERRARRZ REITRG  ERBRAKRETTAR
AR -

ARBEZANBABBDEERAERR -_FZ_FAh
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ELRBESARESNEB 2 FEEARDERER
BEXREE2EE (BT FHZELEZR  MEX
ERNERRAMEZEARAERLNEL RERFT - %
EREXFERCERZENHEBIEBHEND

BEEZ -

B2 RERE  BERRBEBERERGR
AR AR BB R RS ZHH%Z’&¥F1E H@#Ty
DREERAMRREZATEERNERE - ZRE
BHEc8E AESAERBEREZR ”f;fﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
BER (A NS E - TERBBRAX BB H
HE AR WHERS ARG N2 RIERFE -

BREEEEMENERRIERTE 25 AETZ
ﬂ?ﬁﬁ%%‘;—‘%%@ﬁﬁ“%ﬂ)ﬂﬁ%a@ﬁi“ﬁﬁ1,%% o Rz Bhin -
FARBRATEERRAGER N (A FTEEDEREE
Kﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁmFZm%ﬂrng) MBETREFIEESR
EMNcATFEEMEZZAGRES ) - AERH
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KA RRRERER (BN BERRERERF) B -

B
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—ETZNF+-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

Notes:

(a) Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
share premium can be used in paying up unissued shares of
the Company to be issued to members of the Company as fully

paid bonus shares.

(b) The contributed surplus brought toward of the Group
represents the amount transferred from the capital account due

to the capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002.

(c) Exchange reserve represents exchange differences relating
to the translation of the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations from their functional currencies to the Group’s
presentation currency (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve. Such exchange differences accumulated in
the exchange reserve are reclassified to profit or loss on the

disposal of the foreign operations.

(d) Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
services estimated to be received in exchange for the grant of
the relevant share options over the relevant vesting periods,
the total of which is based on the fair value of the share options
at grant date. The amount for each period is determined by
spreading the fair value of the share options over the relevant
vesting period (if any) and is recognised as staff costs and
related expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-

based payment reserve.

(e) Under Hong Kong Accounting Standard 32 “Financial
Instruments: Presentation”, convertible notes issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value which
is determined using a market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debts and attributing to the equity component
the difference between the proceeds from issue and the fair
value of the liability component. The liability component is
subsequently carried at amortised cost. The equity component
is recognised in the convertible notes reserve until the
convertible notes are either converted (in which case it is
transferred to share premium) or the convertible notes are
redeemed (in which case it is released directly to retained

earnings).
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Wiat : (&)

() MEESHRBHEABBNEXENIBERAEADEZY )
XEH - RUSBEHOBRME  WEIATFEEREH
AEEB R EMBHEMBERESE BB
AMESHFHE -

(9) RAEGHRBREEGTREEREMNEL 2 R RER  (9)

FRENREMZERARARER  ERFREEREE
REERER  FEBEMERDBEEHENIERE -

(h) B BB R R —
EETERMNZEERAESREE.C0ETHREEREE
005BTTAMELZEHE - REEREBEADF ZAFMA
F120FMAB B —TRBER - BRAHRFHETAIEX
NARREREZEE BE IREE URITBE

BEEAMER HEREREMARRENATER
R e

(i) TEZNFRANHBTZARARRENRE (i)
*IE%%‘J/?%% BEB NWHAESKRABRMEE

REBRR T F+_A=1T—HBZ2HRED
1,356,450,000/8 et $5 - MR D B ERMEE
BEL%1$/“*T%&J\FJ%BE'ZS"*V%&)\EJ%EM@
864,665,000 TIEAEREBERRATAR_TTRF+=
A=+—BZR:itEE " ﬁ’ﬁZK’Aaiz%M&ﬁ%EE#%‘F;E
ERBEARAREEGRERNRF ZARMA LA BEA
EETUBA -
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AIL\E #A R 71332,640,0008  (h)

Notes: (Continued)

The properties revaluation reserve relates to property
reclassified from owner-occupied to investment properties. For
such reclassifications, the accumulative increase in the fair
value of the property at the date of reclassification in excess
of any previous impairment losses is included in the properties

revaluation reserve.

The investments revaluation reserve represents accumulated
gains and losses arising on the revaluation of available-for-sale
investments that have been recognised in other comprehensive
income, net of amounts reclassified to profit or loss when those
investments have been disposed of or are determined to be

impaired.

The capital reduction reserve represents the amount arising in
relation to the reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000
issued shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the directors
pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s Bye-laws, the capital
reduction reserve shall be applicable for meeting claims on or
liabilities of the share Company or contingencies or for paying
off any loan capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be properly
applied.

At the special general meeting of the Company held on 8th
May 2008, a special resolution was passed to approved the
entire amount of approximately HK$1,356,450,000 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the Company as
at 31st December 2007 be cancelled and such credit amount
arising from the share premium cancellation be transferred
to the contributed surplus account of the Company, a sum
of approximately HK$864,665,000 in the contributed surplus
account of the company be applied to set off against the
accumulated losses of the Company as at 31st December
2006 and the remaining credit balance in the contributed
surplus account of the Company will be utilized by the board
of directors of the Company in accordance with the bye-laws of

the Company and all applicable laws.
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==z, 5 PR LI

2009 2008

#izt FHE T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

REEBFE2RERE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

FR B2 A& A Profit before taxation 167,243 63,149
BT B IBFIERE Adjustments for:
FEXZ W Interest expenses 22,272 31,522
FEMA Interest income (2,950) (1,497)
& 24 A Dividend income - (1,251)
ERERATRREREASZ Change in fair value in respect of conversion
BB A FEEE options embedded in convertible notes
receivable 31,565 -
M WERREEEE Depreciation and amortisation of property,

Tz I E R plant and equipment and leasehold land 45,837 2,811
ERAEMNE S R RIFKIEZ Impairment loss on amount due

WIEEE from associates - 25,179
B S RWERZREEIE Impairment loss on trade receivables 30 23
B iRe & EH b B FKIE Impairment loss on deposits paid

2 REEE and other receivables 4,311 89
FRERRE R Impairment loss recognised in respect

BEEE of film rights - 9,760
EHEMEZERAME Impairment loss recognised in respect

B of goodwill 40,278 13,646
REWMEZ NFEE (Increase)/decrease in fair value of

(&), m b investment properties (19,652) 11,930
LEME BREEREZ (Gain)/loss on disposal of property,

(Wzs) 8 plant and equipment (9,760) 20
MERRER zWE Gain on winding up of subsidiaries - (476)
HENBRARZEER Loss on disposal of subsidiaries 30,059 6,170
WRALE —HBE QA Loss on deemed disposal of interest

w2 BB in an associate - 17,551
DEABEEEZSR (Gain)/loss arising on change in fair value

BEZATEES of financial assets classified as

EEz (W) /B8 held for trading (15,622) 14,877
BRI RRER 2 W Gain on redemption of convertible notes (17,254) (39,000)
B 5 & H A eI Reversal of impairment loss on

FRIE 2 R B R e trade and other receivables (119) (95)
BREYEE A ARIRIEL Reversal of impairment loss on amount due

R (B 5 18 B B from associates (25,179) -
EmEE R EER Share of losses of associates 14 3,303
AR 215 2 SRIBR X Share-based payment expenses 8,039 7,463
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ogia

Notes

LEEEHH KR
Reng

FEOEM R

B HRAER D

SUERER GEM) R
B 5 W RS N

Be  BNREREMEK
IR, ()

JE U B i N R R IER A (42 0)

EHENRREM, OB D)
BIEZR® « EETHE R
Hofth FE A5 FRIB G N

HEEEZHE
ENHIE

REEBEL
ZREFHE

REXBZHRERE

BWAE
BEMA
WS R 2R
WiE—RRB AR (Re Rk
Re%HEEEFE)
HEDBRARKIEEER
ZEBEEMFRE
HEWE - K RRE
P15 3RIR
—HLPHRREENA
& BB R R FTS 5OR
RBURKRER(BERX)
ENKRERS
BABBERZULTEE
SR EMEE
BAVE  #=kRE

REXBFMARES TR
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Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Decrease in film rights
(Increase)/decrease in films in progress
Increase in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from associates
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase in deposits received, accruals
and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Tax paid

Net cash generated from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received
Dividend income
Acquisition of interests in associates
Acquisition of a subsidiary
(net cash and cash equivalent) 45
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
classified as held for trading
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Repayment from a minority shareholder
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 46
Subscription of convertible notes
(including expenses)
Deposits paid for investment
Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

—EEAF ZEENF
2009 2008
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
259,112 165,174
(692) 115
6,839 11,284
(859) 6,569
(36,033) (15,660)
19,381 (11,547)
8,744 (17,820)
22,874 (12,688)
25,972 6,303
305,338 131,730
(676) (452)
304,662 131,278
462 1,457

- 1,251

(14) -

560 (199,999)

714 -
11,200 -
183,750 12,250
25,382 330,560
(60,000) -
(360,000) -
(57,020) (24,052)
(300,030) (197,131)
(554,996) (75,664)
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BE—Z%

ENE+=A=+—HIL%EE For the year ended 31st December 2009

“BEAE ZETNF
2009 2008
Hat FTER FAT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
METH2ESRE CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BRFIE Interest paid (27,342) (28,682)
BITRETBRIR Proceeds from issue of shares 53,223 176,976
Be & B 0 FT 15 ;IR Proceeds from placing of shares 205,738 -
TEEREMGHIE Proceeds from exercise of options 13,155 -
BT MRS HRIE Proceeds from issue of convertible notes 200,000 -
NEEERERERERZ Proceeds from inception of obligations under
13 %8 finance leases 482 -
B AT HRREE Redemption of convertible notes (168,000) (216,000)
=53 ”iﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ % Repayment of obligations under finance leases (81) -
BERIETE Repayment of bank loans (212,561) (77,474)
%ﬁ}aﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁk New bank loan acquired 240,000 -
BERRE Dividends paid (20,790) -
Bing1TRX Share issuing expenses (2,424) (4,290)
BMEZBEL (FA) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in) financing
REFH activities 281,400 (149,470)
ReRBESESHEEREM Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
/(RD) equivalents 31,066 (93,856)
FUzEeRASLEHEER Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year (36,681) 57,321
IEEXBHoTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 39 (146)
FRZEER Cash and cash equivalents
R&%EER at the end of the year
RekRe&FHEER Cash and cash equivalents 34 (5,576) (36,681)
BT ANEMERRZ — 2 H The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

51



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
e E &5 "R o F

i) 3% #t 7% B 5% Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZZENFE+=-A=+—HILEE For the year ended 31st December 2009

1. —BEE o

AABDRERETIMR LB EER QA
ERHEBREBARSHARAR ((BXA
EHARRZEMMERARBRERRLE
TEE 725 Bl ACanon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda® & T# &
F1168-2005% 15 18 /L B E341209% o

MWEEAMBRERABTIIE i%ﬁiri%zﬁ"
R - BRRBEHAEIN  FAAEEEDSR
ERAZTRE(TET) -

AEBZIZXEBREZEEF BTETNRER
BEE RENBEYEREBEIOEN 2 ¥%
EWEEBERE -

2. BRAFIREEIELEUER 2
40 ([ EBHBREER )

AEBNAFERABBEHOAE ((FEEA
B2 THIFET RGBT BB Gt &R
(IEEGER]) - B AKRE ((HEEYH

RELY])  URAKE-_TTAF-A—AF
WMz MBFEEEN -
BEMBRELER TEN\FRMB2ER
(B3 %) Eﬁ%#&%fﬁﬁﬂzmﬁ S
BAYBREENE6H
ZETR-_FENF
tA-RARERFGBZ
ﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘ﬁi?ﬁ
BEUBREER RZZZNFRHZEE
(BaI %) BBmEER 2t -

BEBE B EREHR
80 2 BT

52

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and head office and principal place of
business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and Unit 3409, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$’000) except otherwise
indicated.

The principal activities of the Group are film production,
distribution of film and television drama series, investing
in operations which receive profit streams from the
gaming promotion business and property and hotel
investment.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”),
amendments or interpretations (the “‘new HKFRSs”) issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (*“HKICPA"),

which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1st

January 2009.

HKFRS (Amendments) Improvement to HKFRSs issued in
2008, except for the amendment
to HKFRS 5 that is effective for the
annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009

HKFRS (Amendment) Improvement to HKFRSs issued in
2009 in relation to the amendment
to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 8
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 9 and

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(IFRIC) - Int 15

HK(IFRIC) - Int 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 18

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements - Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and
Obligations arising
on Liquidation

Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate
Hedges of a Net Investment
in a Foreign Operation
Transfers of Assets from Customers

Except as described below, the adoption of the new

HKFRSs had no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the current and

prior accounting period.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) “Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) require additional disclosure
about fair value measurement and liquidity risk. Fair
value measurements are to be disclosed by source of
inputs using a three level hierarchy for each class of
financial instrument. The Group has taken advantage
of the transition provisions set out in the amendments
to HKFRS 7, under which comparative information for
the newly required disclosures about the fair value
measurements of financial instruments has not been
provided.

HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires the
identification of operating segments to be performed on
the same basis as financial information that is reported
internally for the purpose of allocating resources
between segments and assessing their performance.
In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was
business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has
not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14.
Details of application of HKFRS 8 are set out in note 6.

HKAS 1 (Revised) “Presentation of Financial Statements”

HKAS 1 (Revised) separates owner and non-owner
changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity
includes only details of transactions with owners, with
non-owner changes in equity presented as a single
line. In addition, the standard introduced the statement
of comprehensive income, it presents all items of
recognised income and expense, either in one single
statement, or in two linked statements. The Group has
elected to present two statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
improvements to HKFRSs in 2008'

Improvement to HKFRSs issued
in 2009?

Amendment to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards - Additional
Exemptions for First-time
Adopters®

Limited Exemption from Comparative
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopter®

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payments - Group
Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions®

Business Combinations’

Financial Instruments’
Related party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation
- Classification of Rights Issues*

Eligible Hedged Items'

Prepayment of a Minimum Funding
Requirement®

Distribution of Non-cash Assets
to Owners!

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July 2009 and 1st January 2010, as

appropriate.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January 2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st February 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st July 2010

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2011

’ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual reporting period beginning on or after 1st July
2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective from 1st January
2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” to be measured at
either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that (i) are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows
and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost.
All other debt investments and equity investments are
measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9
might affect the classification and measurement of the
Group’s financial assets.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs and anticipates
that the application of these new HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position
of the Group and the Company.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.
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ENFE+=HA=1+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December 2009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
which is a collective term that includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, HKASs, and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA and accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. In addition, the financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Listing Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention except
for certain investment properties and financial
instrument, which are carried at fair values.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31st
December each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition and up to the effective date
of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between group companies are eliminated
on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Minority interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of
the amount of those interests at the date of the
original business combination and the minority’s
share of changes in equity since the date of
the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’'s interest in
the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able
to make an additional investment to cover the
losses.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost, less any identified impairment loss.

Business combinations

The acquisition of business is accounted for
using the purchase method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values
at the acquisition date, except for non-current
assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations, which are recognised and measured
at fair value less costs to sell.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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(c)

(d)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the
business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the
acquiree is initially measured at the minority’s
portion of the net fair value of the assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor
has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of

associates are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried
in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates, less any identified impairment
loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in
that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. An additional share of loses is
provided for a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on

behalf of that associates.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investment in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
The

goodwill is included within the carrying amount

of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.

of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant
associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary
or an associate represents the excess of the cost
of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary
or associate at the date of acquisition. Such
goodwill is carried at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition
of a subsidiary is presented separately in the
statement of financial position. Capitalised
goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate
is included in the cost of the investment of the
relevant associate.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

()

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each
of the relevant cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the acquisition.
A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on
an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and
then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in the income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary or an
associate, the attributable amount of goodwill
capitalised is included in the determination of
the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are identified and recognised
separately from goodwill where they satisfy the
definition of an intangible asset and their fair
values can be measured reliably. The cost of
such intangible assets is their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually and carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Revenue recognition

Film distribution fee income is recognised when
the master materials have been delivered.

Sales of film rights are recognised when the
master films are delivered and the film title has
passed perpetually.

Sales of video products are recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed.

Service income, management fee income and
post-production service income are recognised
when the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group’s rights to receive payment have
been established.

Interest income from financial asset is accrued
on a time basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
relevant lease term.

Revenue from hotel accommodation are
recognised upon the provision of the
accommodation services. Revenue from food
and beverage sales and other ancillary services
are recognised upon the provision of goods and
services.

Revenue arising from service provided for
gaming operations in mass market hall, slot
machine hall and VIP rooms is recognised when
the relevant services have been rendered and
the Group is entitled to the share of gaming wins
from the gaming operator.

Receive profit streams from the gaming
promotion business is recognised when the right
to receive profit is established.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use. Expenditure
incurred after the property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted
in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the
property, plant and equipment, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset.

All direct and indirect costs relating to
the construction of property, plant and
equipment, including borrowing costs during
the construction period are capitalised as
construction in progress. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress
is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for its intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment (other
than construction in progress), using the straight
line method, over their estimated useful lives.
The principal annual rates are as follows:

2% — 5%
20% — 33%
10% - 50%
18% — 33%
15% — 20%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

(i)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

No depreciation is provided on construction in
progress.

The gain or loss arising from disposal of an
asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Interests in leasehold land

Interests in leasehold land represent prepaid
lease payment for leasehold land. Interests
in leasehold land are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. The costs of
interests in leasehold land are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the relevant
interests in leasehold land or the operation
period of the relevant company. During the
construction period, the amortisation charge
provided for the interests in leasehold land
is included as part of cost of construction in
progress.

Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. On initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are
included in the consolidated income statement
for the period in which they arise.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Investment properties (Continued)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the
carrying amount of the asset only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the assets will flow to the Group
and the cost of the asset can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

If an owner-occupied property become an
investment property because its use has
changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
property at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment. However, if a fair value gives rise to
a reversal of the previous impairment loss, the
write-back is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. On the subsequent sale or
retirement of assets, the relevant revaluation
reserve will be transferred directly to retained
earnings.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property
is permanently withdraw from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year
in which the item is derecognised.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor
the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each end of the reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

M

(m)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to income statement
except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the entity intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for

their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as and
included in finance costs in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are
classified as held for sale if their carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing
use. This condition is regarded as met only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset (or
disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their previous carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
first-in, first-out method.

Film rights

Film rights represent films and television drama
series produced by the Group or acquired by the
Group and are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any identified impairment loss.

Amortisation is charged to the income statement
based on the proportion of actual income earned
during the year to the total estimated income
from the sale of film rights. The amortisation of
film rights will not exceed twenty years. In the
case where there is any impairment in value,
the unamortised balance is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount.

Films in progress

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated
at cost incurred to date, less any identified
impairment loss. Cost is transferred to film rights
upon completion.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

i.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified
into one of the three categories, including
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.
All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of
financial assets are set out below.

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss has two subcategories,
including financial assets held for trading
and those designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for

trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near
future; or

(i) it is a part of an identified portfolio

of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not

designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

i.

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss can be those financial assets
acquired principally not for the purpose
of selling in the short term but designated
by management as such at inception. A
financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at
fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

(i) the financial asset forms part of
a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management
or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis;
or

(iii) it forms part of a contract
containing one or more embedded
derivatives and HKAS 39 permits
the entire combined contract
(asset or liability) to be designated
as fair value through profit or loss.

At each end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.
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(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, loan to
a minority shareholder, amounts due
from subsidiaries, amounts due from
associates, time deposits, cash and bank
balances) are non-derivative financia
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At each end of the reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at
amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified
impairment losses. An impairment loss
is recognised in income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the assets’ carrying
amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in
the asset’s recoverable amount can be
related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised,
subject to a restriction that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised

71



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

e

=
=4

£ B 85 KR 2 7

B % it % B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZEZTANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

3.

72

TESHEBE(E)

SRIE(E)

(a)

.

EHEE (&)
RHEZ T HEE

AHEEZEREEREERY
BEOBRREREMBRZIFITE
TR -RYREREZEHREH
BRE - THHEEZEREER
AYEEAE - ATFTEEEIN
HemBAReBEESRM
BTREAAHER EE22REES
HREFHRBE B LA
ReBMEEEMRRBERZ R
BEKETREESMHFHENR -
TRBARER -AIHEEZS
MEEZEMREBBEORGA
WARBER AT EZRER
BEZREBRESTERNEREM
RO -gAftbEZBEBREM
FoM&BREZAFEEIEM
AEBMEBARERZEMNE
B AR E R &R -

HRAERRMS LY EMERE
BERFEERENEFEZA
e ZRERE - BIRR A
REZEREHERTIEK AR
EMERMBEBETE WA
EERBRAEECELERE
AREBER B ARER - BE
BEcERZEEZREERD
AAREERENEUESREE
ERcmEORERFTREZRER
ERzEZRAE -FRAREER
BAERERBREER -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

i.

Financial assets (Continued)

Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated
or not classified as any of the other
categories (set out above). At each
end of the reporting period subsequent
to initial recognition, available for sale
financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of
financial assets revaluation reserve, until
the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time,
the accumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in financial assets revaluation
reserve is removed from financial assets
revaluation reserve and recognised in
income statement. Any impairment losses
on available for sale financial assets are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement. Impairment losses on available
for sale equity investments will not reverse
in subsequent periods. For available for
sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase
in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment loss.

For available for sale equity investments
that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. They are
measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each end of the
reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition. An impairment loss is
recognised in income statement when
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired. The amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not reverse in subsequent periods.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
issued by a group entity are classified
according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities
are generally classified into financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss has two subcategories,
including financial liabilities held for
trading and those designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for
trading if:

(i) it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the
near future; or

(i) it is a part of an identified portfolio
of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking; or

(iii) it is a derivative that is not

designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

A financial liability other than a financial
liability held for trading may be
designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition if:

(i) such designation eliminates
or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise
arise; or

(i) the financial liability forms part
of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management
or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis;
or

(iii) it forms part of a contract

containing one of more embedded
and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the
entire combined contract to be
designated as fair value through
profit or loss.

derivatives,

At each end of the reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised directly
in income statement in the period in
which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any
interest paid on the financial liability.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade
payables and other payables, bank
and other borrowings, obligation under
finance lease and amounts due to
minority shareholders are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company
that contain both financial liability
and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and
equity components on initial recognition.
On initial recognition, the fair value of
the liability component is determined
using the prevailing market interest rate
of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the gross proceeds
of the issue of the convertible notes and
the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion
option for the holder to convert the
notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes reserve).
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability
component of the convertible notes
is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity
component, representing by the option
to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will
remain in convertible notes reserve
until the conversion option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated
in convertible notes reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share
premium). Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in convertible notes
reserve will be released to retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in
income statement upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue
of the convertible notes are allocated to
the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged
directly to convertible notes reserve.

Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and are
amortised over the conversion period of
the convertible notes using conversion
the effective interest method.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Financial Instruments (Continued)

if.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract issued
by the Group and not designated as
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised initially at its
fair value less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

ifi.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

For financial liabilities, they are removed
from the Group’s statement of financial
position (i.e. when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires). The
difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid or payable is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Effective interest rate

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n

(s)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the end of the reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in income
statement in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in income statement for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases,
the exchange differences are also recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

79



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

e

=
=4

£ B 85 KR 2 7

B % it % B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZEZTANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

3.

380

TESHEBE(E)

(s)

®

S ()

RENGREMBHREME  AREEIINE
BeBEERRBEDRBEHERK ZER
EXMBESREE 2 8% (AET) -
MW AR TR %EE 2 FHIE XK
T BRFFEERZARMALBRKRIERE -
AIERBERT RARX S A ZEREX
BmE-MEEZENZR (WA) HRE
2 EW AR R R5H s (B R -
ZEERZBR B EBINER 2 BRER
BWMARAHER

HE

MEGRIAREERAR ZBRENRA
alkEREEABRAZEE 95 ARE
HE -FAERMEESNAEEHEE -

(i) FEEERBLAA
KEBREZHSWANEHAESR
NEREZERASRARARER -
BEEhkLEERHERMSPRZE
BRAGTAHEEEZREE
WHRERRNABREER R

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

()

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period,
and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (exchange reserve). Such
exchange differences are recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the leases transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

(i) The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases
is recognised in consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Leasing (Continued)

(ii)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are
initially recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor
is included in the statement of financial
position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between
finance expenses and reduction of the
lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless they are directly attributable
to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the periods in which they
are incurred.

Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as
an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Bonuses

The Group recognises a liability for
bonuses when there is a contractual
obligation and the amount can be
estimated reliably.

Retirement benefit obligations

The Group operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme
is a defined contribution scheme, the
assets of which are held in separate
trustee-administered funds.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at
5% of the employees’ relevant income,
with the employers’ contributions subject
to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. The Group’s contributions to
the scheme are expensed as incurred are
vested in accordance with the scheme’s
vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the
employer’s contributions, the amount of
forfeited contributions is used to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group.

The employees employed by the Group’s
subsidiaries in Macau are members of
the government-managed retirement
benefits schemes operated by the Macau
government. The Macau operations
are required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits
schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits schemes operated
by the Macau government is to make
the required contributions under the
schemes.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iif)

Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of the employee services
received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense
in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share-
based payment reserve).

At the time when the share options
are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment
reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share-
based payment reserve will be transferred
to retained profits.

Related party transactions

A party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the party, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, (a) controls,
is controlled by, or is under common
control with, the Group; (b) has an interest
in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (c) has joint
control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key
management personnel of the Group or

its parent;

the party is a close member of the family
of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
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BEAXTRS (&)

(vi) A AGV)(WV)IRE R ZERERA
TEESMESEH  XHERIE
HAZXERTEIRZEERBTE
BREERZEE I

R REEBERER
ArtzENERZER
ZBERREAIEEl -
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EEe
1

S5O
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REBEMERE  AREEENET R
BVEEZREE NETEREEMATH
SBREMEELRRERR W& EM
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ZEEZARESEAETRERBE 2
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BB - fE B E T IREFEGR T
HERmEE - E‘JEZQEZEEE{EﬁJ/&iA
WESRE - BEBENBERR/MAX -

fMERERBERRSARE  RIBEEE
ZREEEEE AR E R RIERT fhat
B ERTEIREE NS EEAAEFE N
REERREEBREET ZREE B
BEBERANSERBRA -

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(v)

(w)

Related party transactions (Continued)
(vi)  the party is an entity that is controlled,
jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides
with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (iv) or (v); or

(vii)  the party is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group, or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At each end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, and whether there is an indication
that they may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense

immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

income immediately.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgments, apart from
those involving estimations, that management has made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

(a) Estimated impairment of intangible assets and
goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether
there has been impairment of intangible
assets and goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 3(e) and 3(f).
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating
units are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates and assumptions made by
management on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other
assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.
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4, FTEESHHUEREHIAEE 4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

'HEZEE}E;‘J;E (ﬂf/g AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

ERSHBREcEEHE (&) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(b) =8 143 (b) Trade receivables
ANEETFTHBTESREWERDRZRE - A The aged debt profile of trade receivables
BRAIU R E SRR - A R is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that
FZEEHSHEANRERBETY - R trade receivable balances are collectible and
i WEAEeHIBER 585 EIE follow up actions are promptly carried out if the
RZAME#e T AEBAERER agreed credit periods have been exceeded.
FPZREEMRR  BHREERRE R 2RER However, from time to time, the Group may
DT RMERAC % - TR RIZERE R B - experience delays in collection. Where
ATRERWKGENZERATIE - BE recoverability of trade receivable balances are
1% 7 B 2 W ) i ZB A U 3R P i 8H AR R called into doubts, specific provisions for bad
FEUFRIE - iR AE AR B #E IR b2 and doubtful debts are made based on credit
BIRWERIELEE At g Al status of the customers, the aged analysis of the
ISE BN E - trade receivable balances and write-off history.

Certain receivables may be initially identified
as collectible, yet subsequently become
uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-
off of the related receivables to the income
statement. Changes in the collectability of trade
receivables for which provisions are not made
could affect our results of operations.

(c) Y% EERZEZTEFAER (c)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
REBREEBSSERE16E 2R EM In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group
E MERREZTEAER ®W estimates the useful lives of property, plant and
BERAVNNEZIFTERS - NEEREBA equipment in order to determine the amount
BEZE BEUNGLER BEEZEHE of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The
HE BREREE URRNeTEHSS useful lives are estimated at the time the asset
KK BEERBEMERBR (G5 EA is acquired based on historical experience, the
FRFR AEEBTFERFFELBR expected usage, wear and tear of the assets,
NHE S ERERATELE 2RE—RED as well as technical obsolescence arising from
RERE - changes in the market demands or service

output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives continue to be valid.
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(e)

BANHTEE19RTI - REMETIRIBBUZR
EHEMETHHEERAFEEE &
EEQFEER  HEMERAERE TR
AEVEETE RMEEZAEERSE B
BERBTHBYEMZEETATIRBR
ER TSR - WRRmRZZEEMmE
REBREHE  RENEZDXFEEER
RRHIREE -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Investment properties

As described in note 19, investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have
based on method of valuation which involves
certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
report, the management has exercised their
judgment and are satisfied that the method
of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions. Should there are changes in
assumptions due to change of market conditions,
the fair value of the investment properties will
change in future.

Impairment of films in progress

The management of the Group reviews an aging
analysis at each end of the reporting period, and
identifies the slow-moving films in progress that
is no longer suitable for use in production. The
management estimates the net realisable value
for such films in progress based primarily on the
latest available market prices and current market
conditions. In addition, the Group carries out
review on each film at each end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for any films in
progress that productions no longer proceed.
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£RTAE

5.

88

(a)

(b)

5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EMIAEDE: (a) Categories of financial instruments:
AEHE
The Group
—EThEF —EENF
2009 2008
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
cTRMEE Financial assets
BIEEEIRE Held for trading investments 97,641 25,713
ExkEKFE (21 Loans and receivables (including cash
e RIRTTERR) and bank balances) 300,929 391,612
AtHEZSRERE Available for sale financial assets - 16,800
ERERAATEE Financial assets at fair value
PRz S MEE through profit or loss 10,908 -
- 8=Ri Financial liabilities
BSEA AR Amortised cost 784,200 813,539
cREREEEAREX (b)  Financial risk management objectives and

FEBZFEZSRIABRERERE
fBE BEHREMERTR EHREMNE
FoReLREEERE ZF2RIA
ZHEHBENEEMEN - BZFERITA
HEZER  ARREZERRZHEH
T - EEEHRFRRETEEME
B ERAMEER T ABTEE R -

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
equity investments, borrowings, trade and
other receivables, trade payables, cash and
cash equivalents. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 5
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. €MIA(E
(b) SREBEHEERRBE(Z)

WS AR

(7)

ShEE [l B
ARETEERBRRMLER
B BRBORSTIABRT ([
7)) ROEPIHE (RPIEE ) FHE -
68 B B BB T R PTREE X
BYELZIERR AKER
B EEANERBEERBE
ZHNEEBHEPTE - AEEK
BYEEENERR XRUE
B BEIPERIMNEE R o

RBEBH  AKEUINEFE
ZEBBERBBEZREAENT

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in both
Hong Kong and Macau and majority
of transactions are dominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and Macau Pataca
(*“MOP”). The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange
fluctuation of HK$ against MOP. The
Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign current assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at
reporting date are as follows:

BE Assets
pekisled MOP
=L Liabilities
SR P MOP

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

— —ETN\F
2009 2008
TRz FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
1,367,130 222,501
735,732 221,458
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miERR (&)
(i) SME R 7 ()

MR E R 2 GURE D

TRHENAEE BT HRFE
FHEREZES%Z BREE - KA A
MEIBEEABRSIIERRE
FIRAZBREEL ER5% B R
ERENMIREABERZER
BE o BRENNEEHREIE
ZINEFEEEEE  TEHK
ERHRZBMEEEE FEH5%
2R GREDM BB
BEREAEERGIEBHEZ
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency
risk

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% increase an decrease
in the HK$ against the MOP. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the
reasonable possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translation at the period end for a
5% change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans
as well as loans to foreign operations
within the Group where the denomination
of the loan is in a currency other than the
currency of the lender of the borrower.
A positive number below indicates an
increase in profit where the relevant
currencies strengthen 5% against the
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant
currencies against the HK$, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the
profit and the balances below would be
negative.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

5. €MIA(E
(b) SREBEHEERRBE(Z)

5.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

G E R (E) Market risk (Continued)
(i) ShE R (4E) (i) Foreign exchange risk (Continued)
INERRE IR Z URE DT () Sensitivity analysis on foreign currency
risk (Continued)
—EThF —ETNF
2009 2008
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R 2 B Impact of MOP
i Sk B 18 Profit or loss 31,570 54
(i)  EB5EE (i) Price risk

AEBEZRAREBREAHREE
BRERBZBERURTEERIER
ZEMEE REREHERE
HeERAFEEFESAKER
i (B 1R A B o AR 2 B E R
TREPREBIMABEZ SR
LEBBEMRRSE RHEXERN
PEARAMBEETEZ XBE
BEBREZBAES -BEEE
IR ARREBRKFZRERE
ZH A B E R o B AEER
WA BB S R R L

BURRE D
ATEEEIMIIREARSE B
Hf AR 2 BRERNERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

The Group’s equity investments classified
as available for sale investments and
financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are measured at
fair value at each end of the reporting
period and expose the Group to equity
price risk. The Group’s equity price
risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities operating in provision for cold
storage and related logistic services,
manufacturing industry and public
transportation business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong, which
are quoted in the Stock Exchange. The
management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risk profiles. In addition,
the Group will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need rise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risk at the reporting date.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(if)

(iif)

Price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If equity prices had been 5% higher/
lower, the Group’s:

. profit before taxation for the year
ended 31st December 2009
would increase/decrease by
HK$5,427,000 (2008: increase/
decrease by HK$1,286,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss; and

. financial assets revaluation reserve
would increase/decrease by nil
(2008: increase/decrease by
HK$840,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of financial
assets at available for sale
investments.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to
its time deposits and borrowings. Bank
borrowings at variable rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk (see
note 38 for details of these borrowings).
The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.
The Group currently does not have an
interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

As at 31st December 2009 and 2008, a
reasonably possible change of 50 basis-
points interest rates on borrowings would
have no material impact on the Group’s
results for the year and equity as at the
year end.
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(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

As at 31st December 2009,
maximum exposure to credit risk which will

the Group’s

cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is

In this regards, the directors of the

significantly reduced.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade or other receivables. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining
adequate bank deposits and cash, monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring
by management. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity
requirement are provided to management for
review periodically. Management will raise or

refinance bank borrowings whenever necessary.
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5.

94

SRMIA (& 5.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) SCRERTEEEREE(Z) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
RBESRER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TRETASEBEREEZSBAE B The table below analyses the Group’s financial
LRABEEBAER  RERBRESHELER liabilities that will be settled into relevant maturity
REANIMA 2 FRBAREITON - & groupings based on the remaining period at the
N E 2 BIBEA QM &N KET end of the reporting period to the contractual
g.om maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was as follows:
RZ2ENF+ZAZ+-R
At 31st December 2009
mEFH EHERS REE
BRA= - ZEEf  EENE  RESH st
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1year  2-5years 5years cash flows amount
TER TER TER TET TER
HK$'000  HKS$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FTELRaR Non-derivative financial liabilities
BITER Bank overdraft 3.05% 184,217 - - 184,217 178,764
RORE Bank borrowings
i) - current 3.29% 241,314 - - 241,314 232,631
o L) - non-current 3.24% - 183,082 - 183,082 178,275
ZHRRER Trade payables - 21,426 - - 21,426 21,426
BBz e - JE;HEE  Deposits received, accruals
REMENFE and other payables - 132,201 - - 132,201 132,201
BEMEREH Obligation under finance lease 5.99% 125 396 - 521 401
BN BRENE Amounts due to minority shareholders - 40,502 - - 40,502 40,502
&5t Total 619,785 183,478 - 803,263 784,200
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

tWIE(E 5.

(b) CREKREEERERESE (&) (b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
REELEAR (£) Liquidity risk (Continued)
RZZZ\FT-A=1-H
At 31st December 2008
MET BRERE REE
BB —FR  ZERF  RFENE REMSH @t
Weighted
average Total Total
effective Within Within Over undiscounted carrying
interest rate 1 year 2-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
FHEL THT TET THEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FTESRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
RITEX Bank overdraft 4.33% 182,396 - - 182,396 174,826
RORE Bank borrowings
-R8 - current 3.24% 113,182 - - 113,182 102,561
-~ - non-current 3.24% - 292,957 24 292,981 280,906
ZHERER Trade payables - 7,083 - - 7,083 7,083
L4  [E:HBE  Deposits received, accruals
PERFANE ] and other payables - 69,271 - - 69,271 69,271
ERPERETE Amounts due to minority shareholders - 40,502 - - 40,502 40,502
BEAUARER Unsecured convertible notes 7.75% 8,400 8,400 176,400 193,200 138,390
@it Total 420,834 301,357 176,424 898,615 813,539
(c) ERMIAEZATEE (c)  Fair value of financial instruments

HEAMBEHREENBTRIESRTA -
Bz B2 =R A FEESR]
RPEAHSRTIAZAVEEE - &2
MIAZATEEDEHBEBREZLTE
ErtEMEBEAZRESRBAEBET
D ZESFEREMD

¢ ESRCRAEERTSLE
ELMT AFEL B (RERR)
e AFME

. FEH-RBELIBRMISEE
TRTAMBZERIERRA
B2 NEHERIFERKET
BEMTSEBEZAERMTEZ
NFEE
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The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, require disclosures
relating to fair value measurements of financial
instruments across three levels of a “fair value
hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument is categorised in its entirety based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to that
fair value measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

. Level 1: fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

. Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

. Level 3: fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any
significant input is not based on

observable market data

At 31 December 2009 and 2008, the financial
instruments of the Group and the Company
carried at fair value included conversion options
embedded in convertible notes, available
for sale financial assets and held for trading
investments.

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into level 1, level 2 and level 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is

observable.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—%K HFZER FZER e
FET FET TET FET
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

R-ZBFEAF+=-A=+—H At31 December 2009

WA ZEBAE 2 Conversion options
R HA embedded in convertible

notes receivable - - 10,908 10,908
HIEEERE Held for trading investments 97,641 - - 97,641

RAFER UEBEE-FH £=
RE=ZFSREETER -

48

&

EXER

AEEEEEER  UERAEEZEE
BRFECS YEBRBIERRERS
HARRERGADR RBETFE K
SEZBERBARTE

AEEZEAGREREY  HBRERT
BX RITEE REMEEHRERF
AMBERE  RADREDRS A ARGE
& HEROBITRAN - HELRERF -

(d)

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and
3 in the current year.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists
of debts which include bank overdraft, bank
borrowings, obligation under finance lease
and unsecured convertible notes, and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued capital, reserves and retained
earnings.
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5. €®mITER (£§ 5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

d)y EXREE(E) (d)
APRIBEREEEEEMERNER - (F
BUBHZ 80 ARREEEEER
B R BREITRD SN 2 A E £ TR
BEBEALHEEZEE - NEEER
BAANRES HBRZARERNER
EEMFEEBEEREE -

AEBEEABEEABRELEXTEBS
50% R _ZEENFR-_ZTZENF+=A
—t+—BZEEBBHLENT

Capital management (Continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on an annual basis. As a part of this
review, the directors of the Company consider
the cost of capital and other sources of funds
other than issuance of shares, including
borrowings from related parties. Based on
the recommendation of the directors of the
Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through raising or repayment of
borrowings.

The Group aimed at maintaining a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratios as at
31st December 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

—EZThE —ZET)N\F

2009 2008

FExT FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

HRAETE() Total Debt (i) 590,071 696,683

B Re RIRTTAER Less: Cash and bank balances (173,188) (138,145)

BERERE Net debt 416,883 558,538

R (i) Equity (ii) 2,075,122 1,418,711

B FREE R = Net debt to equity ratio 20% 39%

BB R AL 2 Total debt to equity ratio 28% 49%
Htaz - Notes:

(i) BERBERTES ROEE BE 0 Debt comprises bank overdraft, bank

HEEBRERMITLRER (G borrowings, obligation under finance lease

B2 RIE A HIFE38 - 39K%40) ° and unsecured convertible notes as detailed in

notes 38, 39 and 40 respectively.
(ii) BRABERNEB 2B ERNRERS - (i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f
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6. 7EEHR 6.

$%IE?%4N%§\§%E7TW¥&¢Q§E'J%8%faLn
Bl R_ZZNF-A-—BRER -FEYH
MEENESHE R/ —ERER T EREEDH
WEBASBEEKKR D NERE 2 E%E T AR -
NEBHRERTELERKE ((T2LERERE]))
(RERBRTERARN) TR BNANE
NEERRFEDERR -MALLZT  EAZ
ﬁﬁ%(? SR ENF 4R [ BERE ) MIBRE
BRARRREEREZNMES R (EBHE
&iﬂzli D) MEBZIAZIRERABELRA
MAB2M S ERBRNZEDEZER -
ERE AEEZIEZEERVAREBNE -

REFRTKEEBME  TBLERKERAE
E'J?E%l+mﬁﬁ PMEFEITRA - ARIEE R
FHEREEUESFIEL 2D EHREMNE & F
?E%Zﬁﬁ%éﬂﬁ/—\miflﬁﬁfi‘“%%i% DA
BRIEFRITRERK] -

HEERBYRBEEEBME  TELERK
FERAPIMESEERMEL RS 2 BEFHRR
HEXB-BREFEMBHREENESHAEL Z
/‘iﬁiﬁziﬁﬂé : EZ?@EZEM%QHEAfﬁﬁ—IE

—REEBLE BAIAERBYRBELE
%7}%

REXHRRLCEEBMNS  TBLERARETH
R ERBBYEREBRBUEN 2 X5 - 5
REEFEHGHRELENESHRFEL 2D BEREM
FORRBEBIMBENCAHE-RE—K
EEBIE BRIBUERLLERE] -

B EAE BN RE E R H85 U & 5| B
LRBEBGHENE U EECEERATRE
DEMEAERBEEREERTRENE  MEN
BEMBHEEFESRMBERE S BRRE 25
BEE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” with effect from 1st January 20009.
HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker (the “CODM”), which is a group of
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose
of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
standard (HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”) required an
entity to identify two sets of segments (business and
geographical), using a risks and returns approach, with
the entity’s “system of internal financial reporting to key
management personnel” serving only as the starting
point for the identification of such segments. In the
past, the Group’s primary reporting format was business
segment.

For film distribution operations, the CODM regularly
analyses film distribution revenue on the basis of
individual film. For segment reporting under HKFRS 8,
financial information of these films has been aggregated
into a single operating segment named “film distribution
operations”.

For hotel and gaming service operations, the CODM
regularly reviews the performance of Hotel Lan Kwai
Fong Macau on the basis of revenue generated by
it. For segment reporting under HKFRS 8, financial
information of this hotel has been aggregated into a
single operating segment named “hotel and gaming
service operations”.

For gaming promotion operations, the CODM regularly
reviews the investment in the operation which receives
profit streams from the gaming promotion business.
For segment reporting under HKFRS 8, financial
information of this operation has been aggregated into
a single operating segment named “gaming promotion
operations”.

Accordingly, the application of HKFRS 8 has not
resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
segments as compared with the primary reportable
segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14,
nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis of
measurement of segment profit or loss.
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BEYRTRERR - RERBRTER
EREEBI AR
GRS
%

BERBYRBLEER — RAMBESERER
REEE RS &8
FREEB R

B ELEED - RENBEBYHEE
EBUWEUR 2 %
%

BHREEBZOREMZRNOT :

(a) BEEEXBIFIIZFAEERBERESR

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The principal products and services of each of these
divisions are as follows:

Production and distribution of
motion pictures and television
drama series and provision of
other film related services

Film distribution -
operations

Provision of hotel services and
gaming operation services in
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau

Hotel and gaming -
service
operations

Gaming promotion —
operations

Investing in operations which
receive profit streams from
the gaming promotion business

Segment information about these businesses is
presented below:

(a) An analysis of the Group’s revenue and

2 results by operating segment
AR PEEE
Segment revenue Segment results
ZBERE ZTENE ZBEAE ZEI\F
2009 2008 2009 2008
TR TR THER TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000

BERTEEREY Film distribution operations 26,580 24,420 (11,738) (19,128)
B R ER R Hotel and gaming service

mEREn operations 222,043 - (76,635) -
EXEESREHK Gaming promotion

operations 294,806 203,327 292,710 201,604
543,429 007747 204,337 182,476

PEEEERKA Reconciliation from segment

a5 results to profit before taxation
AOBEERA Unallocated corporate income 65,192 51,907
RENEZ AT Change in fair value of

EEEE investment properties 19,652 (11,930)
NEARBEEE Change in fair value of financial

LEREARL assets classified as

ATEEE held for trading 15,622 (14,877)
EBRE/ERR Impairment loss recognised

HEEE in respect of goodwill (24,862) -
RORLERS Unallocated corporate expenses (112,698) (144 427)
ikl Profit before taxation 167,243 63,149
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁl (ﬂf/gﬁ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) REEERSBEIZEEBMREREE (a)  An analysis of the Group’s revenue and
D (E) results by operating segment (Continued)
FXmERzWTZEREINERTE 2 W Revenue reported above represents revenue
wmoRAFETEATHEE(ZTEENF: generated from external customers. There were
m) o no inter-segment sales in the year (2008: nil).
DEEERSIEENRE TITBAAE Segment results represent the profit earned
REEXHFRERMEREZ N FEEE by each segment without allocation of central
BRAEHAIAMBRRZET - LAM administration costs, change on fair value of
FTELBAREEREUNDEERRTH investment in trading securities and investment
R HE - properties and income tax expenses. This is the
measure reported to the CODM for the purposes
of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
(b) ERBEXBIEESZEKEEEBEMRRS (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position
# by operating segments
ZBEAF ZETNF
2009 2008
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
DEEE Segment assets
—ERRITREER — Film distribution operations 73,621 158,738
—BEMBERISKELER - Hotel and gaming service operations 1,354,038 1,195,964
—BYHELCEER — Gaming promotion operations 1,022,182 1,018,529
NEEERE Total segment assets 2,449,841 2,373,231
KB EE Unallocated assets 740,434 231,936
3,190,275 2,605,167
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ANNUAL REPORT 2009 5



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
e E & "R o F

B % #t 7 B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZEZNF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

f_—}ﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁl (/ﬁ/gﬁ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(b) REBEEEBR I BE I 2 EAEBHERR D (b)  An analysis of the Group’s financial position
(&) by operating segments (Continued)
—EEhEF ZEENF
2009 2008
TERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
afE LIABILITIES

SEERE Segment liabilities

—BRERTREER — Film distribution operations 42,552 123,307
—BERIBYRGELER - Hotel and gaming service operations 735,732 543,371
—BRERLEER — Gaming promotion operations 10 5
NEABEE Total segment liabilities 778,294 666,683
ADEBE Unallocated liabilities 92,588 235,509
870,882 902,192
eI SRR ESERPREEMS : For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources between

segments:

. FBEEDNIRTFATHREDE . all assets are allocated to reportable
HERBE R REWE- segments, other than interests in associates,
AEEZEREE  ERAI#HR investment properties, available for sale
BEE RERS  BRATEK financial assets, convertible notes receivable,
ERRNegzBKEE -BEEE deposits for investment, conversion
KRE -FEHFE ReRBTE options embedded in convertible notes
BEDERBBIEHEZEERI receivable, held for trading investments,

prepaid tax, cash and bank balances
and assets classified as held for sale.

. FEBEDNPETAETREDH - . all liabilities are allocated to reportable
HABRBREE EECHEAER segments, other than convertible notes,
JER BETEBR AN deferred tax liabilities and tax payable.
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6. ﬁ}ﬁﬁﬁ*&l (IZ 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(c) HittaEER (c)  Other segment information
EYRMREER EERBVEELEER BYERLEER AR &4
Hotel and Garming
Film distribution  gaming service promotion
operations operations operations Unallocated Consolidated
=Lk ST\ FE LN “TT\F SR ST\ L NEA CTT)\F LIRS CTTE
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2009 2008
TEn YO  TETERYOM  TE R TER T
HKS'000 JlXU]  HKS'000 IEYU]  HKS'000 EGIeNU0e]  HKS'000 JGIEuU0]  HKS'000 L6000
HipEs OTHER INFORMATION
EEMERE Amortisation of film rights 20590 1859 - - - - - 20590 1859
BELHEREE  Amortisation of interests
in leasehold land 80 129 7599 90 - - - 7679 219
ng BER Depreciation of property,
REnE plant and equipment 1048 213 370 453 - - - 38,158 2,59
FESYNEL Impairment loss recognised
ERZHEER in respect of fim rights - 9760 - - - - - - 9760
BEFEEZERA Impaiment loss recognised
REEE in respect of goodwil 15416 13646 - - - 24,862 40218 13646
FEERRBEHE2ZHBA REVENUE FROM MAJOR PRODUCTS AND
SERVICES
—BEBAF ZETNF
2009 2008
TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEETBERA Film distribution fee income 20,073 19,140
B RERERA Film production service income 6,009 4,914
Hih B AEERBIA Other film related service income 498 366
B B R A Hotel room income 18,611 -
BmRRmEE Food and beverage sales 3,972 -
FER BB 2 RFBWA  Service income from table gaming operations 197,027 -
ATERELEER Service income from slot machine
Z RIS operations 2,433 -
BIEUHEESWEUER  Receive profit streams from gaming
promotion business 294,806 203,327
543,429 227,747
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6. DEER (& 6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(d HEER (d)
TRINEAEBRMISHME ZHED T -

Geographical information

The following table provides an analysis of the
Group’s sales by location of markets:

RESNEEFZBA

Revenue from

external customers

ERBEE

Non-current assets*

—EEhEF —ZETNEF —EEREF —ZEENF

2009 2008 2009 2008

FET FAT FERT FET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

BE Hong Kong 24,779 17,330 66,112 89,192

JEPY Macau 516,849 203,327 2,250,965 1,971,841
S Worldwide other than

(BB RPN Hong Kong and Macau 1,801 7,090 -

543,429 227,747 2,317,077 2,061,033

* ERPDEETRBEIHEEZEREERERTE *  Non-current assets excluding available for sale financial

PSR R assets and convertible notes receivables.

7. EEH

7 TURNOVER

—EEThE —EENF

2009 2008

FEx FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BEETBRA Film distribution fee income 20,073 19,140

B BERBIA Film production service income 6,009 4,914

HESTTEMD Sales of video products - 1

BRI YA Service income 498 365

B B AR A Hotel room income 18,611 -

BmRRmEE Food and beverage sales 3,972 -

HER SR 2 RIEWA Service income from table gaming operations 197,027 -

BT ERREE T 2 RISIA Service income from slot machine operations 2,433 -
B 1R HE 3 7 W U A Receive profit streams from gaming

promotion business 294,806 203,327

543,429 227,747
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8.

104

Hf =

8. OTHER REVENUE

RITFIBUA

WA R RE R
PSYYON

BB

EIEEWA

oAt B a8 IS e e
HAF WA

B BN

Her A

Bank interest income

Imputed interest income from convertible
notes receivable

Rental income

Management fee income

Other ancillary hotel revenue

Other interest income

Dividend income

9. OTHER INCOME

B 5 PR R At FE MR IR
B E 2 B E
 REFE UL A B 2 R R FOR
ZRME R RO
BO AR EER 2SN
HEVE - 28 MR
Z A
BN i 7)) R
Hitp

Reversal of impairment loss on trade
receivables and other receivables

Reversal of impairment loss on amount
due from former associates

Gain on redemption of convertible notes

Gain on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net foreign exchange gain

Others

—EThE —EENF
2009 2008
THERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
345 1,456
2,488 40
456 312
4,430 4,860
2,385 -

- 1

- 1,251

10,104 7,920
—EBEhE —ZTENF
2009 2008
THET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
119 95
25,179 -
17,254 39,000
9,760 -
151 -
2,625 4,892
55,088 43,987
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10. FINANCE COSTS

ERAFAZHEE
AR 2 HEE RS
ARBAFREHER
ZERITEENE
TEREFANER
BEZRITEENE
MAFAEHREREZ
HoAl BB
MEHEENS

SN

B ERIREZERM e

BR B Al Jas

BR AT A 2 fNER T 5B 08

Imputed interest on convertible notes
wholly repayable within five years

Interest on bank borrowing wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on bank borrowing not wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on other loan wholly
repayable within five years

Interest on finance lease

Less: Amount capitalised in the
construction in progress

—zzhrs JEEEELIC:
2009 2008
T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
5,359 13,729
19,520 20,727

- 47

3,973 -

24 -
28,876 34,503
(6,604) (2,981)
22,272 31,622

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

BEXME (BRIEEKA)
B

AN =

FERA (BEHEEMAR)

M -~ MR RREITE

HE L #is

I 5 1R F R
BERRKAITMERENSZ
B 2 N EERR
EEZER
EREEMEZ
rEMRNEE
BERNFAX (Hi15)

FEA B & N RIFRIBZ
B8
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Amortisation of film rights
(included in cost of sales)
Auditors’ remuneration
Cost of inventories
(included in cost of sales)
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Amortisation of interests in leasehold land
Net foreign exchange losses
Loss arising on change in fair value
in respect of conversion options embedded
in convertible notes receivables
Operating lease rental in respect
of rented premises
Employee benefit expenses (note 15)
Impairment loss on amount
due from associates

—EThE
2009

FHEx
HK$°000

20,590
928

2,821

38,158
7,679

31,565

2,314
77,651

ZZEENF
2008
FET
HK$’000

18,593
610

2,692
219
279

2,447
32,774

25,179
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12.

106

BIE (X)) ER 12.

TAXATION (CHARGE)/CREDIT

—EThE —ZETENF
2009 2008
FBT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BiE (Z8) HEWT - The taxation (charge)/credit is as follow:
HAth RARER 2 AHAFIIA - Current tax in other jurisdictions:
RNEFERA Provision for the year - (3)
BEFEREBEERE Over provision in prior years 128 -
128 3)
RERIE - Deferred tax:
REE Current year (2,976) 2,444
(2,848) 2,441

MRARAREMBARIBEMREEEZE
AR M 3k % T R B A B 2 BET A AT (Rt
BREBR QU ERUMER 2BBNERIEL
B -

AR AN D ) R M F 2 AR PIIE EEARBUE R
0 3R P P AS SRR L

b AR 2 BB A B R EHE 2 BITHE
R

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for both years as the Company and its subsidiaries
have no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong or
taxable profits were wholly absorbed by estimated tax
losses brought forward.

No Macau Complimentary Income Tax has been
provided as there was no assessable profits for both

years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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TAXATION (CHARGE)/CREDIT

12. BiE (X 8#) R (E) 12.

FR - ARG WA R AR SRS SR 2 HE

(Continued)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit

N before taxation per the consolidated income statement
as follows:
“EEhE —ETN\E
2009 2008
7 T B
HK$’000 HK$’'000 %
BRER A4 Rl Profit before taxation 167,243 63,149
B REHB % Taxation at domestic income
FEZHE tax rate (27,595) (16.5) (10,420) (16.5)
%153“?%2 ARG Tax effect of share of results
i7Y).8:7 of associates 2 0.1 (545) (0.9)
IR ?RSE&ZW‘%% #  Tax effect of expenses not
deductible for tax purpose (43,926) (26.3) (23,677) (37.5)
TEZHBMAZHBEE  Taxeffect of income not taxable
for tax purpose 65,947 394 19,681 31.2
RERZEAHEEREZ  Tax effect of estimated tax losses
RETE not recognised (2,296) (1.4) (12,062) (19.1)
BERER AR Tax effect of utilisation of estimated
EHABREBEZRBEYE  taxlosses previously not recognised 5,020 3.0 29,466 46.7
EEMAEEREE 2 Effect of different tax rates
MEBLE 2 TR of subsidiaries operating in
ZHE other jurisdictions - - (2) -
FARE(ZH) /KE Tax (charge)/credit for the year (2,848) (1.7) 2,441 39
13. HQE\ 13. DIVIDENDS
—EZThE —EENF
2009 2008
FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

RERERR/EDIR S

“EENERHRE

—1,039,509,368% I {5

FR0.02/8 T

2008 final paid — HK$0.02 per share
on 1,039,509,368 shares

ARAEETEAREBE_FTTNAF T+ A
ST-HEFEZRHBES -ARFERDESR

ERBEBE-_ZTZT
B B & /%0.027%8 T -

ENFEFZA=+—HLEFEZR
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Dividends recognised as distributions during the year:

20,790

The directors of the Company do not propose the
payment of dividend for the year ended 31st December
2009. The directors of the Company proposed a final
dividend of HK$0.02 per share for the year ended 31st

December 2008.
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EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share attributable to equity holders of the Company is

14.

BREF 14.

ARREERHBEARGERERALEERMN TR
AT 8IgAE

based on the following data:

—BELE —EENF
2009 2008
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AEERERZR 2 Earnings attributable to equity holders
KAGIERFEA of the Company for the purpose
FEIE BT of basic earnings per share 204,388 90,604
o AR IR 2 FILE Add: Interest on convertible notes
($0BRFRIA) (net of tax) 1,616 -
ATESRE SRR 2 ARQF Earnings attributable to equity holders
= EE ARG BT of the Company for the purpose of
diluted earnings per share 206,004 90,604
—EENF
2008
(&%)
(restated)
ROEE Number of shares
TEGRERRBF 2 Ik Weight average number of ordinary shares
FHEBREE for the purpose of basic earnings
per share 921,483,735 628,292,689
BHErTaRkoTE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
B Share options 9,369,800 -
AR R E Convertible notes 117,260,274 -
FTEEGREER T N Weighted average number of ordinary
T EBERER shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share 1,048,113,809 628,292,689

MRARAAFAEERBTARR _FTAF

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

ATABEREEABER —_ZTNAFAANA
EAEY  AESREALBEERNARABE
ZEENFT AT -—HIEFERBREZZTZN
F+ZA=T—HEFEZMEFTERBRRE
EDRERERES - ARARRARE_FTTN
FH-A=Z+T-HLEFERETRITERRERZ
B ARETEBREZITESENSRAMN
BRETEEEREINE  HAEEREER
NERBFABBzER -
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year ended 31st December 2009 and 31st December
2008 for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings
per share has been adjusted and restated respectively
resulting from the open offer and bonus issue completed
on 26th February 2009 and capital reorganisation
effective on 4th May 2009. The computation of diluted
earnings per share did not assume the conversion of
the outstanding convertible notes and the exercise of
the outstanding share options of the Company since
their conversion or exercise would result in an increase
in earnings per share and thus anti-dilutive for the year
ended 31st December 2008.
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15. EEE*U F;ﬁ 3'2 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
—EThE 2T NF
2009 2008
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
E=Y) Directors’ remuneration 5,655 5,203
2k Directors’ fee 360 360
e R HAERL Salaries and other allowances 58,597 19,077
LARE 7 S 5F 2 5038 Share-based payment 8,039 7,463
RIRE R B R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 642 400
EERAMMAZ Staff welfare expenses 4,358 271
77,651 32,774
(a) EEHe (a) Directors’ emoluments
ARAREECERH-RBUFRNTES The Company’s board of directors is currently
R=ZHITEFHEK - composed of three independent non-executive
directors and three executive directors.
FRENARRRESME 8% 56,855,000 The aggregate amount of emoluments payable
B (ZZEZENF 5,599,000 L) ° & to the directors of the Company during the year
EEHE_TTENF+_A=+—HEZ was HK$6,855,000 (2008: HK$5,599,000). The
ZEENEFTZA=Z+—RLEEEZHE W remuneration of every director of the Company
T~ for the year ended 31st December 2009 and
31st December 2008 is as below:
£ he EoRAhRE BIRERG R WRAEH 28 g
Salaries Retirement benefits Share-based

Name of director Fee and other allowances  scheme contributions payment Total
Z3\E R =tk CT3\E Mk “E3)\F
2009 2008 2009 2009 2008 2009 2008
THT IR TET ThT QT 7T RS
HKS'000 ISV HKS'000 QIS0 HKS'000 WISV HKS'000 JISNL]
mEREE M. Heung ieh Keung - Soa60 2400 2 1 - Y VI
BkLt Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Titany - S 210 2 12 - Som
EXT e, Ms. Li Yuk Sheung - - 5 643 12 12 804 - 1,531 655
HEERE Mr. Hung Cho Sing 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
fEstE Mr. Ho Wai Chi, Paul 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
PL Y Mr. Leung Hok Man 120 120 - - - - - - 120 120
360 360 5,655 5203 3 36 804 - 6,855 5599
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15. EEE*U 5] 3'2 (/,,f";f_ 15. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Continued)
(a) EEMe (&) (a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
ARARESEZHEHBEDT ¢ The emoluments of the directors of the Company
fell within the following bands:
EEAY
Number of directors

ZETNF
2008
Z % 1,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 3 4
1,500,001 7c 22,000,000 7t HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 -
2,000,001/ 7c £ 2,500,000/ HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 2
2,500,001/ 75 23,000,000  HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 1 -
6 6

110

FRAEEREANARAEETXVHE
ERIMARE B SN 2 RE KK =B
Lz fE - FATBEARAEEHEMLEM
e

During the year, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to the directors of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors of the Company has waived any
emoluments during the year.
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15. EERFBEX (&

by EEREFMAL
AEERFANRAEERFMZ AT R
ME(ZETENE WMEB)KQARES
H 3B 24,964,00008 T (Z 2T )\ &
4,584,000 ) + W B R £ K iE(a)?
RoRAFERNEBK=ZFZAL(ZET
NE =ZF)ZewmT :

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
two (2008: two) directors of the Company
whose emoluments are reflected in note (a)
above and amounted to HK$4,964,000 (2008:
HK$4,584,000). The emoluments payable to the
remaining three individuals (2008: three) during
the year were as follow:

—EThEF —ETN\F

2009 2008

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

e REAMER Salaries and other allowances 3,179 2,220

RIREFIFT B 5K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 36 32

LARE R S 5F 2 3038 Share-based payment 2,215 1,891

5,430 4,143

HEB=% (22T N\F  =R)5aFiE The aggregated emoluments of each of these
EBNzHecRERENT

remaining three (2008: three) highest paid
individuals fell within the following bands:

A

Number of individuals
—EENF
2008
1,000,001 L& 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 2
1,500,001 75 22,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 -
2,000,0018 7T £2,500,0007% 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
3 3
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16. R IKE 75 &

112

(a)

AEBREARSERE ST EEH 258
AP AEMEESRER LA MHATE
CETE ([RELHE)) YR=ZZZZT
F+ZRA—AKETHEERERESTE
(TExE]) - A&EEHMERBEENES
MEELTE - AEEBRREREETH
FHRE NEEREESABHARAZS%
BT ARA LR AEE 220,000
T WAREABELEESRARITE - &
ENAERREBREKABGIAER
AR R 2 Bz BB EH (B
BEMEER EAE) BEBASH - 8
BeFElvEERASBECEED RS
B Y- BEBEUEBEESEH-

AEBZMBRARERMFAEFREE RR
P94 [ BT AT & 3 30 2 O B IR 2 R AR
BN EIKE < RFIXBEAS AMEKE
MG 8IS —THE B - R RE N B
& o AEEFRPIRR BN E M2 RINE
NMEtEIFm e —EEDmZEEEL AT

AHR -

FA - RRE R ET &4 O 208 d R
AB50008 T (ZETNF - TH L) %
2 REEH A642,0008 T (ZET )N\ F ¢
400,000/ 7T) °

16.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

(a)

The Group operates Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under rules
and regulations of Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all its employees
in Hong Kong and terminated the defined
contribution pension scheme (“Old Scheme”)
on 1st December 2000. All the employees of
the Group in Hong Kong are required to join the
MPF Scheme. The Group has chosen to follow
the minimum statutory contribution requirement
of 5% of eligible employees’ monthly relevant
income but limited to the mandatory cap of
HK$20,000. The contributions are charged to
the consolidated income statements as incurred.
In respect of those employees who leave the
Group prior to completion of qualifying service
period, the relevant portion of the employer’s
voluntary contributions forfeited (represents the
assets transferred from the Old Scheme) will be
reverted to the Group. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administrative fund.

The staffs employed by the Group’s subsidiaries
in Macau are members of the government-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the Macau government. The Macau
operations are required to pay a monthly fixed
contribution to the retirement benefits schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes operated by the Macau government
is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefits schemes
contributions net of forfeited contributions
of HK$5,000 (2008: HK$ nil) amounted to
approximately HK$642,000 (2008: HK$400,000).
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AL EXY ENEL 17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
K& The Group
ERIE B RENELE  BAREE  HERRR bt 25
Furniture Machinery
Construction Leasehold and and Motor
in progress Buildings  improvements fitures  equipment vehicles Total
Tk Tk Tk T T Tt Fin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
A Cost
RZFENE-A-H At 1st January 2008 - 7316 1,251 10,736 37,601 3474 60,378
HE Additions 214,450 - - 324 378 - 215,152
ERREREH Deficit on revaluation
upon transfer - (1,179) - - - - (1,179)
BREERENE Transfer 1o investment
properties - (1,943) - - - - (1,943)
ENPBARELEL Reclassified from non-current
FREAE assets held for sale 274,196 3,049 - 514 - 195 277,954
BREHELEZ Transfer to non-current
FnBEE asses held for sale - - - - (34,489) - (34,489)
& Disposals - - - (256) (638) - (894)
HEHBAR Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - 2 - (2)
KZZSNETZFE=+—B  At31st December 2008 and
k=%En5-A-H 1t January 2009 488,646 7,243 1,251 1,318 2,850 3,669 514,977
AE Additions 302,876 - - 91 14,179 - 317,146
WENBAT Acquisition of subsidiaries - - - - 3 83 86
HERBRE Disposals of subsidiaries - - - - (3) (83) (86)
REREER Transfer upon completion (791522) 280,456 293,047 218,019 - - -
HE Disposals - (148) (687) (4,599) (65) (176) (5,675)
REEENETZA=1-H At 31st December 2009 - 287,551 293,611 224,829 16,964 3,493 826,448
ZRIE Accumulated depreciation
RZEE\F-A-H At 1st January 2008 - 3835 600 10,324 36,376 2,105 53,240
ERirg Charge for the year - 418 47 485 752 520 259
BRERENE Transfer to investment properties - (1,191) - - - - (1,191)
ERTRELEY Transfer to non-current assets
ERPEE held for sale - - - - (33,773) - (33,773)
HERLH Eliminated on disposals - - - (237) (637) - (874)
KZFSNETZFE=+—B  At31st December 2008 and
R=2En5-A-H 1st January 2009 - 3,062 1017 10572 2718 2,625 19,994
g Charge for the year - 3719 14112 17,780 2,041 506 38,158
HERHE Eliminated on disposals - (148) (105) (4,458) (64) (176) (4,951)
HEMBAREE Eliminated on disposals
of subsidiaries - - - - - (7) (7)
RZEENETZAZ1-H At 31t December 2009 - 6,633 15,024 23,804 4,695 2,948 53,194
REFE Net book value
RZFENETZAZT—H At 31st December 2009 - 280,918 278,587 200,935 12,269 545 773,254
RZFENFTZR=+-H  At31st December 2008 488,646 4,181 234 746 132 1,044 494983
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17. ¥ BBERRE(E 17.

RBE-_ZZANF+_A=1+—RILFE &
BIRZAEBEEREF 26,604,000 T (=
TTNF :2,981,00087L) RZTETZNAF+=
A=Z+—R8  #85F%279,877,000 T (ZETZT N\
F:2931,0008 ) REETLREEETL(ZET
J\EE : 488,646,000/ 7T) B IR E AN & E TR
TERZ R (FzE38) -

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

Included as additions in construction in progress for
the year ended 31st December 2009 was interest
capitalised of HK$6,604,000 (2008: HK$2,981,000).
At 31st December 2009, buildings and construction
in progress of approximately HK$279,877,000 (2008:
HK$2,931,000) and nil (2008: HK$488,646,000)
respectively have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 38).

18 *ﬂﬁiiﬂ_’,*&é 18. INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
TEH
The Group
—EThE —ZET)N\F
2009 2008
FTExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
2% Cost
n—A—8 At 1st January 521,734 7,294
BRI 2 EhAR Surplus on revaluation upon transfer - 7,562
HEBEEREYHE Transfer to investments properties - (10,690)
ERAREHEZERDEE Transfer from non-current assets
held for sale - 517,568
®R+-—A=+—H At 31st December 521,734 521,734
RiEHEH Accumulated amortisation
m—AR—H At 1st January 19,210 1,652
F N Charge for the year 18,191 18,240
EREREME Transfer to investment properties - (682)
Ww+-—A=+—H At 31st December 37,401 19,210
SREFE Net book value
W+=—A=+—8H At 31st December 484,333 502,524
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18.

18. HE LR (£

ARERHEE L ESERNEEROREA -
HIREFEATMT

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
(Continued)

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book
values are analysed as follows:

REBATHOFEZEA LI
T HATE

RIBATEARBE ZRF L1
T EAFE A

FAE 1 #E 25 49481,346,00008 L (Z B )\ F ¢
499,457,000/ L) ERIFIEA RN EEFERITE
2R -

B ERIE 2 ##H M $10,512,0008 ¢ (=%
T\ 18,021,000 T) ERAFEE R R
ME BERBFEETZ2EEIR -BEAHEE
FIBZ 527,679,000 (ZTETNF ¢
219,000 7T) ERAFEEHZEBMARF MR -
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Medium-term leases

Medium-term leases

Land in Hong Kong, held on:

Land in Macau, held on:

AEM

The Group
ZBEAF ZETNF
2009 2008
FTHET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
2,987 3,067
481,346 499,457
484,333 502,524

Interests in leasehold land of approximately
HK$481,346,000 (2008: HK$499,457,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Amortisation expense on prepaid lease payments
of HK$10,512,000 (2008: HK$18,021,000) has been
capitalised to construction in progress under property,
plant and equipment for the year. Amortisation
expenses on prepaid lease payments of HK$7,679,000
(2008: HK$219,000) has been charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year.
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19. REWE 19.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

rEE
The Group

—EENE —TTNE

2009 2008

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

R—H—H At 1st January 49,930 51,100
EEg Transfer from

— ¥ WERRRE(HEE17) - Property, plant and equipment (note 17) - 752

—HET R (HiZ18) ~ Interests in leasehold land (note 18) - 10,008

ERESIEARBIEHECEE Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (8,272) -

NFEBEZENS ORD) Increase/(decrease) in fair value 19,652 (11,930)

W+=ZR=+—H At 31st December 61,310 49,930

REMEDMBLEXEMGEMTREFIEERR
Bl (UFAEEZEEAL)AMER_FTTNEF
T-A=t— Rz HEMEETRHE  ZEEED
THESEERIORFHEELERUNE L
B - RENMEZHERSHPEFEERAA
EXx(FENEMBEER)RE -RHENLSZ
ENMBEETS A EL BB ERFRER -

HEWMEZ B AFEELG1,310,0008 T (ZF
T\ : 40,880,000 7t) B ERAEEFT
ERITERZER (H3E38) - REHALCRAEY
BIAEF 2B T o
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Investment properties were valued at their open market
values at 31st December 2009 by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers not connected with the Group who
has appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation report on the investment
properties is signed by a director of Grant Sherman,
Appraisal Limited who is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to comparable sales evidences as available
in the relevant market.

The aggregate fair value of investment properties of
approximately HK$61,310,000 (2008: HK$40,880,000)
have been pledged to secure banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 38). The minimum lease payments
have been paid in full at the inception of the lease.
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19. REWME (&

AEEREMEREFREEINOT :

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The Group’s investment properties at their carrying
amounts are analysed as follows:

rER
The Group
—EBNE —ZEINF
2009 2008
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRIBATHARE 2 EE Investment properties in Hong Kong,
"EWE held under:
FRERFR 4 Medium-term leases 61,310 49,930
20 )‘j@l}ﬁgﬂagﬁ INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
¥ N

The Company
—EThE —EENF
2009 2008
FTHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETRG  REKAE Unlisted shares, at cost 1,028,888 1,028,888
BRRZBERE Impairment loss recognised (30,299) (30,299)
998,589 998,589
FEU BT 8 A RIFRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,039,167 1,570,086
R BIEEE Impairment loss recognised (988,799) (986,223)
1,050,368 583,863
2,048,957 1,682,452

ERHMBRABFBENEER 28 LEETER
H-ARREERR ARATERBEHER
B AEET + A RESCER - St KB AR
HIRFI(EFERNEASRIE

Hittfed "ENHBRARIFEDBARDEE
JEBE-ARBEERR R_ZEEAF+-A
=+—B B ENMBRARE REER
HEBZAVEERS -
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Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company will not
demand for repayment within twelve months from the
end of the reporting period and the amounts due from
subsidiaries are therefore shown as non-current.

Other amounts due from/to subsidiaries of the Company
classified under current assets/liabilities accordingly.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
carrying amounts of amounts due from/to subsidiaries
as at 31st December 2009 approximately to their fair
values.
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20. AKIB LD TRER (;

RARBZMBAR z S REEDHIREH
AlEeE  EH2ERAAEMERARAELEZ
ARBLREFAMETE

RRAFRZBEANGF+_A=+—B2FEWE

RSN

21. B8

ENETASEELARSEM([ELXRESEM])
ZEETIRBEEBEROT -

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of the interests in subsidiaries

is reduced to their recoverable amounts which are

determined by reference to the estimation of future cash

flows expected to be generated from the respective

subsidiaries.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31st December 2009 are set out in note 51.

21. GOODWILL

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating

units (“CGU") identified according to business as

follow:

%N
m—A—8
NE (B5E45)
HEMHE A

R+=-—A=+—8
WA

»—A—A8
DR 2 REEE
B B N BB 8

R+—-—A=+—8

BRTE (B
R+—A=+—H
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Cost
At 1st January
Additions (note 45)
Disposal of subsidiaries

At 31st December

Impairment
At 1st January
Impairment loss recognised
Eliminated upon disposal of
subsidiaries

At 31st December

Carrying amount
At 31st December

#eEm
The Group
—EBhF —TENF
2009 2008
FHET FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
117,678 108,703
24,862 8,975
(24,862) -
117,678 117,678
93,287 79,641
40,278 13,646
(24,862) -
108,703 93,287
8,975 24,391
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21. BE (& 21,
BN S HRARMI EASITIEE S N FERREH B
NREEZBE2HELREL24,862,000/8 7T °

B R E R

BRENANE BERIEETINELRSE
fL-RZZBZAF+_A=+—H BEZKE
EHRRBERE) 2N T

GOODWILL (Continued)

The goodwill of approximately HK$24,862,000 arising
from the acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in note
45 to the financial statements was fully impaired during
the year.

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to the following cash generating units.
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31st December 2009 is
allocated as follow:

BERRIE Film production
BRI E Gaming promotion

REFE AEETEEFEEZEERS BN
ZAKEeRE VETHEVEEZELARSE
8B 2 B2 E15,416,0008 T (ZTT/\F :
13,646,000 7T) - EFRIECEER S EM 2
ARECEREEZHGRAEBEZT - EREIE
¥R rEARSBUNBRECTIERRALE
BRFESRARFEEETEREEZHE REY
FrELAzBHE RN  SUFAEENIFE AR
BEREAEFEEIE-
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—EZNF —EENF
2009 2008
FHExT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
- 15,416

8,975 8,975
8,975 24,391

During the year, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the CGU of film production and determined
that goodwill associated with the CGU of film
production was impaired by HK$15,416,000 (2008:
HK$13,646,000). The recoverable amount of the CGU
of film production business was assessed by reference
to its value-in-use. The major factor contributing to the
impairment of the CGU of film production business
was the uncertainty regarding the number of film
productions by the Group and the expected cash
generated in the projected future years due to the
Group’s significant reduction in its film production in
recent years.
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21, BHE (& 21.

BERENR ()

RAFEE  RRBAEECL2EB/UAERIRM
EMTHPREFEAERARET HEEGREYH
BEBZEARSEMZANESE  WEE SR
BYREXB ELR BN AR ZAELER
@ o

BEYREXBZASELEML ZAREERE IR
BEBRSELBUAFRT2%EREI LS
EEREEAEMNE AFHRESRED
B3R RHEH - WRERRIBEABYHEESE
BeEERSBUMEEZMSEZRBTHER
R - FREERAZBUHERERESFIEXR
211%  TIRMERAADESFYLERELF
HeMBEAMEZBARERE ((REELE
fIFER)) - MEAR & B BAMEREZ R
THEREBRA P RZEBRKR LG TERR
BRASEHEEERBBELRIEMGHRZ
BRAMEBEEZEME BRERFREK - X
REEENE - REXSANEERFEERRK
ZReEREBIHE BEARSEMEMNMAE
—HoTRER/BBA YRREABBZE
R o
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GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

During the year, the directors of the Company
reassessed the recoverable amount of the CGU of
gaming promotion business with reference to the
valuation performed by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, independent qualified professional valuers and
determined that no impairment on goodwill associated
with CGU of gaming promotion businesses was
identified.

The recoverable amount of the CGU of gaming
promotion business were assessed by reference to
value-in-use calculation based on a five year projection
of the relevant cash-generating unit with a 2% growth
rate. Cash flows beyond the five year period have been
extrapolated using 3% growth rate. This growth rate
does not exceed the long term average growth rate
for the market in which the CGU of gaming promotion
business operate. A discount rate of 21.1% per annum
for gaming promotion business was applied in the
value-in-use model which uses cash flow projections
based on financial forecasts approved by the directors
of the Company (the “CGU Forecast”) covering a five-
year period. There are a number of assumptions and
estimates involved for the preparation of the cash flow
projections for the period covered by the CGU Forecast.
Key assumptions included gross margin, growth and
discount rate which are determined by the management
of the Group based on past experience and its
expectation for market development. Gross margin are
budgeted gross margin. Growth rate represents the
rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-
year budgeted period and are consistent with the CGU
Forecast. The discount rates used are pre-tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the industry.
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

AEH The Group
PR F = REF
Rights in sharing
of profit streams
FET
HK$’ 000
%N Cost
R_ZEENF—F—H - At 1st January 2008, 31st December 2008,
—EENF+ZA=+—H" 1st January 2009 and 31st December 2009
—EENEFE-A-BK
ZEENF+=ZA=+—H 989,205
WA Impairment
R-ZZEZENF—A—H " At 1st January 2008, 31st December 2008 and
:%%)\%L A=+—H 1st January 2009
—EENF—A—H -
ﬁﬁm\z/)ﬁfﬁﬁiﬂ?ﬁ Impairment loss recognised -
R-ZZEZEAF+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2009 -
REE‘E{E Carrying amount
RZZEENF+A=+—H At 31st December 2009 989,205
RZEZENF+_A=+—H At 31st December 2008 989,205

BVEERERMD ZREMPTRE

415 B — 1

EERBUEEERNELEZ RN ZEN - BHE
FEEETARANERZREE -

o N SRR R 2 B R AR AR
&F‘%ﬁl}fiééﬁ c ARFREFEH A HMBAME
POREWEETNARRZER  URBREE
SERRZ AR - Bt - AABEFRR
BREAERERYIK-

R-BEAST-A=+—R ARTEFES
EBTAERERGENTTEFEERA DR
B MRS IR 2 T2 R 2 EE R 2
EEE PR AEL T RE R #HT
HAME -
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The intangible assets represent the rights in sharing of
profit streams from gaming promotion business at one
of the VIP room in a casino in Macau for an indefinite
period of time. Such intangible assets are carried at
cost less accumulated impairment.

The junket licences associated with the rights in sharing
the profit streams is renewable annually by the Macau
Government. The directors of the Company are not
aware of any expected impediment with respect to
the renewal of the junket licences and consider that
the possibility of failing in licence renewal is remote.
Therefore, the directors of the Company consider that
the intangible assets are treated as having indefinite
lives.

As at 31st December 2009, the directors of the
Company have assessed the recoverable amount of
intangible assets by reference to the valuation report
issued by Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, a firm
of independent qualified professional valuers which
valued the rights in sharing of profit streams using
the discounted cash flow method, no impairment was
identified.
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23. E_H/it Hj%Z@EﬂﬁE 23. AVAILABLE FOR SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS
rEH
The Group

—EZThEF —ETNEF

2009 2008

THERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

REBLTRERES Equity securities, listed in Hong Kong,

BATFEE at fair values - 16,800
REBEMERFSFZAFEBEDZERERT The fair value of equity securities listed in Hong Kong
R rmIEBABET - have been determined by reference to the quoted

market bid prices available on the relevant stock
market.
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24. FLE,\ l.l& aJ ?5‘: I E }};/@ l_& aJ *glt 24. CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE/
&%EW%Z@&IH\HE CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED IN
CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE
TEBRAEAT
The Group and the Company
W EWReREE
THRBREE RESZBRRE’
Conversion
options
embedded in
Convertible convertible
notes notes
receivable receivable
FAET FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZTENF—A—H At 1st January 2008 667 222
HEHEFSWA Imputed interest income 40 -
e (#itb) Disposal (note b) (707) (222)
RZZEENF+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2008 and
k=TT NF—HA—H 1st January 2009 - -
REBAIIRREIE (K ita) Subscription of convertible notes (note a) 17,527 42 473
HE R BUA Imputed interest income 2,488 -
BRAEWATRRERANE 2 Loss arising on change in fair value in
MR HAE 2 A EE respect of conversion options
BE}EEZEBE embedded in convertible notes
receivable - (31,565)
RZZEEAF+-_A=1—H At 31st December 2009 20,015 10,908
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24. B TRBER TR
REBNZZRREE )

124

EX

—+XBARQAE
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kol
1 B

BN — M REHE &
b ARAERERTFEEEZEETASE
7360,000,0008 T AT MR RE - H AR
12,000,000 T &7 - REEFHERN =TT
F-AZTNBRK WUBBEZH AR
1

HE_ZZNFF+ZA=FT—HLEFE X%
BEFEBANERARZEENBAFClassical
Statue Limited ([CSL]) P& RE L HERRA
RRARETZRERTRERE ([REFHRK
FR]) URBREARRER -

24.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE/
CONVERSION OPTIONS EMBEDDED
IN CONVERTIBLE NOTES RECEIVABLE
(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 26th November 2008, the Company entered into
a subscription agreement with China Star Film Group
Limited (“CSF”) (formerly known as Golife Concepts
Holdings Limited) in which the Company shall
subscribe and CSF shall issue convertible notes in the
principal amount of HK$60,000,000 in five tranches of
HK$12,000,000. The subscription was completed and
executed by way of Deed Poll on 29th January 2009.

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group
disposed the outstanding convertible notes issued by
Brilliant Arts Multi Media Holding Limited (the “Brilliant
Arts CN”) through disposal of Classical Statue Limited
(“CsL).
which subscribed for the Brilliant Arts CN.

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 5
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25, )‘j@ﬂﬁf} % N *EE 25. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
TEE
The Group
—EEhF —ETNF
2009 2008
FHExT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
EhEE R EEFE Share of net assets of associates - -
kS Goodwill - -
(a) EEBEELATEETE (a)  Share of net assets of associates
—TE)NF
2008
FAET
HK$ 000
m—A—H At 1st January - 329,678
JEIG B2 N B8 (BfiEc)  Share of losses of associates (note ¢) (14) (3,303)
HE A Cost of investment 14 -
WRIEL & (M ita) Deemed disposal (note d) - (16,123)
AR E R RREES Share of changes in reserves of associates - 12,061
H &g AR (#fife) Disposal of an associate (note e) - (322,313)
14 (326,375)
R+-—A=+—H At 31st December - -
(b) EHE (b)  Goodwill
2215 JEEELNC
2009 2008
FHT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
w—A—H At 1st January - 45470
WARIELE (K atd) Deemed disposal (note d) - (18,176)
& — B & A7) (f7ite) Disposal of an associate (note e) - (27,294)

W+=A=+—~
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At 31st December - -
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25. A& NTER (&)

25.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(c) HRERUBERAIATDV(HED (¢) Investment in Merit Noble Company Limited
(“Merit Noble”)

R-ZEZEAE+—B+5H AQ8H On 16th November 2009, Noble Million
BB A50%KE 25 > B 4 A FNoble Million Limited, a 50% indirectly owned associate of
Limited 2B 7 55 = J5 3t B ST 1 B 5T o7 — the Company, entered into a shareholders’
GREEIRE - AR B E R B agreement with an independent third party in

A + D]

o s " N " relation to the formation of Merit Noble for the
LEER(RRWEZE] - RERRRZ . .

o R o purpose of establishment and operation of
Noble Millioni% & #714,000/% 7T A R 8 . ,

o SR e restaurants in Hotel Lan Kwai Fong Macau (the
14,700 BB HTME - WHRRRE “Shareholders’ Agreement”). Pursuant to the
i R E 3 4915,680,000 7T ° Shareholders’ Agreement, Noble Million invested

approximately HK$14,000 to subscribe14,700
issued shares of Merit Noble and will provide
interest-free shareholders’ loan of approximately
HK$15,680,000.
AATTERL ATV -_ZEEHE+—A Details of the Company’s associates as at 31st
=+ —BEHRNES . December 2009 are set out in note 52.
15 R A S WA 7 B AR E Summarised financial Information in respect of
R the Group’s associates is set out below:
“EZTAF —ZETNF
2009 2008
THERT FET
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
BERE Total assets - -
BEHESE Total liabilities - _
=3 Turnover 8,042 2,000
B A 18 Loss before taxation 5,615 20,281
RNEEEERREER Loss after taxation attributable to the Group 14 3,303
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(d REXEIEBERERARN(RE])Z (d) Interest in Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holdings
e Limited (“Brilliant Arts”)
RZBZENF-A-F+NB REBR— As at 28th January 2008, Brilliant Arts issued
% 3 % = 77 % 17180,000,000/% i {7 - 180,000,000 shares to an independent third
RED HITHR A M423,853,9081 1 = party which increased the issued share capital
60? 853,908f ° ﬁt ' ZX%K%’%? of Brilliant Arts from 423,853,908 shares to
$ﬂ§aa25$;4%}§ﬁ5§§;8 OZi/i/f e 603,853,908 shares. As a result, the Group’s
AHESRETERSREBELA - interest in Brilliant Arts was diluted from 25.74%

to 18.07%. Such dilution of interest resulted
Brilliant Arts ceased to be an associate of the
Group.

(e) RTIBEEREERATD ((HHAERE] (e) Interests in China Star Investment Holdings
RS Limited (“China Star Investment”)

Rz TN \E+-_B=+—81 During the year 31st December 2008, the
FE AQF 228K E A FChina Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, China
Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited&& 7 Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited entered into a
N7 Z EE R EGlenstone Investments sale and purchase agreement with Glenstone
Limitedd] Y —H EEWHE WRERE Investments Limited, a substantial shareholder
330,567,000 T HECSLZ 2 5 B & 1T of the Company to dispose the entire issued
AR -CSLZFTEEENHRRERE Y share capital of CSL for a cash consideration
58,360,612 %%  EHREERER G Z of HK$330,567,000. CSL's major assets are the
HEIE 3T AN 229.90% » X H E=HIE 58,360,612 shares of China Star Investment,
BER-_ZEZNENA+N\BEK representing 29.90%, of the issued share capital
of China Star Investment at date of agreement.
The disposal had completed on 18th August
2008.
& 26. INVENTORIES
AEE
The Group

—EBhE —TENF
2009 2008
THET FHET
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
BIFK SR Finished goods 1,091 399
NESBRESTHET(ZZTZN\F : 195,000/ T) Included above are finished goods of nil (2008:

AR BB R E R EA M -

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

HK$195,000) which are carried at net realisable values.
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27. FILM RIGHTS

NEEH The Group
FHET
HK$’ 000
2% Cost
RZZZENF—HA—H At1st January 2008 303,576
NE Additions 7,309
42 I HY Expired (88)
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—AK At 31st December 2008 and 1st January 2009
“ZETNEFE—A—H 310,797
NE Additions 13,751
HE Disposals (23,629)
—ETAF+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2009 300,919
B REE Amortisation and impairment
RZZEZNF—H—H At 1st January 2008 252,779
VISR o Amortised for the year 18,593
ERRAZHERBRE Impairment loss recognised 9,760
Fe gl Expired (88)
RZZEENF+ZA=+—AK At 31st December 2008 and 1st January 2009
—EENEFE—-H—H 281,044
VIR e Amortisation for the year 20,590
i 6 B ST 85 Eliminated on disposals (23,629)
—EENF+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2009 278,005
ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ Carrying amount
—ETANF+=-A=+—H At 31st December 2009 22,914
RZEENF+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2008 29,753
OEEE AR Tégaﬁ%%j BiRE% During the year under review, the directors of the
EEMTPEIGEER A GETZIEE  E#HT Company reassessed the recoverable amount of film
f %%H}i%ZEjuﬁz@éﬁﬁ : ]Iﬁ@émjiﬂﬁFQ?E% rights with reference to the valuation performed by
hRRE 2 BB (ZEZ/\F : 9,760,000 7T) ° Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited, a firm of independent

professional valuers and no impairment loss (2008:
HK$9,760,000) on the film rights was identified.
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HE-Z

EE Ej H.ﬁ *E (/,,5 27'

E’%&H&%ZTH&@%%EE%%%%@EHM B2 E
matfl - EMEEEATERFHIRE18.70% -
ERARBARREERAEREN SO F ZMEHE
Bl ((EFER]) 2RERERF - AFHRRS
MEDREEREE - HERXIEBAETI R
RIFEEZTSZERHAFHERE - REX AR
BEZHRETREREET S RZFERR M
i IERRBEASEEEERBEBELRRK
HEMGEER2AAMET2ENE -BRER
FHRE - BRESANEERFEERR RS
MEZLE BEFRAMBE B -FTRXR
BRBLzA > WRIREARBB 2B ERAR -

REFEY 28.

SNE+=A=+—BI%EE For the year ended 31st December 2009

FILM RIGHTS (Continued)

The recoverable amount of film rights was assessed
by reference to value-in-use calculation. A discount
rate of 18.70% per annum was applied in the value-
in-use model which uses cash flow projections based
on financial forecasts approved by the directors of the
Company (the “Film Forecast”) covering a five-year
period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period have
been extrapolated using zero growth rate. This growth
rate does not exceed the long term average growth rate
for the market in which film rights operates. There are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for the
preparation of the cash flow projections for the period
covered by the Film Forecast. Key assumptions include
gross margin, growth rate and discount rate which are
determined by the management of the Group based
on past experience and its expectation for market
development. Growth rate represents the rate used to
extrapolate cash flows beyond the five-year budgeted
period and are consistent with the Film Forecast. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific
risks relating to the industry.

FILMS IN PROGRESS

HEPER

Films in progress

SUEh B R LAR AR AR AT S8 AR B 1R AT E -
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REE
The Group
ZEBhF —EE)NE
2009 2008
THET TR
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
19,238 18,379

The films in progress were measured at cost less any
identifiable impairment loss.
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29. g 2 JE LBZIE‘E%k 29. TRADE RECEIVABLES
BIRFPZBREHAINZATE - B FEUER The credit period granted to customers ranges from 30
KRBT ¢ to 90 days. The aging analysis of the trade receivables

is as follow:
rEE
The Group
—EEBAE —TTNF
2009 2008
FTER FET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
0£30H 0 to 30 days 86,269 22,721
31260H 31 to 60 days 7,763 339
61£90H 61 to 90 days 4,518 136
91£&180H 91 to 180 days 1,817 73
BiR180H Over 180 days 6,225 46,862
106,592 70,131
B B ERBERZRESRE Less: Impairment loss on trade receivables (1,164) (1,361)
105,428 68,770
EHHERRECEHERIRRZRERD T Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:
61£290H 61 - 90 days 4,518 136
H3#E90H Over 90 days 6,878 45,574
#Et Total 11,396 45,710
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29. ESEWERRR (&

BB RURAZAEBRES

29. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Movement of impairment loss on trade receivables:

rEH
The Group
—EZhEF —ETNF
2009 2008
THET FAT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
n—A—H At 1st January 1,361 4,034
BERRZBIEERE Impairment loss recognised 30 23
€= Written off (227) (2,601)
VEREY R i=EcgE] Reversal of impairment loss - (95)
R+—A=+—AH At 31st December 1,164 1,361

AEBESRNEREROEREBELEELR
11,396,000 7t (ZZEZ /A : 45,710,000 7T)
ZER  ZEBERWSAINE  EAKENTE
HUELREBBEE AEEVERZZHER
BAEEMERD -

EETEIERURRF  AROREER  AARE
FEEREIRUER ZEEERANSE LA
HEEHFHRAZERNES At ARAEER
RAHE ZRYCEEREREEETERER
YHREHARBHBRERB ZRE—SELE
BREE-
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Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$11,396,000 (2008: HK$45,710,000)
which are past due at the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables,
the directors of the Company consider any change in
the credit quality of the trade receivables from the date
credit were initially granted up to the reporting date.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company considered
provision for impairment in values be made in respect
of trade receivables to their recoverable values and
believe that there is no further credit provision required
in excess of the provision for impairment.
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%. B2 REREARKMBAYR
I

REERS Deposits for investment
7 Deposits

BT HIE Prepayments

o fE e RIE Other receivables

1% & 2 ©360,000,000& TR —EARAAZEE
Bt B A A]Bestjump Holdings LimitediR {5 £ A 2
AMITEERFE ERRRA R LA EModern
Vision (Asia) Limited&zReform Base Holdings
Limitedz 28 REMT 2 EEREX T 2HRE
BE - AEZR S 2 FBHNIE0(a) - S -
FENREREMENGE FEEEERTEE
B o

ERHERRE KR EFAZREAMTNOT :

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

S 3] AN

The Group The Company
ZEZhFE —EENF “EEZhE —EENE
2009 2008 2009 2008
TET TET TET THET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
360,000 - - -
12,894 59,644 - 6
18,196 486 423 215
5,878 947 45 605
396,968 61,077 468 826

Deposits for investment of HK$360 million represented
the cash deposit paid by Bestjump Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, pursuant
to the sale and purchase agreement entered with Ms
Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, an executive director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company, in respect of
the acquisition of the entire equity interest of Modern
Vision (Asia) Limited and Reform Base Holdings
Limited. Details of the transaction are set out in note
50(a). The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

Aging of other receivables which are past due but not

@90 H Over 90 days

ARREFHE ARZFERDEE /T EH

e HBARZEERELRERE - A5E
WERZFERE R TAERR -

132

impaired:
AEE

The Group
—z2n5 PRI
2009 2008
THET FET
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
5,878 947

The directors of the Company believe that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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31. BESERE 31. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS
AEE
The Group

—EBAEF —ETNF

2009 2008

TET FERT

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

EHRE Listed investments:
—REB LMz ERESR - Equity securities listed in Hong Kong,

BNV EE at fair value 97,641 25,713
REPEEALERE  TAEEBEZUATEEBMEYEE At the end of the reporting period, all financial assets
JeRMEEHUATFEANEKR ZELFTEREZ at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair
NEBEDNRERSHFABZHESEAEBMET ° value. Fair values of those listed investments have

been determined by reference to the quoted market bid
prices available on the Stock Exchange.

32. %ﬁ% —Z2VEREZER 32. LOANTO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER
LT RER—ZVHBREZERAEER 258 The loan to a minority shareholder of the Group is
EERIEERAHETBE=FE 7R RNEE - % unsecured, interest-free and repayable for a term not
ERERAEERHEE - exceeding three years from the drawdown date. The

loan has been fully repaid during the year.

33. EWEE ANTHIE 33. AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

ERAKERE DA FELSEER  RERARN

BREFRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 F=f

The amounts due from associates of the Group are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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34. BE KRB EEEHEH 34.

BFRRRTZREAKES B RITERNEIRF
B EWEFE - BHERFERZEER—RE
—EATE BIFAEEASHRSFTEMmME I
EREAZEPEHRERNEZREFE - Re Rk
RITHEBZEREREATEERS

R RERERME fﬁi&fﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁ
BREMBITIER(HMBRAEBERITES) - NER
AHERERLEI AN -Z ?jl¢+ A=+—
HeHReRkBRESEBENERGEVBMRAIE
ZABRATE B HARAT ¢

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the
cash and bank balances approximate to their fair

values.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand and in banks, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December 2009 as
shown in the consolidated statement of cash flows can
be reconcilied to the related items in the consolidated
statement of financial position as follows:

He MIRITHE %
RITEX Bank overdraft

BITELZDIEMIBHFE (N F3.25E E4.25E) 7

B o
o

35. DEAKFHEZEE 35.

RZEEZNF+—AZBRZZZNF+ZA=
B NEBATL B - Ao B K (E8,380,000/%8
‘&11 200,000 THHERE FTREMERDE -
MEREBE B ZEREMERYE - #E

1%2%@%%%&;2Etiﬁﬂﬁﬂ*ﬂm
EHEZEE -

134

Cash and bank balances

TEE

The Group
—EEAF —EEN\E
2009 2008
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
173,188 138,145
(178,764) (174,826)
(5,576) (36,681)

Bank overdraft carried interest at market rates which
range from 3.25% to 4.25% per annum.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 2nd November 2009 and 3rd December 2008,
the Group entered into agreement to dispose certain
of its investment properties and property, plant and
equipment at a consideration of HK$8,380,000 and
HK$11,200,000 respectively. Accordingly, the carrying
values of these investment properties and property,
plant and equipment were classified as assets held for
sale at each of the year end date.
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36. SHARE CAPITAL
BRA#E &5
Number of shares Amount
—2E)\E “EENE ZEENF
2008 2009 2008
Tk TER FTET
000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BREECOIBTZERR  Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
(Z2ZN\F 8k (2008: HK$0.05 each)
E{E0.057% L)
EERA Authorised:
R—HA—H At 1st January 2,000,000 20,000,000 100,000 1,000,000
EEBRAE M i2a) Increase in authorised
share capital (note a) 8,000,000 - 400,000 -
10,000,000 20,000,000 500,000 1,000,000
A& B (A2 ()i (i) Share consolidation
(note ¢ (i) and i (i) (9,500,000) (18,000,000) - -
ROFAE (Hite (i) Share subdivision (note c (iii) 49,500,000 - - -
BRAHIA Capital reduction - - - (900,000)
®+=—A=+-H At 31st December 50,000,000 2,000,000 500,000 100,000
BRTREERE: Issued and fully paid:
®n—R—H At 1st January 532,243 2,806,097 26,612 140,305
NHBEERETAR Open offer and bonus issue
(Witp) (note b) 4,257,944 - 212,897 -
WBin & B (Brate ()Ri () Share consolidation
(note ¢ (i) and i (i) (4,550,678) (3,998,187) - -
BERD (#id e hRk)  Placement of shares
(note d, e, h and k) 1,007,900 1,488,000 10,079 74,400
R ABURL (B ize (i)ki (i) Capital reduction
(note c (i) and i (i) - - (237,114) (199,910)
TR BRE (M ig) Exercise of share options
(note g) 49,087 - 491 -
SRR (1) Conversion of convertible notes
(note f) 1,000,000 - 10,000 -
g E—-ANE Consideration shares for
NRIETZRE acquisition of a subsidiary
Bin (Hizt) (note ) - 236,333 - 11,817
Wt+=A=+-8 At 31st December 2,296,496 532,243 22,965 26,612
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2009

36. IR
Hiat -

(a)

136

——
(%

REBZ-ZZNFT-A=+—-BLEE

REARAR-_ZTENF-—A-+=HETZ
BEFANAS LBBZ —EERRER  AQ
B 2 5% 7E IR AN i 38 58 51 3 Hns,000,000,0008%
TR EE0.055 T 2 Bk % © B #100,000,000
%7t (9 A2,000,000,0000% & A% @ 80.05
7T 2 B& 17 ) 8 51 £500,000,000 7T (5 A
10,000,000,000/% & BX EI{E0.0578 7T 2 R 1) °

RZEZANFEF-_A-_+ B A2AFMN
AHABEFNERBESTR0.05BLHET
1,064,486,0800% & i FI{E0.05/8 7T 2 A A &) 8
ERp EEAR-_TTENF—A=+=AEF
BE-REERMELREMBRBEERN - TR
RARARBEERNEEMN—RESRHER
= IR AT R B B AEE5 173,193,458, 240/ # ik
19 o fh & FT 15 ZUEF 2 T 2 1 4942,000,00078
THARREATRESHHIT o RRER -

RARBR ZZRZANFHA=+THRETZRRE
BIRE L @BT —AENRBRULAELRR
AZBRAEATES ([ —TTNFEAEA]) :

() BBEK: ARARARE - TES
R (E0.05% 7T 2 B BT RAETHR
B (TRARD ) & 615 REE
1.008722 SR (T BHR15 )

(ii) BRABIR - (QFFEARARAPE
% B 317 A HF I 190.997 7T 2 8 R I
AMBRAR A 2B BITRA UK
FBERITEHRN Z2EREERH
1.007 7T 4 ZE0.017% 7T + K (b)Bl
ARABETRAMEE ZERBET
ARRDBZHABBIE &

A4 SREET.00E T ZETE
ERETAHROFARI00REKRE
BHO.OVE T Z R BB -

(iii)

TERENFEABEER _ETNFHANA

36.

Notes:

(a)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed in a
special general meeting of the Company held on
23rd January 2009, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$100,000,000
divided into 2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
to HK$500,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000
shares of HK$0.05 each by creation of an additional
8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each.

On 26th February 2009, the Company issued
1,064,486,080 offer shares of the Company of HK$0.05
per share at a subscription price of HK$0.05 each
on the basis of two offer shares for every existing
shares held on 23rd January 2009 by way of open
offer and issued 3,193,458,240 new shares on the
basis of three bonus shares for every one offer shares
taken up under the open offer of the Company. The
estimated net proceeds of not less than approximately
HK$42,000,000 was intended to be used for
subscription of convertible notes to be issued by CSF.

At a special general meeting of the Company held on
30th April 2009, a special resolution was passed to
approve the following changes to the capital of the
Company (the “2009 Capital Reorganisation”):

(i) Share consolidation: every twenty existing
issued and unissued shares (the “Existing
Shares”) of par value of HK$0.05 each in the
share capital of the Company be consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$1.00 each
(the “Consolidated Share”);

(i) Capital reduction: (a) the issued share
capital of the Company be reduced through
a cancellation of the paid-up capital of the
Company to the extent of HK$0.99 on each of
the issued Consolidated Shares such that the
nominal value of each issued Consolidated
Share will be reduce from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01;
and (b) the credit arising from the reduction
of issued share capital of the Company be
credited to the contributed surplus account of
the Company; and

Share subdivision: each of the authorised but
unissued Consolidated Shares of HK$1.00
each be subdivided into one hundred shares of
HK$0.01 each of the Company.

(iii)

The 2009 Capital Reorganisation was effected on 4th
May 2009.
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E
36. BRA& (&
REBZE-ZEZRF+-A=1+—HLEFE
Wt (&)
(d) —ZEENFANA+—RB  AAFUER0.20

%mZF%ﬁﬁi&§%M¥&¥ﬁmA
800,000,000 & AR [ E0.017 7T 2 #7 IR 17
%ﬂﬁﬁﬁmwawomm%ﬁamﬁWEEﬁ
BEBRAEE-—REELS -

(e) RZZEZTAFEAZTNABE KRRUER
0228 T BRABUREERERETEH
207,900,000/ & R EEO0.01/E T 2 ¥ k1D ©
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁm%zwpw%ﬁamﬁxﬁsf

BEESR -

() TTZAFANAZ+—B ARAENE
L%Eﬂ%om%mm¢l5&§%ﬁ$%
8 /200,000,000 7L 2 AT R ER - REZE
ZETNF+ A=+ -HBLEFE - ZET
BRERZRELESRO0ETERAER A
1,000,000,000% % 5

(9) REE-_TZNF+_A=+—HLEFE &
THREZBEATERS 2 ERE  IRTE
B 8 R0.2687% T R & 49,087,000/ fr 17
T IR 2 BT 1S SR IEVF BB 4Y 513,155,0007%8
5T o

REBE-ZENF+-A=+—-HLEFE
(h) MRZZENE+-_A-+=8 AQFURE
FRZREROI2B TABIIREERERE
714 #£88,000,000/% A 2 7] B 15 © AT 18 30 IE %
%8 4764,600,0008 T AR REHTEEEH
%47 &4 % 560,000,000 7T 2 T Z 8 7 £ %
By
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T B ESERBERRXFA

it Notes to the Financial Statements
Z-ZTNE+-HA=+—BI-EE For the year ended 31st December 2009

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2009

Notes: (Continued)

(d)

On 11th June 2009, the Company allotted and issued
an aggregate of 800,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01
each to independent investors at a price of HK$0.20
per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$158,000,000 were used to finance the hotel
operations and for general working capital of the

Group.

On 29th July 2009, the Company allotted and issued
an aggregate of 207,900,000 new shares of HK$0.01
each to independent investors at a price of HK$0.22
per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$45,238,000 were used for general working capital
of the Group.

On 21st September 2009, the Company issued
convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 at an initial conversion price
of HK$0.20 per share to China Star Investment.
These convertible notes were fully converted into
1,000,000,000 Shares at the conversion price of
HK$0.20 per share during the year ended 31st
December 2009.

During the year ended 31st December 2009, certain
option holders exercised their option rights to subscribe
for an aggregate of 49,087,000 shares at exercise
price of HK$0.268 per share. The net proceeds from
the exercise of option rights amounted to approximately
HK$13,155,000.

For the year ended 31st December 2008

(h)

On 23rd December 2008, the Company allotted
and issued an aggregate of 88,000,000 shares
by way of placing to independent investors at a
price of HK$0.102 per share. The net proceeds
of approximately HK$64,600,000 were used for
subscription of the zero coupon convertible notes in
principal of HK$60,000,000 issued by CSF.
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)

RERRZZEENFREANBEITZRRER
ReL BBT -BARBIIRERAMERRT
ZIRAEATEH (2T NFEARER]) :

(i) B EH: ADRARARREET TR
BREEC.SHB T2 B BT RAHEST
W& BB —IREE.507% T ) (T4
PR )

(ii) RAEIE : ARF 2 BETRABR
BUEARAIRATGRE BTE R
17 8 R B ZR0.457% o i B - 4 w1 A
BEBRTAMBRN ZEREBES S
0.50 TR 2 £0.058 7T + &

(iii) KAREERAPRAE KRG 2R
H A B & #%0.50% L = & §20.05%
7t B UK E RN B1,000,000,000
7% 7L (% £2,000,000,000% & #f B%
%) " 4 £100,000,0008 T (9 A
2,000,000,0000% & % ™ {0.05/% 7T 2
B&fn) o

EABHEENR_TENFAANBER -

RZZEZENF=ZA+NB  AEEUHER
181,054,900,000% 7T W fEBest Mindz & &
B%# - £ 600,000,000 L AR & X -
384,000,000/ LA BITAIMBREE A XM
170,900,000 7T bA Bt 3 J 3 17236,333,333%
AR BHRRN FREZA -

RZEZNF-AZFTEH  ARRNAREER
AEGRO12ETZERABUKREERE R
% 171,400,000,000/8 R A A1 AR 1 AT 15 5K 1B
JF 58 £9163,500,0007% 7T J3 F i U BEBest Mind
International Inc. ([Best Mind B £ ) -

36.

it Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-ZEZTANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

At the special general meeting of the Company held
on 8th May 2008, a special resolution was passed to
approve the following changes to the capital of the

Company (the “2008 Capital Reorganisation”):

(i) Share consolidation: every ten existing shares
of HK$0.05 each in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company be consolidated
into one share of HK$0.50 each (the “Combined
Share”);

(i) Capital reduction: the issued share capital of
the Company be reduced by cancelling the
paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.45 on
each issued Combined Share in the share
capital of the Company such that the nominal
value of all issued Combined Shares will be
reduced from HK$0.50 to HK$0.05 each; and

(iii) the nominal value of all the Combined Shares in

the authorised share capital of the Company be

reduced from HK$0.50 each to HK$0.05 each,
resulting in the reduction of the authorised
share capital from HK$1,000,000,000 divided
into 2,000,000,000 Combined Shares to

HK$100,000,000 divided into 2,000,000,000

share of HK$0.05 each.

The 2008 Capital Reorganisation was effected on 9th
May 2008.

On 18th March 2008,
equity interest in Best Mind at a total consideration
of HK$1,054,900,000 which were satisfied by
HK$600,000,000 in cash, HK$384,000,000 by the
issue of convertible notes and HK$70,900,000 by the

allotment and issue 236,333,333 shares credited as

the Group acquired entire

fully paid.

On 24th January 2008, the Company allotted and
issued 1,400,000,000 shares of the Company by
way of placing to independent inventors at a price of
HK$0.12 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$163,500,000 were used for the acquisition of Best
Mind International Inc. (the “Best Mind Acquisition”).
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37. RESERVES

W2 TR 5 REEN/
RitEE BB RERE SERE HigE  (BHER) 4%
Share- Retained
based  Convertible Capital earnings/
Share  Contributed payment notes reduction  (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
Tin Tin TR Tin Tin Tin Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(ita) (i) (fite) (hita) (fite)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) (Note d) (Note e)
Y| The Company
RZFENE-R-A At 1st January 2008 1,356,450 207,548 47597 - 316,008 (892,068) 1,035,535
ERAA Net profitfor the year - - - - - 92565 92,565
RpE-HHBARE Issue of consideration shares upon
BRERR acquisition of a subsidiary 2,363 - - - - - 2,363
RERS Placement of shares 102,576 - - - - - 102576
RAERR Share issuing expenses (4,290) - - - - - (4,290)
BUARER Issue of convertible notes - - - 71,601 - - 71,601
EOTARZS Redemption of convertible notes - - - (33,672) - (44570) (78,242)
EiERE Deferred tax - - - (5,354) - - (5,354
BRELH Share options lapsed - - (1,304) - - 1,304 -
WD 2 5ERR Share-based payment expenses - - 7463 - - - 7463
EXES Capital reorganisation
- REHE - capital reduction - 199,910 - - - - 199,910
-HERHEER - share premium cancellation (1,356,450) 1,356,450 - - - - -
-BHZHER - set off against accumulated losses - (864,665) - - - 864,665 -
RZEFNETZAZ+-H At 31st December 2008 and
R=EZNE-F-H 1st January 2009 100,649 899,243 53,666 32,665 316,008 21,986 1424217
ERai Net profi for the year - - - - - 260,782 260,782
RELRZEREALR Issue of shares under open offer and
ERA bonus issue (100,2682) (59,392) - - - - (159,674)
EATAREE Issue of convertible notes - - - 23546 - - 23546
NENTRRRERED Recognition of deferred tax upon
EREnE issue of convertiole notes - - - (3885) - - (3,885)
BRUARZE Conversion of convertible notes 190,672 - - (23.414) - - 167258
RERTAREERES Released of deferred tax upon
i conversion of convertiole notes - - - 3753 - - 3753
BEOTAREE Redemption of convertible notes - - - (38,019) - (8,726) (46,745)
NEETRREERER Released of deferred tax upon
ERERE redemption of convertiole notes - - - 5354 - - 5354
BERH Placement of shares 195,659 - - - - - 195,659
L OEE Share issuing expenses (2424) - - - - - (2.424)
WRAR T2 SRR Share-based payment expenses - - 8039 - - - 8039
fiEBRE Exercise of share options 16,460 - (3.79) - - - 12,664
EREf Capital reorganisation
-RAER - capital reduction - 27,114 - - - - 297,114
BB Dividend paid - - - - - (20790) (20790)
RZEENETZA=T-H At 31st December 2009 400,734 1,076,965 57,909 - 316,008 253,252 2,104,868

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 “F=f

139



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED

T B ESERFERA2FA

B % it % B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-_ZEZANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

37. RE(E

Bt -
(a) BiE—

ERBRABRBEIT T ARRME -

(b) ARBZAFBABRBRTIIERBRAERR —F

ZoFAATHERMEB B RARZ #0E -

RAFMPRENBRARZHEELEEFESRA
REAN—NN_FAKEBERKCETRAT
B2 UWRE-ZF -8+ RAKAY

/

MERMBEEARRZZE -

BE-NN—FBFERE(KER)  2F

THABRBETHAIR - AT KADTTEHE
THIER TREARS TS RALEER LK
AR -

(i) ARRREHBRIKE
HfmEEEZER: &

(i) ARRAIEEZAZREEERSMmD
REEEMND HITRA RN EER
ZHAF o

(c) VARt X 1 2 SRR RS - 18 E
FEESEE
W ER

= VA RRAD ST Y 2 FROR (R
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AN—FBRERQRE KB - AR
BRI EER B RAA R ARETRG -

BENEEE

R AR B AR AR
REGFAIREREEARANREZRE 22
FEE ESBOURLERARBREZR
cBRHBHMZHBBARSERE
Bz FEEEHEERRBE(HE) NED
FEUHERAETRAREEXHIER AR

37.

RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the share premium of the Company can be
used in paying up unissued shares of the Company
to be issued to members of the company as fully paid

bonus shares.

The contributed surplus of the Company brought
forward represents the amounts transferred from the
capital account due to the capital reduction effective
on 10th September 2002. The difference between
the underlying net tangible assets of the subsidiaries
which were acquired by the Company and the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company at
the time of the Group reorganisation in 1992 and the
amount transferred from the capital account due to the

capital reduction effective on 10th September 2002.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of a
company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and
its issued share capital and share premium

accounts.

Share-based payment reserve represents the fair value
of services estimated to be received in exchange for
the grant of the relevant share options over the relevant
vesting periods, the total of which is based on the fair
value of the share options at grant date. The amount for
each period is determined by spreading the fair value
of the share options over the relevant vesting periods
(if any) and is recognised as staff costs and related
expenses with a corresponding increase in the share-

based payment reserve.
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37. RESERVES (Continued)

37. RE(E

Mt - (%)

(d)

RIBEEE G LR ER  RETZARER
BRI ERED AR ED kgm0
TARBRAFEEEREERND (AFEED
ERBRTATRBEERZTSEMEREE) - M
BOIMBRRARENRNDIAFEEREZE
BAGBREREN - BEMDERDRCER
RAFINE - AP SR N A R R IR
BEEAARERHER (BN HERERMEE)
RABEERRERD (ESSERREREAMN)
Bl e

ARRZBRAE R FEEER - ANANFHAR
71332,640,000/% B #1715 < E{E B &k 1.00
BILERETROSHETHMELEZSE - RE
ERBEADAAAMAFEI20EMBBRL — 8
RER WABREHEATAEINARGER
BErzeBERABERRAEBE HTAEREE
RUEER - fRREKE A A R F 7] A
ZHR#%-
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Notes: (Continued)

(d)

Under HKAS 32, convertible notes issued are split
into their liability and equity components at initial
recognition by recognising the liability component at its
fair value which is determined using a market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debts and attributing
to the equity component the difference between the
proceeds from issue and the fair value of the liability
component. The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The equity component is
recognised in the convertible notes reserve until the
convertible notes are either converted (in which case
it is transferred to share premium) or the convertible
notes are redeemed (in which case it is released

directly to retained earnings).

The capital reduction reserve of the Company
represents the amount arising in relation to the
reduction of the nominal value of 332,640,000 issued
shares of the Company from HK$1.00 each to HK$0.05
each in 1998. Pursuant to a resolution passed by the
directors pursuant to Bye-law 129 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, the capital reduction reserve shall be
applicable for meeting claims on or liabilities of the
Company or contingencies or for paying off any loan
capital or for equalising dividends or for any other
purpose to which the profits of the Company may be

properly applied.
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38. iR ?T ﬁg—ﬁ 38. BANK BORROWINGS
rEH

The Group
—EEBhE ZETENF
2009 2008
T FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

RITER Bank loans:

— BB - Secured 340,906 383,467
i - Unsecured 70,000 -
410,906 383,467

LHEEZHHAMT

The maturity of the above borrowings is as follow:

—FR Within one year 232,631 102,561
—EWF Between one and two years 103,007 102,631
MERF Between two and five years 75,268 178,251
AFMNRE Over five years - 24
410,906 383,467

B —FREEBIARBEE Less: Amount due within one year
2 FHIE shown under current liabilities (232,631) (102,561)
—F &Iz FIE Amount due after one year 178,275 280,906

ROTEROEEBERRAENEFE £
% /275,000,000 T2 E HERRBITRE
BEMERE20EF B ([EHER]) 28 A
60,000,000 T2 EMEFE—EAZEER
TRZERBMEFZR22E B ([THEKI))
X &% /70,000,0008 T2 EE B EHE KR
—EBARZEARITAXIFEMFENERIEE
(TEHMERIN]) - ZBEFUAEEREBEN A
61,310,000/ 7T (==& Z )\ 4 : 40,880,000/ JT)
CIREWMEEER WERTFRDBHEE -
EHERRERERIDN DA A EBERERELY
481,346,000/ 7t (Z T Z /A : 499,457,000/
JT) * 279,877,000/8 5t (Z T Z )\ F : 2,931,000
L) REE L (ZZZ )\F : 488,646,000/ 7T)
ZHEELH  BFERERIRERR-

142

Bank loans comprise a mortgage loan which
bears interest at commercial rates, term loan of
HK$275,000,000 (“Term Loan 1”) which bears interest
at 2.0% per annum below the bank’s best lending rate,
term loan of HK$60,000,000 (“Term Loan II”) which
bears interest at 2.2% per annum above 1 month
HIBOR and unsecured term loan of HK$70,000,000
(“Term Loan IIlI”) which bears interest at 3.0% per
annum above 1 month HIBOR. The mortgage loan is
secured by the Group’s investment properties with
carrying value of approximately HK$61,310,000 (2008:
HK$40,880,000)and is repayable in installments over
a period of ten years. Term Loan | and Term Loan Il
are secured by the Group’s leasehold land, buildings
and construction in progress with carrying values of
approximately HK$481,346,000 (2008:HK$499,457,000),
HK$279,877,000 (2008: HK$2,931,000) and nil (2008:
HK$488,646,000) respectively.
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WITHEE (&
THERERBEATNERBSHEENEAER
59 A18% 10 & § 2 83825,000,000/ 7T © 7
HERIEREHERINEREATRERAH
R—EARBEBDY BI2ENEBESRAEE - IH
SREEREUBILEE -

38.

ARREERR AEBERTEEZREER]
DEEERSE -

~

39. MEMHERK

38.

39.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

Term Loan | is repayable by 18 equal consecutive
quarterly installments of HK$25,000,000 each
commencing from the 9th month after the date of the
first loan drawdown. Term Loan Il and Term Loan Il are
repayable by 12 equal consecutive monthly installments
commencing from first month after date of drawdown.
All interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong dollar.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings approximates
to their fair values.

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE
F&E
The Group
RERE REEEZRE
Minimum Present value of
lease payments minimum lease payments

—2TNE —EEN\F =5 ZEENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
TEx TAT TER TAT

HK$’000 HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$' 000

ZaEMEREMNZ  Amount payable under
A finance lease:
—FR Within one year

EZEERFA In the second to fifth years

B RRHEE R

Less: Future finance charges

o R—EREIE  Less: Amount due for settlement
EBE2HA within one year

R—FRIHER
Z A

Amount due after one year

BREAEERER HETHSLKAERERER
EHA - FHRBRAF - NRBHENKGFE
YRRESAZANBYEE - MAEHREHEE
HEE MIETLXABE MRz -

AREZREREEBUEBEAZEEEEEER
e
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125 - 9% -
397 - 305 -
522 - 401 -
(120) - - -
402 - 401 -

(96) -

305 -

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its machinery
and equipments under finance lease. The average lease
term is 5 years. Interest rates are charged at commercial
rates and fixed at the respective contract dates. All leases
are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

The Group’s obligations under finance lease are secured
by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
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40. TERFE 40.

RZZEZEANFNAA=Z+—B AR2aWPEHER
& 317 K £ %8 /200,000,000 7T 2 4 15 4 7]
REE((TRERETRBREE]) - PHREKE
R EREEAS LEELRITERARRER
MEFBERBRZE—ZFNA=+HEH - F
B2 E A AR ERR S5 E F0.20%
(AU FHAR)BPREERETBRRZE 2 PRI
(1,000,000 L 2 B &) R ABERAR 2B -

RAFE FEEREATBREERRIGERE
BREEC20BETABRAARRZ EREEK - RNE
EZALFE  AEERARARYERARER
ZHBEEREATBMBERRE -

RZZZENF=A+/\H » A2F][ALucky State
Group Limited ([Lucky State®=E ) %17 A 4%
384,000,0007 7T 2 S HE 0 AT # AR Z & ([ Lucky
State P MR ERE ) - tEAWESIE 2 HMHNKE -
Lucky StateP] MREZBFF K ARSE - WFN =
T-NE=ZA+EBEH - BHYELucky State
SECERAREZEEARESBEEZER
% M 2 B f fLucky Statefs B W ER4E R %
FzEREBEZARE-_TE—N\E=ZA++tA8 "
Lucky Statefs B 7] 4% 9] 47 #5 #2 (B & %0.30/& 7T
(AT F %) #Lucky Statem] # Ik Z % 2 ek B H
(1,000,000 T Z & 8) iR/ KRR F 2 KD -
FA - Lucky State AR EEE 2 #HE M

ARRRERABEREEMEKDAER - BEX
Mz R FEEFARBER  NDESESHETT
BHZBEZHENERAATREFRAFE -
BT HERERSERKN U BRREE#FES
BT ABRKER -
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 21st September 2009, the Company issued
unsecured convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 (the “China Star Investment
Convertible Notes”) to China Star Investment. China
Star Investment Convertible Notes are interest bearing
at prime rate as quoted by The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited and will be matured on
30th September 2012. China Star Investment may
convert the whole or part (in multiple of HK$1,000,000)
of the China Star Investment Convertible Notes into
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.20 per share (subject to adjustment) during the
conversion period.

During the year, China Star Investment Convertible
Notes were converted into ordinary shares of the
Company at initial conversion price of HK$0.20 each.
The Group and the Company did not have outstanding
China Star Investment Convertible Notes at year end
date.

On 18th March 2008, the Company issued unsecured
convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$384,000,000 (the “Lucky State Convertible Notes”)
to Lucky State Group Limited (“Lucky State Group”)
as part of consideration for the Best Mind Acquisition.
The Luck State Convertible Notes are interest bearing
at 5% per annum and will be matured on 17th March
2018. Lucky State Group may convert the whole or
part (in multiple of HK$1,000,000) of the Lucky State
Convertible Notes into shares of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.30 per share (subject
to adjustment) from the date either the guarantee profit
from Mr. Ng Cheuk Fai, the guarantor and beneficial
owner of Lucky State Group is achieved or the shortfall
is received from Lucky State Group to 17th March 2018.
The Lucky State Convertible Notes were fully redempted
during the year.

Convertible notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The fair value of the liability
component, included in long-term borrowings, was
calculated using discounted cash flow method with
reference to a market interest rate for an equivalent
non-convertible note. The remaining balance
represented the equity conversion component, is
included in shareholders’ equity named as convertible
notes reserve.
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40. TRBREE (& 40. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

FEBERAAR-AEBD

The Group and the Company - Liability component

Lucky State FEERE
CIE: Y &% ARBEE et
China Star
Lucky State Investment
Convertible Convertible
Notes Notes Total
FHET FHET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$’ 000
RZZEENF—H—H At 1st January 2008 - - -
BITRTIS IR Proceeds of issue 384,000 - 384,000
KD Equity component (71,691) - (71,691)
RETAPZBERD Liability component
at the date of issue 312,309 - 312,309
FMEXH Interest charged 13,729 - 13,729
f& Redemption (176,759) - (176,759)
EAHE Interest paid (10,889) - (10,889)
RZBEZENF+=-_A=+—H At 31st December 2008 and
r—ZEZNF—HA—H 1st January 2009 138,390 - 138,390
BATATISRIA Proceeds of issue - 200,000 200,000
1 %8 B A7 Equity component - (23,546) (23,546)
RBITHEZBEK®D Liability component
at the date of issue 138,390 176,454 314,844
MEXZH Interest charged 3,425 1,934 5,359
ERHLE Interest paid (2,695) (1,130) (3,825)
#in Conversion - (177,258) (177,258)
fE O Redemption (139,120) - (139,120)

R-FTAE+-A=+—F

PR ERE AR =R RLucky Stater] IR &
ZBEKRDZEBRMEDRILA.61%K%7.75% °
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At 31st December 2009

The effective interest rate on the liability component
of China Star Investment Convertible Notes and Lucky

State Convertible Notes are approximately 9.61% and

7.75% respectively.
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4. EEBEER 41.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

AEH The Group
LNTAEAEERRZTEECHBEABREER The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities
% and assets recognised by the Group and movements
thereon:
WEHEARZ BER  REWEZ
ATEERE TRREE AVTEEZE @t
Fair value Fair value
adjustment Unsecured  changes of
on acquisition  convertible investment
of subsidiaries notes properties Total
FET TAT FET TAT
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZEENF-HA—H At 1st January 2008 - - 3,466 3,466
DlIEYNG Acquisition of subsidiaries 80,888 - - 80,888
FTEERIRRER Issue of unsecured convertible notes - 11,829 - 11,829
BOagfTaRkEE Redemption of unsecured convertible notes - (6,475) - (6,475)
BRE SRR Surplus on revaluation upon transfer - - 1,053 1,053
FAREBAR Credit to the consolidated income statement - (476) (1,968) (2,444)
WZZEEN\F+=-A=+—HB At 31st December 2008 and
k=EZNE-R—-H 1st January 2009 80,888 4,878 2,551 88,317
FTEERISRRER Issue of unsecured convertible notes - 3,885 - 3,885
BEOEfRTARER Redemption of unsecured convertible notes - (4,743) - (4,743)
AREERTRRER Conversion of unsecured convertible notes - (3,753) - (3,753)
BiRa WARTR Charge to the consolidated income statement - (267) 3,243 2,976
WZETNE+-A=1+—H  At31st December 2009 80,888 - 5,794 86,682

RZBZAFT-_A=+—R FAEEEEDH
478,288,000/ 7T (= % /U4 : 408,266,000%8
L) Z KRB FREE B R R ] I EE AR A o
B AREER AR ZEHN - I EERELHE
BE-

b N

MR AREETEF BB ZER U ER BT ES
$84993,186,0007 7t (ZZZF )\ : 86,734,0007T)
BRELERBEE
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At 31st December 2009, the Group had unused
estimated tax losses of approximately HK$478,288,000
(2008: HK$408,266,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit

streams.

The Company

No deferred tax assets has been recognised in respect
of estimated tax losses of approximately HK$93,186,000
(2008: HK$86,734,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.
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g5 @'ﬁ',ﬂ\ﬁ%k 42. TRADE PAYABLES
BSRAERZERITOAT : The aging analysis of the trade creditors is as follow:
~EH
The Group

—ZT)NF
2008
FAT
HK$’000 HK$ 000
0&30H 0 to 30 days 6,247 650
31£60H 31 to 60 days 3,614 48
61290H 61 to 90 days 101 17
91£180H 91 to 180 days 1,845 632
Hi@180H Over 180 days 9,619 5,736
21,426 7,083

EWEIRE - EFTEE REM 43. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, ACCRUALS AND

FE{+ K IE OTHER PAYABLES
AEE EPN
The Group The Company
—EThF —EENF —EThF —EENF
2009 2008 2009 2008
FERT FAT FER FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
B WEZ & Deposits received 15,805 53,731 10,000 10,000
fEEtIE B Accruals 88,831 14,245 8,156 8,123
&~ 5008 Other payables 27,565 1,295 715 874
132,201 69,271 18,871 18,997
ERDERR2ZRE 44. AMOUNTS DUE TO MINORITY
SHAREHOLDERS
ENAEEDHRR 2 RBEHEER 22 RAE The amounts due to minority shareholders of the Group

BENREER -
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are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

147



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
e E &5 "R o F

B % it % B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZEZANF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

45. W EE B 1 F 45.

RZTEZNFAAZTB AEAREHREER
BERER AR QA ([CSMLI) RAnglo Market
International Limited ([AMIL]) Z 82 ~51%M% #
Rz BREAR2ET - ERAEEMEACSML
RAMILZ 32 B49% R # #  CSMLRAMILR =
ETNFAR=THRARRAZEZERBARA -

P BCSMLEAMILZ B EF R REEFHBWT

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 30th June 2009, the Group acquired the remaining
51% equity interest in China Star Management Limited
("“CSML”) and Anglo Market International Limited
(“AMIL”) at a total consideration of HK$2. Together
with the existing 49% interest in CSML and AMIL held
by the Group, CSML and AMIL became wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company on 30th June 2009.

Details of net liabilities of CSML and AMIL acquired and
goodwill are as follows:

LWBEEEANRAE 2 AVEERR AV ER
Carrying amount
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustments Fair value
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FHEL
iz aREE Net liabilities acquired:
mE - BERRE Property, plant and equipment 86 - 86
BHERER Trade receivables 2215 - 2,215
Bfifke  BRNREREMEYFE Deposits paid, prepayments and
other receivables 9,655 - 9,655
ROEFRFERS Cash at bank and in hand 560 - 560
Blige  EER REMEMNIE Deposits received, accruals and
other payables (37,378) - (37,378)
(24,862) - (24,862)
HE Goodwill 24,862
BREZLDFEEATI ARSI : Total consideration at fair value satisfied by:
BRESRE Cash consideration paid -
BUBREEEZRERATE: Net cash inflow arising from the acquisition:
ERReRE Cash consideration paid -
ks BaERkFERS Cash at bank and in hand acquired 560
560

FR - CSMLEAMILA Bl AKX EBE EFEERD
146,000/ 7T %252,000/5 7T * ¥R FERD R B A
£ B% A B BLE F149323,00078 7T K 133,00078 7T °
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During the year, CSML and AMIL contributed
approximately HK$146,000 and HK$252,000
respectively to the Group’s turnover and contributed
profit of approximately HK$323,000 and HK$133,000
respectively to the Group’s profit for the year.
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45. WEEHE A E (&)

RBE-ZENF+-A=+—-HLEE

RZEBEZNFZA+NB  AEEBNERE
1,054,900,0007% T ¥ fEBest Mind International
Inc. ([Best Mind]) 22 2l # - &
600,000,000 7T LA 38 € X 1 - 384,000,000/%
JLLABEfTLucky Statef[ B EE 2 A AL F R
70,900,0007% 7T LA Bt % K % 17236,333,3338% A
RIABBERAZBRHZ AR -

Best MindE B20cho Sociedade Unipessoal
Limitada ([Ocho| * Rt EIEHHEREE T 2 R
AR R s R EE - LD Z0chok /SHERS
FEOchoMRFIFTE mIRELIS &8 v A —fEAVIP
BREHMMES 2 ReT €% 20.4% °

PR EERBEFBNT

45.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

For the year ended 31st December 2008

On 18th March 2008, the Group acquired entire equity
interest in Best Mind International Inc. (“Best Mind”) at
a total consideration of HK$1,054,900,000, which was
satisfied by HK$600,000,000 in cash, HK$384,000,000
by the issue of the Lucky State Convertible Notes and
HK$70,900,000 by the allotment and issue 236,333,333
shares credited as fully paid.

Best Mind entered into a profit agreement with Ocho
Sociedade Unipessoal Limitada (“Ocho”), a Macau
company engaged in the gaming promotion business,
to share 0.4% of the rolling turnover generated by
Ocho and/or its customers at one of the VIP gaming
rooms operated by Ocho at the Grand Lisboa Casino in
Macau.

Details of net assets acquired and goodwill are as
follows:

KRRz EEE LATEERE AYVER
Carrying amount
before the Fair value
acquisition adjustment Fair value
FAT FET FET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
I FEE - Net assets acquired:
BVAE(Wia) Intangible assets (note a) - 989,205 989,205
ROIFARFEAS Cash at bank and in hand 1 - 1
B A EWER Trade receivables 5 - 5
HihERFHE Other payables (6) - (6)
- 989,205 989,205
HE Goodwill 8,975
BRE(RALEE) Total consideration at fair value 998,180
UTFI AR L FBRERLTFEE):  Total consideration at fair value satisfied by:
ERReRE Cash consideration paid 600,000
BRTEERTRR (M20) Issue of shares at fair value (note b) 14,180
% 47Lucky State 2R & Issue of the Lucky State Convertible Notes 384,000
998,180
Best Mind WEEEEREE L Net cash outflow arising from the
Hemdess: Best Mind Acquisition:
BERRERE Cash consideration paid 200,000
BREzROERRFERS Cash at bank and in hand acquired 1
199,999
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45. WEEHE A E (&) 45.

RBE-ZENF+TZA=Z+—-BLEE#E)
Wit -

(a) BREEER —THTRBRS ZRFIRLES
HP—BVIPEREZFNAEBZEFREZ
TR o A E 2 A F (B 18 47989,205,0007%8 7T
NE2EBUAERSEMEMPBFTEERRD
ARABBRASRERETZHERER

(b) {EBBest MindEEBBREZ -9 AR
7]%17236,333,333% T W E (H0.0578 L 2 T |
f& e RABIEBAR 2 A FEME(FKMABest Mind
U BB £ 18 A BT 18 2 B % 16 (B 18 & 1%0.0675
JL T LARE E ) #9/514,180,000/8 T °

%

HE-_ZZAEF+_A=Z1+—HLHF
' Best Mind & Best Mind s 8 25 18 LA 5k
BAEE T EEF 4203,316,000 7T °

i

HEKE DA 46.

REZ-_ZFZENF+-_A=+—-BLEE
RZZEZAFNANA  AEBEURE
22,960,000 THE—HARREEZENBR
AlBingo Chance Limited ([BCL]) - RZZ T /1
FLtA=+—0 FAEEULKELSI,138,000
BTHEENCSMLEAMILZ 2 B #E T
—BFPEEETYEEERAR (AHEERNEE
BERAE) 22 EN B FDance Star Group
Limited e
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31st December 2008 (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The intangible asset represented the rights in sharing
of profit streams from junket business at one of the
casino’s VIP room in Macau for an indefinite period
of time. The fair value of the intangible asset of
approximately HK$989,205,000 has been arrived with
reference to the valuation performed by Grant Sherman
Appraisal Limited, independent qualified professional

valuers, by using discounted cash flow method.

(b) As part of the consideration for the Best Mind
Acquisition, 236,333,333 ordinary shares of the
Company with par value of HK$0.05 each were issued.
The fair value of the ordinary shares of the Company,
determined by using the published price of HK$0.06
per share available at the date of the Best Mind

Acquisition, amounted to approximately HK$14,180,000

During the year ended 31st December 2009,
Best Mind contributed profit of approximately
HK$203,316,000 to the Group since the Best
Mind Acquisition.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
For the year ended 31 December 2009

On 8th June 2009, the Group disposed Bingo Chance
Limited (“BCL"), a directly wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company at a consideration of HK$22,960,000.
On 31st July 2009, the Group disposed its entire
equity interests in CSML and AMIL to Dance Star
Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of China
Star Film Group Limited (formally known as Golife
Concepts Holdings Limited), at a total consideration of
approximately HK$3,138,000.
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REBE-Z2FNF+-A=+-HLEE

46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2009

ey EESESBENT Details of the net assets disposed of are as follows:
Hi @it
BCL CSML AMIL Elimination Total
TAR TAR TEL TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ez e RHEE Available for sale financial
assets 26,600 - - - 26,600
BRCHEEERRE Release of financial assets
revaluation reserve 25,962 - - - 25,962
nE - EEREE Property, plant and
equipment - 79 - - 79
EMAMILZ 7B Amount due from AMIL - 643 - (643) -
B HRWER Trade receivable - 912 648 - 1,560
&e BNFERAMGENFUE  Deposits, prepayments
and other receivables - 9,512 679 - 10,191
BeRRTES Cash and bank balances - 321 395 - 716
ERCSMLZ 5B Amount due to CSML - - (643) 643 -
BlERS - BETIEE R Deposits received,
HiERFUR accruals and other
payables - (7,101) (1,850) - (8,951)
52,562 4,366 (771) - 56,157
FARER Non-controlling interest - - - - -
52,562 4,366 (771) - 56,157
HENBARIZER Loss on disposal of
subsidiaries (30,059)
26,098
PTRBIAR M : Satisfied by:
HBeNE Cash consideration 26,098
HERELECRERTFE Net cash outflow from
disposals:
BERFRERE Cash consideration received 26,098
ENZBAERERS Bank balance and cash
disposed of (716)
25,382

MAEE BCL  CSMLEAMILD Bl AAEEE
BREEBOTHE T - 146,000/ 7T }2252,0007
7T BRI AREBFE R AR E 8 4£74,000
# 7T + 323,000/ 7T % 133,0007% 7T °
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During the year, BCL, CSML and AMIL contributed
approximately nil, HK$146,000 and HK$252,000 to the
Group’s turnover and contributed loss of approximately
HK$74,000 and profit of approximately HK$323,000 and
HK$133,000 to Group’s profit for the year respectively.
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46. HEWE AT (&) 46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2008
On 18th August 2008, the Group disposed CSL, an

REBZ-_ZEZENF+-A=1+—-HILEE
RZZEZENFNA+TNB AEEUREY
330,567,000 THEARRIZHEZENE R

AlCSL °

RZZEZENFEFTAZ+ LA KXEBEURED
10008 THEARARA 2 HEZEMBARFE
EREBRAR(FEEES]) -

indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, at a

consideration of approximately HK$330,567,000.

On 27th October 2008, the Group disposed China
Star Advertising Limited (“CSAL”), an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of

approximately HK$1,000.

Pl EEEFEFENT - Details of the net assets disposed of are as follows:
FEEES gt
CSL CSAL Total
FEL FEL FEL
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
T EEEFE : Net assets disposed of:
NI F Interest in associates 349,607 - 349,607
VERE LY &L Property, plant and equipment - 2
AREEZEREE Available for sale financial assets 5,498 - 5,498
[ EIEAES S Convertible note receivable 707 - 707
EWABREEANS 2 Conversion option embedded in
pedipgaiik convertible notes receivable 222 - 202
Be  BRFEREM Deposits, prepayments and
JE W R IE other receivables 12 26 38
e hRTHEH Cash and bank balances 57 - 57
e A& B 2 SR Amount due to the Group - (36,713) (36,713)
FEFTEE REMBEMFIE  Accruals and other payables (5) (7,221) (7,226)
356,098 (43,906) 312,192
BETEARNAEHE Amount due to the Group assigned
2B to the purchaser - 18,624 18,624
HERRMEENAEE Amount due to the Group written off
Z3E on disposal - 18,089 18,089
R Non-controlling interest - (1,183) (1,183)
BEERELRE Release of exchange reserve (19,707) (301) (20,008)
BRCRHEESHRFE Release of financial assets revaluation reserve 9,073 - 9,073
345,464 (8,677) 336,787
HERE QR WaE Gain/(loss) on disposal of subsidiaries (14,897) 8,727 (6,170)
(B18)
330,567 50 330,617
TS AR Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 330,567 50 330,617
HEZHREMEFE Net cash outflow from disposals:
BlHERE Cash consideration received 330,567 50 330,617
EHzRERRITER Cash and bank balances disposed of (57) - (57)
330,510 50 330,560
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46. HEM B AT (&

REZE-_ZZN\F+-A=+—HIEFE CSL
FHBEERSTEARSEEMIMEEE 5
AAEAEEBRE ST NF+-_A=1+—HLF
JE 2 5% I #5 2 548 4920,840,0007% 7T 21,566,000

BT e

47. HHEAE

RZBZAFT-_A=1+—H AEERBERT
SIBRERZEENEIATHELERNZ AR
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46. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
During the year ended 31st December 2008, CSL and
CSAL did not contribute any to the Group’s turnover
and contributed a loss of approximately HK$20,840,000
and HK$1,566,000 to the Group’s profit for the year end
31st December 2008 respectively.

47. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31st December 2009, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-

SEMEEENT : cancellable operating leases in respect of rented
premises which fall due as follows:
AEE

The Group
—EZhF —EZ)N\F
2009 2008
THERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
—FA Within one year 963 2,250
EFZEFAFA In the second to fifth year inclusive 1,128 2,151
2,091 4,401

REBEOFERAEERRENERNZES -
BB FOMFRBER - MPOMF2E

SEEFE -
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Operating lease payments represented rentals payable
by the Group for its office premises. Leases are mainly
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals
are fixed for an average of two years.
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48.

49.
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BARERE

REBRFERERFEZRBITRERNT

48.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following outstanding commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

rEH

The Group
—EEAE ZETENF
2009 2008
FTHAT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

ERERDETL - EEREE - Authorised and contracted, but not
provided for:

wEIR Construction in progress 1,049 163,680
g2 Acquisition of properties 1,180 -
UL BB BT 88~ B) (A7 7#50(a)) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 50(a)) 540,000 -
542,229 163,680

%Hﬁ*&ﬁ"ﬁ&ﬂiﬁiﬁZ?&

BERA-EE-—FAA-THARAZADAR
EEEA® BBy —ERBE K TART
R NWARE+ A=+ = RN B8 (8
MRS E))) - MM T — A EREE B ([
B E) -

ERRESS
EBPE Sz T2 HFBAmT

(i) tERE 2 8% 7 KR -

(i) SEERREAELEETMKRE AR ZEME
= HES

m W

o

\

(i) WOZEREMSRZ2BMDEREETE
BEARBTEZ B ETRA10% °

49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 27th May 2002, the
share option scheme adopted by the Company on
23rd October 1996 (the “Old Option Scheme”) was
terminated and a new share option scheme (the “New
Option Scheme”) was adopted.

The Old Option Scheme

The major terms of the Old Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(1) The purpose was to provide incentives to the
participants.

(i) The participants included any employee or
director of any members of the Group.

(iii) The maximum number of shares in respect of

which share options might be granted must not

exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the

Company from time to time.
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BEZ

49. UREZEURD T 2R

%(,,,5)

ERRETE(E)

(iv) BRSEENERZBREMYRZRKRN
FBR M ERBERRR -2EERLEZ
BREMEBTRABTIROESH T
BHETE 2 &) FR225% -

(v) [EUERETNZEREGARIERR
RERS 2 APk AP 1T

(vi) BERBEZTESTSBEERMAP LT+

Eo
(viiy AERAZENKELE BHELF308 AEHE
Pt (anER) - T RARQ A X MIBTHR

AR ERE

(vii) BREZTEEEATIIZERSE :

a. MERERERBBRER A
hEARZBARBEFERENZF
BT E80% BHE &

b. AREEREMN <HE -

RN ERRESFECR “HERAZTLH
B Ak BEBRETRIEEBRETEMER
B MEMAR LR IEATIRERRER B E R
MEARITEZBRENDABR LA REER
PRt &) R T AT ©

N-_EE—
— ==
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49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)
The Old Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The maximum number of shares in respect
of which share options might be granted to a
participant, when aggregate with shares issued
and issuable under any share option granted to
the same participant, must not exceed 25% of
the maximum shares from time to time.

Any share option may be exercised in whole or
in part at any time after the date on which the
share option is deemed to be granted.

The exercisable period of a share option must
not exceed a period of 10 years commencing on
the date of acceptance.

The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date
of the offer of the grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the
Company.

The exercise price of a share option must be the
higher of:

a. a price not less than 80% of the average
closing price of a share of the Company
for the 5 trading days immediately
preceding the grant; and

b. the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

As the Old Option Scheme was terminated on 27th

May 2002, no further share options can be granted

under the Old Option Scheme thereafter. However, all

outstanding share options granted under the Old Option

Scheme prior to the said termination shall remain valid

and exercisable in accordance with the provisions of
the Old Option Scheme.
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49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme

The major terms of the New Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(1) The purpose is to provide incentives and
rewards to the participants for their contribution
or potential contribution to the Group.

(i) The participants include:

(1) (a) any directors or proposed
director (whether executive or
non-executive including any
independent non-executive
director), employee or proposed
employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the
Company and any entity in which
the Company, directly or indirectly,
holds any equity interests
(collectively the “Interested
Group”) or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;

(b) any individual for the time
being seconded to work for any
member of the Interested Group
or any substantial shareholder
of the Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(c) any holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Interested
Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;
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49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)
(i) The participants include: (Continued)

(1) (d) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(e) any research assistant, technician,
adviser, consultant, artist, actor,
actress of, and any research
company, technical support
company, advisory company,
consultancy company, production
company, advertising company,
distribution company and
professional services company
to any member of the Interested
Group or any substantial
shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a
substantial shareholder of the
Company;

(f) any supplier, producer, director
or licensor of films, television
programmes, video features,
goods or services to any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;
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49.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

The New Option Scheme (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

The participants include: (Continued)
(1) (9) any customer, licensee (including
any sub-licensee) or distributor of
films television programmes, video
features, goods or services of any
member of the Interested Group
or any substantial shareholder
of the Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company;

(h) any landlord or tenant (including
any sub-tenant) of any member
of the Interested Group or any
substantial shareholder of the
Company or any company
controlled by a substantial
shareholder of the Company; and

(2) any company controlled by one or more
persons belonging to any of the above
classes of participants.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which share options may be granted under the
New Option Scheme must not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of approval of the New Option Scheme
and such limit might be refreshed by the
shareholders in general meeting. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of share
options available for issue under the New
Option Scheme (after refreshment) at the date
of this annual report was 234,928,636, which
represented approximately 8.13% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of this
annual report.
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The New Option Scheme (Continued)

(iv) The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options
granted to each participant (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding share options) in 12
month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue from time to time unless the same is
approved by the shareholders.

(v) The exercisable period should be determined by
the board of directors upon grant of the share
option but in any event should not exceed 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

(vi) Save as determined by the board of directors
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant
share options, there is no general requirement
that a share option must be held for any
minimum period before it can be exercised.

(vii)  The acceptance of a share option, if accepted,
must be made within 30 days from the date of
grant with a non-refundable payment of HK$1
from the grantee to the Company.

(viii)  The exercise price of a share option must be the
highest of:

a. the closing price of a share of the
Company on the date of grant;

b. the average closing price of a share
of the Company for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

C. the nominal value of a share of the
Company.

(ix) The New Option Scheme is effective for 10 years
from the date of adoption until 26th May 2012.
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49. L ggigm BELRMOZF23  49. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
2 /,,g TRANSACTION (Continued)
TEEEARTTERRE EF AEEEER The following table discloses details of the Company’s
H2EBEMBARRBREZFBRZSHME share options held by the Company’s substantial
REEE: shareholders, directors, the Group's employees and
other participants and movements in such holdings:
it 2163
t2Rzt-8 i 3
Ho38NE R-%8E # T2
§RF  -B-B HCBBAE MCSBNE RCSIAE RCBEAR -A-B 0 CSEAE RCEEAE RCREAE RCSEAE RCEEME It-8
sagg iR ek BR  HAMR 5 EL] At MEDRER  MAEE  RN/EB EL &t fif RENEEE  HAGR
Outstanding Transfer
Transfer asat Lapsed/ between
Outstanding Lapsed ~ Adjustment Granted ~ between 31122008 Expired  Adjustment Granted  Exercised  category Outstanding
Category Exercisable Exercise price asat during during during  category and during during during during during asat
of Participants Name of scheme period®  pershare 01012008 2008 2008 2008 during 2008 01012009 2009 2009 2009 2009 2009 31122009
AL
HK
FAAEERRRES  ERREE 28032000 - 27032010 64226 1,001,088 - (90%80) - - 0008 - (601) - - - 2409
Substantialshareholders Ol Option Scheme  02.06.2000 - 01.06 2010 S 453058 BNkt - 53% - (34406) - - - 10910
and directors of
he Company™
HEhiE 16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 6568 240410 - (639) - - 208 - (182%) - - - 5,786
New Option Scheme ~ 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 2060 496,13 - (65 - - 9612 - (3rem0) - - - 11,942
2,190,892 - (1971804 - 219088 - (16635 - - - 52734
pVCEES g 16.07.2002 - 15.07.2012 6568 1204574 - (1084117) - - (91,464) - - - 28,99
Director ofthe Company™** New Option Scheme ~ 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 N 2480677 - (22%809) - 088 - (188369) - - - 59,709
17.07.2009 - 16.07.2010 0268 - - - - - - - 10395000 - - 10395000
3,685,251 - (331672) - - W - (29823) 10395000 - - 1048370
1EHER ERhiE 05.01.1999 - 0401.2009 1616 a - ) - 4 (4 - - - - -
Employees of the Group Ol Option Scheme ~ 28.03.2000- 27.03.2010 64206 260861 S (o5 - - 26,067 - (1979) - - - 6,274
(12.06.2000 - 01.06.2010 S 43 - (Wr%) - - 5% - () - - - 10909
i 16.07.2002 - 15,07.2012 65680 2409149 - (682 - - 20915 - (1) - - - 57988
New Option Scheme ~17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 A 2480877 - (22%609) - - 088 - (188369) - - - 59,709
13.122004 - 12.12.2014 1090 6513812 - [580240) (35691 5601 - () - - 8 156786
0402.2005 - 03022015 060 2BITHL  (4559068)  (19,258,086) - (15307) 1986713 - (1508507) - - B 515040
30.12.2005 - 2.12.2015 9% 7181477 - (64633%9) - - T84 - 5% - - - g
11.2006- 20.11.2016 1060 13,007,624 - (172862 - - 130 - (0191) - - -
205,007 - 24052017 1608 23542003 - (21187809) - (oaB) 171936 - (131070) - - 1B 5666%
27.08.2007 - 6062017 1600 15676575 - (141089%9) (556388 1011,269 - (678 - B 172 N1
B102007- 210017 TR0 66170000 - (59553000] - (13740000 5243000 - [3910) - - B0TI9 1592696
21,08.2008 - 20082018 098 - - 21,395,000 - 2135000 - (1625214 - - T8 58eTded
17.07.2009- 16.07.2010 0268 - - - - - - - - 63830000 (19,378,000) - 4441000
163672829 (4559668) (143.201844) 21305000  (2983.098) 34322319 (4 (2606100) 6389000 (19378000) 1455081 54178276
ApaEz HEhiE 16.07.2002- 15.07.2012 6568 481896 - (43%469) - 1 - (3588) - - - 115076
Other partcipants New Option Scheme ~ 17.07.2003 - 16.07.2013 260 769,156 - (B89s) - - T5006 S 1K) - - - 183
13.12.2004 - 12.12.2014 1000 12832210 - (15489) - BRT 1608001 - (121650) - - (838) 30888
04.02.2005 - 03.02.2015 060" 15638576 - (14074719) B0 T893 (11497T)  (1303670) - - (B8 2614%
30.12.2005- 9122015 006 13461879 - (1211569) - - 136 - (0216) - - R
21.11,2006 - 20.1.2016 1080 9770718 - (B79354) - - - () - - - %M
25.05.2007 - 24052017 1608 33,301,864 - (g71678) STABM4 390509 - (2085008) - - (1834 801568
27.06.2007 - 6082017 1600 11,127,762 - (10014.95) - BEN 166916¢ - (1%7401) - S (IR T
23102007 - 2102017 TR0 46530000 - (377000) 1374000 6,027,000 - (45T8319) - (30719 119,966
21.08.2008 - 20082018 098" - - 255,000 - 2515000 (1.088608) (17.095692) - - (aT73) 3612872
17.07.2009 - 16.07.2010 0268 - - - - - - - - 20700000 (29,709,000) - -
155,140 461 - (130626419 2515000 20839098 41013040 (1183675) (31141.296) 29709000 (20709000 (1455981) 7232088
WAB9AI  (4559668) (288116793 43910000 - T5O002  (1183679) (57648493 103943000 (49.087.000) - T1946800
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49.

TRANSACTION (Continued)

*

ok

(if)

The exercise prices and numbers of share options
which remained outstanding during the year (except
the share options granted during the year) have been
adjusted due to completion of open offer with bonus

issue and capital reorganisation during the year.

Represented the share options held by Mr. Heung Wah
Keung and Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, the substantial

shareholders and directors of the Company.

Represented the share options held by Ms. Li Yuk

Sheung, a director of the Company.

The exercisable period commenced on the date of

grant of the relevant share options.

Four share options expired during the year.

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately
before the date of grant of share options in 2009 was
HK$0.260 per share.

No share option was cancelled (2008: nil) during the
year 2009.

Share-based payment expenses

Following to the adoption of HKFRS 2, Share-based
Payment, the fair value of the employee services

received in exchange for the grant of the options after

7th November 2002 is recognised as an expense. The

total amount to be expensed over the vesting period is

determined by reference to the fair value of the options

granted.
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EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTION (Continued)

Share-based payment expenses (Continued)

The estimated fair value of the options is measured
based on Binomial Option Pricing Model. The variables
input into the model are as follows:

rEH
The Group
—EENF
2008
REFE B B2 IN#EF Weighted average share price at
Ax(E (BIT) measurement date (HK$) 0.260 0.275
MmEFEHTEE (Br) Weighted average exercise price (HK$) 0.268 0.236
TEHR R IR (LA Expected volatility (expressed as
B85 R weighted average volatility) 123.98% 70.03%
BB AR HR (DA DA 19 No. of years for option life (expressed
FEITIR) as weighted average life) 1 5
TEHRR B Expected dividends - -
42 e g M) Risk-free interest rate 0.060% 3.019%
REFE B B2 IN#EF Weighted average fair value at
NEEEGET) measurement date (HK$) 0.0773 0.1700

FEHR R 0 LA B R iR (IR kg 2 P g &
BREPFTE) REL - BHREBUABERE R
AEE-IRAZIBRRZEDNEH DT EE
ZEFELEERTE -

BRETDREBERBGEEMR L o RE G LE
AFBBZ REREH BBz AV EEFE
Rz BREETS R L ERE -
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The expected volatility is based on historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options). Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
The condition has not been taken into account in the
grant date fair value measurement of the services
received. There were no market conditions associated
with the share options granted.
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50.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,

the Group entered into the following transactions with

related parties:

(a)

On 29th April 2009, Bestjump Holdings Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Ms Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany, an executive
director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, in respect of the acquisition (the
“Acquisition”) of the entire equity interest of
Modern Vision (Asia) Limited and Reform Base
Holdings Limited (collectively referred as to the
“Target Companies”) and outstanding loans
in an aggregate amount of HK$750,810,007
due by the Targeted Companies with a total
consideration of HK$900,000,000 (subjected
The
Consideration shall be satisfied by cash deposit
of HK$360,000,000, HK$350,000,000 convertible
notes to be issued by the Company and the
balance of HK$191,000,000 in cash or by the
issue of promissory note upon completion.

to adjustment) (the “Consideration”).

The Consideration is subject to adjustment
in case the total gross floor area granted is
by Macau government is less than the gross
floor area previously published in the Macau
Official Gazette. The major assets of the Target
Companies are their aggregate 75% equity
interest in a Macau incorporated entity which
owned 100% interest in a lot of land, namely
Lote C7 do Plano de Urbanizacao da Baia de
Paria Grande, located in Nam van Lakes Zone,
at Avenida Doutor Stanley Ho. The Acquisition is
regarded as a connected transaction pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
the transaction were set out in the Company’s
circular dated 17th August 2009.
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&k Notes to the Financial Statements
ENFE+=HA=1+—RBIEE For the year ended 31st December 2009

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors
confirm that the terms of the agreement of the
Acquisition are fair and reasonable and the
Acquisition is in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole. The Acquisition
was approved by independent shareholders
on 3rd September 2009 but has not been
completed up to reporting date and deposits
for investment of HK$360,000,000 is classified
as deposits, prepayment and other receivables
in the consolidated financial statements of the
Group at 31st December 2009.

On 11th March 2009, the Group entered into
a loan facility agreement with China Star
Investment pursuant to which the Group was
granted loan facility of up to HK$200,000,000.
The Group subsequently has drawn the loan of
HK$200,000,000 (“Loan Advance”). On 23rd July
2009, the Company and China Star Investment
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant
to which the Company has agreed to issue and
China Star Investment has agreed to subscribe
or procure subscription for a 3-year convertible
note in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000,
the subscription price of which shall be satisfied
by setting off against the Loan Advance. The
China Star Investment Convertible Notes was
subscribed on 21st September 2009 and fully
converted into 1,000,000,000 shares of the
Company on October and December 2009. The
Company becomes an associate of China Star
Investment. Mr Heung Wah Keung and Ms Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany are the common directors and
have beneficial interests in the Company and
China Star Investment.

For the year ended 31st December 2009, the
Group has paid interest expenses amounted to
approximately HK$3,973,000 in respect of the
Loan Advance.

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 5



CHINA STAR ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED
& E & B R 2 7

B % #t 7 B 5 Notes to the Financial Statements

BE-ZEZNF+-A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December 2009

50. Ej{ Bﬁﬁ* + fé% (/,Z/fég 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
REBEE-_ZETNAE+_A=+—HI*F For the year ended 31st December 2009, the
B REEGFSEHTHRERETHRRE Group recorded imputed interest expenses
B2 S F B X 491,934,000 7T © amounted to approximately HK$1,934,000 in
respect of the China Star Investment Convertible
Notes.

(c) RAFE AEBEABEEZEEGR (c) During the year, the Group entered into the
REIREMBAR ([FREEFSE]) following transactions with China Star Film Group
HIVAIEE R Limited and its subsidiaries (the “China Star Film

Group”):
—EENE —EENEF
2009 2008
TERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
REME Nature of transactions
HEMEMMB AT T Loss on disposal of two subsidiaries
FEEETEE BB to China Star Film Group 457 -
REEWATRRER 2 Imputed interest income from
BRI EWA convertible notes receivable 2,488 40

His - Notes:

AEREE AAEBEAREESYEE HRAESE - M Mr. Heung Wah Keung is a common director of the Group and

HMAARIPHEESTEE H1T7TEE -2 —F China Star Film Group. Mr. Heung Wah Keung resigned as an

F—A-+—BiEER- executive director of China Star Film Group with effect from

21st January 2010.
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50. EABEALRS (& 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(d) RAREE  AEFEBRENB ARG T (d) During the year, the Group entered into the
5 following transactions with its associates:

—ETNF
2008
FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
REME Nature of transactions
BENRENETER Entertainment and staff
&M messing paid 4,876 -
REREE AR Z Management fee income
EEEBERA from former associates 4,430 4,860
HeBRAREBEEQNHE Rental income and utilities fee
EXEH reimbursement 1,306 -
REATBRRERECHEE Imputed interest income from
F B U A convertible notes 2,488 40
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50. EAEEALTRE (& 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(e)

RZEENFRA+T=R KRARIZZE
B /& 2 BChina Star Entertainment (BVI)
LimitedE2Glenstone Investments Limited
(TGlenstone N FIS— 1 EE & - LB
% X {8330,567,000/% 7T H ECSLZ & &6
BETRA(CSLEEEIA]) - CSLz*x
ZEEDTEERE 258,360,612/ %
- ERGEBHTRERESBITRE
229.90% : 109,090,9080% % & % 1 88 %
AR LT (RE]) KD - HEREBEB
HSRE B BITIRAR 28.68% ¢+ JA R EWR
7 K¢ % /51,000,000% T2 AT R Z
1 o Glenstone VA AR ZEERE - I
HERARZ T BEmIEHO0% e KB M
EREEERRBI0%IER BREAR
AZHITEERFERR) -CSLEES
EWR R E MRS 4AR I 2 BER
5o

BIUFATEEHR  CSLEEFRIIR
—REEGF FAAARZMaE A
RARBZBREXRBBETFIL - CSLH
EEEHMBYURRR -_ZZNFLA+—
Bt YERZZENFNATNER
B o

RZEZEEF+AZ+=H ' KAAQF
FEWMBARBEWBEI Y —E
EXBEREESBE X ERREMost
Famous Enterprises Limited® ¥ —%&
%196,000,000& T2 EREE - RIER
SR LR FEIAAZRT I 2 BEER
S o BHRRMEERR 28 RHIERAR
ST BB=F o
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(e)

On 13th May 2008, the Company’s wholly
owned subsidiary, China Star Entertainment
(BVI) Limited entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Glenstone Investments Limited
(“Glenstone”) to dispose the entire issued
share capital of CSL for a cash consideration
of HK$330,567,000 (the “CSL Disposal”’). CSL’s
major assets are the 58,360,612 share of China
Star Investment, representing 29.90% of the
issue share capital of China Star Investment
at date of agreement; 109,090,908 shares in
Brilliant Arts Multi-Media Holdings Limited
(“Brilliant Arts”), representing approximately
8.68% of the issued share capital of Brilliant
Arts at date of agreement; and a convertible
notes receivable from Brilliant Arts with principal
face value of HK$1,000,000. Glenstone is a
substantial shareholder of the Company and
is beneficially owned as to 60% by Ms. Chen
Ming Yin, Tiffany and as to 40% by Mr. Heung
Wah Keung who are both the executive directors
and substantial shareholders of the Company.
The CSL Disposal is regarded as a connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors confirm
that the CSL Disposal is on normal commercial
terms, in the interest of the Company and not in
the ordinary course of the Company’s business.
The CSL Disposal was approved by independent
shareholders on 11th July 2008 and had
completed on 18th August 2008.

On 23rd October 2007, Hotel LKF, a non wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
a loan agreement to grant a loan facility of up
to HK$196,000,000 to Most Famous Enterprises
Limited, a substantial shareholder of Hotel LKF.
The transaction is regarded as a connected
transaction pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The loan facility is unsecured,
interest free and for a term not exceeding three
years commencing from the drawdown date.
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50. EABEATRE (& 50. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(f) (&)

RABBYIERTEEER AR RBER
S%8 WHERAARAEEK BB
Vo BRREVIE—REEKR EFE
RABIRADRBLIBRBR 2 BB - =2
BRGTHBYURRER-_ZZT+HE+=A
“HitE TR=ZFTT+HE+-_A=HIE
EYFX 78 196,000,000 7T °

RZZEZAFE+_A=+—8 REEX
MEERTEHAEEERRASTET (=
T T\ 4 : 183,750,000/ 7T) °

(99 HEZZTZNFF+ZA=+—HEKZZTZT
NFE+ZAZ+—BLEFE  REGLE
FBRBA R LA IRITIR R B A TR - LAIE
REAEEESZRITER - NEBRB R
HIXHRER-

(hy FEEHEAEB
M1 BRE  TEERAEME (B
BXNTARRIESERETRRFEREZ

()

(Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the
Company confirmed that the transaction is not
on normal commercial terms as it is interest free
not in the ordinary course of the Company’s
business but in the interests of the Company and
the independent shareholders of the Company
as a whole. The transaction was approved by
the independent shareholders on 3rd December
2007 and amount of HK$196,000,000 was drawn
on 3rd December 2007.

As at 31st December 2009, the outstanding loan
granted according to the loan agreement was nil
(2008: HK$183,750,000).

For the year ended 31st December 2009 and
31st December 2008, Mr. Heung Wah Keung and
Ms. Chen Ming Yin, Tiffany provided personal
guarantees to banks to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group. No fee was paid to them
by the Group.

Key management personnel
Compensation for key management personnel,
including amount paid to the Company’s

KXBE)WT : directors and certain of the highest paid
employees, as disclosed in note 15, is as follow:

—zzhs PEEELIC

2009 2008

FTER FAT

HK$’000 HK$ 000

Fre REAER Salaries and other allowances 8,398 7,473
R ET B 5K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 72 68
AR 3 15 2 5RIR Share-based payment 3,024 2,267
11,494 9,808
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5. FEME QA TFHIE 51.

TRV EZRRIEVEAEEXEREEL
AREMBELR - BERR - 2 EMHEAF
ZEMERFERBNITE

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES

The following table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, results in particulars of excessive length.

RARMEE BRTR
i/ RIER/ Fifs RIRA /MR BERE/
WEADEH ERREEA #E ReER EXEELA HfEx  TEER
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
Btk
%
Best Combo Limited Bal7a KBRAHE Liak 100 IREEIZET  RERR
Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary ZBH  Investment holding

Best Mind AL RERUHS
International Inc. Incorporated British Virgin Islands
(Witb)
(Note b)
Business First Limited Rala KBRAHE

Incorporated British Virgin Islands

China Star Entertainment sk RBRIEE

(BVI) Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands
RE R REZR FEER Bl

BRARE Incorporated ~ Hong Kong
China Star Entertainment

Holding Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2009 3R

1 share of US$1

Lidk 100 100RERAE RENBBVERER
Ordinary (ESWA () WEET 2 5

100 shares of  Investing in operations
US$1 which receive profit
each streams from the

gaming promotion
business

LRk 100 IREEIXT  HERRENRE
Ordinary ZF&f Holding of cable right
1 share of US$1

LRk 100 200REREE REER
Ordinary 1ET2BA  Investment holding
200 shares of
US$1 each

Liak 100 JREREE  REER
Ordinary 1BT2EBR  Investment holding
21,000,000/
BREBIAT
ERZRETR
(Wite)
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
and 1,000,000
deferred
non-voting
shares of
HK$1 each
(Note ¢)
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51. TEME L TS (L& 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

FARMEE BRTR
Zh/RIBxR/ fits BORE/2R BRBE/
WEAREH ERREEA #E ReER EXEELS dMER  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
Bt
%
REEEBRTERLA Bl E TRk 100 100,000  EFREEEEE
China Star HK Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary GRAEIET B
Distribution Limited L@k Distribution of motion
100,000 pictures and television
ordinary shares drama series
of HK$1 each
PEEEBREERAR ML Eh LBk 100 10000008  BERERTR
China Star HK Entertainment Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary BREEIAL REBR
Company Limited LER  Distribution of video
1,000,000 rights and
ordinary shares investment holding
of HK$1 each
China Star International Bl EERNES Liak 100 8001k  EPREREER
Distribution Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary FRAEBIET E55]
(Hiita) ZM&f  Distribution of motion
(note a) 8,001 shares of pictures and
US$1 each television drama
series
EEFESFRERAR iAo A LRk 100 15,0000  REAEERER
China Star Laser Disc Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary SRER REER
Company Limited 100%7T 2 E@®BE  Provision of
15,000 ordinary management
shares of services and
HK$100 each investment holding
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5. TEMBATEE (& 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FARMEE BRTR
Zh/RIBR/ fits RORA/2R BRBE/
WEAREH ERREEA #E ReER EXEELA dMEEx  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
Bt
%
HEEFZRERAR paaifzrAvd EA LER 100 M HEEIRE
China Star Pictures Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary BREBVET  Holding of film
Limited LEBR rights
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
MEERERBERAT B4 e LRk 100 M RESTRIRUERBY
China Star Production Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary BRAEIAT REEENEFNA=TH
Services Limited Lk ERER
2 ordinary  Provision of film post-
shares of production services
HK$1 each and ceased business

on 30th April 2009

China Star Trademark Al EBANEE Liak 100 REEIET  HEARRRE
Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary I Holding of trademark
1 share of and copyrights
US$1
China Star Worldwide Al Ak i D 100 W00RER  BYREREEH
Distribution B.V. Incorporated Netherlands Ordinary AE100RHE E6]
(Hiita) ZE@ER  Distribution of motion
(note a) 400 ordinary pictures and
shares of television drama
Dutch Guilders series
100 each
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51, TEMREATRE (£ 51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
FARMEE BRTR
i/ RIER Fits RTRA/ MR BERE/
WEARER ERREEA #E ReER EXEELA dER  TEXH
Proportion
of nominal Issued and
value of issued fully paid
Form of Country/place of capital/registered share capital/
business incorporation/ Class of capital held registered
Name of subsidiary structure formation shares held by the Company capital  Principal activities
Btk
%
BAERREERAA Ealav el LaER 50 100,000 RERESEERS
(i) Incorporated ~ Macau Ordinary BREETEM®  Provision of casino
Classic Management & LBk management
Services Company Limited 100,000 service
(note b) ordinary shares

of MOP 1 each

Exceptional Gain B3l LBRLHE Lidk 100 REE  HREER
Profits Limited Incorporated British Virgin Islands Ordinary 1EZLZBHB  Investment holding
1 share of
US$1
RPBESREEERAR BaliAv il LiEk 50 250,000  WEFIREEERS
(BI7EKingsway Hotel Incorporated ~ Macau Ordinary SHRAETRME RNERE
Limited) ZEBR Provision of hotel
(Hibkd) 250,000 services in Macau and
Hotel Lan Kwai Fong ordinary shares property investment
(Macau) Limited (formerly of MOP 1 each

known as Kingsway
Hotel Limited)

(notes b & d)
BRERARAR Bl E TRk 100 IREEIET  EPEUE
Gold Choice International Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary ZEBK  Fim production
Limited 1 ordinary share
of HK$1
RR(FR)ERAA A ML A Lak 100 MERAE HENE
Newrich (H.K.) Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary 1T EBR  Property holding
2 ordinary
shares of
HK$1 each
—BAFEFARLA ML A el 100 3,000,000 — EBEEAF
One Hundred Years of Incorporated ~~ Hong Kong Ordinary BEAENET  Film production
Film Company Limited LERR
3,000,000
ordinary shares
of HK$1 each
BRREERLE Bl E TRk 100 MRBREE  BEETR
S & W Entertainment Incorporated ~ Hong Kong Ordinary BT BBk EREEE
Limited 2 ordinary  Production of motion
shares of pictures and television
HK$1 each drama series
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51, TEMBLARFRE (&

Mt -

ERREEE -

ERFIEEET -

BERZREERNERLERENDZZAAMR
BBUZLABRRAGZESE HEZEX
SYEGLREZEN HEBERBTIATEA
DI ©

RBFIBEEDEEBRRABFE9RFEL
—CRPIBESEERRARRRERBKE
ARBZBREREEERTE - ALt - RPIWH
DBEERARILEERNBARKEEER
BERATPRER/AARZMBAF

Best Combo Limited * Best Mind International
Inc. » China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited &
China Star Worldwide Distribution B.V.E1 A A
BERER MAEHEMMEBARYBAERDAME

A -

BRAARAEN MBRRAZIBRLXNERE

& o

P MY B A A8 B SR F R B R R
[ 2 &5 75
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51.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Operating internationally.

(b) Operating in Macau.

(c) The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no

rights to dividends nor receive notice of nor to attend
or vote at any general meeting of the company nor to

participate in any distribution on winding up.

(d) One of the shareholder of Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau)
Limited who holding 49% voting power has agreed
to follow the voting and management decision of the
Company. Therefore, Hotel Lan Kwai Fong (Macau)
Limited and its direct subsidiary, Classic Management
& Services Company Limited is considered as a

subsidiary of the Company.

Best Combo Limited, Best Mind International Inc.,
China Star Entertainment (BVI) Limited and China Star
Worldwide Distribution B.V. are directly held by the
Company. All other subsidiaries are indirectly held by
the Company.

Except otherwise stated, the principal place of
operation of the subsidiaries is Hong Kong.

None of the subsidiaries had debt securities

outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.
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53.

52. B N\ TS 52. PARTICULARS OF ASSOCIATES
TREHAEEBEE QT - The following table lists the associates of the Group.
REBEfE
BRfTRE/ BEAR
i/ RIER/ HfEE BERE/
1 UNGES ES 2357 W FrE R ER HELH ERER TEER
Proportion
of nominal
value of issued Issued and
Form of Country/place of capital/registered fully paid
business incorporation/ Class of capital held share capital/
Name of associate structure formation shares held by the Group registered capital Principal activities
Bt
%
HEARDF" iz A Lk 245 30,0001 RESRES
Merit Noble Incorporated Macau Ordinary BEAE100RME  Provision of catering
Company Limited* LERR services
30,000 ordinary shares
of MOP1.00 each
ARERRA Baliav ik LRk 500 1RBREET00ET RERR
Noble Million Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary LEBR Investment holding
1 ordinary shares
of HK$1.00 each
* TERPISEETS o * Operating in Macau.
HEBRER 53. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) RZZE—ZFZF—AWB A2 KRR (a)

174

BRI —HOREHZ B AAF
EEBRHRERERETULRRAER
NEEBKRGERAEERREEBER0 145
JT 7R #540,000,000% &N 2~ Bl $r & 17 ©
540,000,000 Fr M ER =T —TF =
A+—ARBER-_Z—TE -/ N\BET
ZARTBREFINAERTARAES
2R RIS BT - TS RURFEL
75,400,000/ JT i B EAR SR B AR P 2 1%
EHARAEE, —REEES -

el

On 4th January 2010, the Company entered
into a subscription agreement with a subscriber
whereby the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue and the subscriber
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
540,000,000 new shares of the Company at
the subscription price of HK$0.14 per share.
540,000,000 new shares were allotted and
issued on 11th February 2010 under a specific
mandate granted to the directors of the
Company at a special general meeting of the
Company held on 8th February 2010. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$75,400,000 were
intended to be used for the Group’s investment
projects in Macau and general working capital of
the Group.
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53. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (Continued)

53. KERAREE (&)

(b)

RZT—ZTF—A+B ARRAREER
—EE_FRA-T AR ERE
gE-aREAMEE =T ——F— A
ANBRITEESRASE TRER AL
([E& AL B 1H129,645,00017 i B 4 -
NREARR B EREEC.01VE T E@R -

R-E—TEMA-_+XB FEBRET
BE  ARRESHFIREBARAAME
FIRE AT 26 ERREEZEITAAR
iR ((RBREE]D UEEGERRRE
BRAQAR DMz 2 AEHEARMK
MAEE—ORRER 2EE  UYHR
BETRHMNIRM0.193F T (AT FHRAE) R
BEARRRFRG -

54. #LEMBEHRE
ABERER - E—ZTFNA -+ \HEEES
bt R B % o
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(b)

On 7th January 2010, the Company granted
129,645,000 share options to subscribe for
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
to individuals (the “Grantees”) under its share
option scheme adopted on 27 May 2002 at an
exercise price of HK$0.18 per share from the
date of grant to 6th January 2011.

On 26th April 2010, the directors of the Company
proposed, subject to the satisfaction of certain
conditions, to make the proposed bonus issue
of warrants (“Warrants”) by the Company to
subscribe for new shares of the Company at an
initial subscription price of HK$0.193 per new
share (subject to adjustment) to the qualifying
shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on the basis of one Warrant
for every five shares held on the record date as
announced by the Company.

54. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26th April 2010.
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BE+-A=+—-BLEE

For the year ended 31st December

= LB\ —ET)\F —TE+F —TTREFE —TERF
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FET FET FET FET FET
LGOI HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
E4 Results
S Turnover 543,429 227,747 78,351 152,777 92,234
B AR (EB) Profit/(loss) before taxation 167,243 63,149  (101,856) 38,769 (20,889)
I (X)) /R Taxation (charge)/credit (2,848) 2,441 (1,951) (1,918) (124)
FERN (HE) Profit/(loss) for the year 164,395 65,590  (103,807) 36,851 (21,013)
AT AL FE(L - Attributable to:
ViNYNETEZZ =N Owners of
the Company 204,388 90,604 (92,547) 36,880 (20,961)
IR Non-controlling interests (39,993) (25,014) (11,260) (29) (52)
164,395 65,590  (103,807) 36,851 (21,013)
EERERE Assets and liabilities
R+=—BA=+—8
As at 31st December
= LB\ TS \F —TE+F —TEREFE —TERF
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
FET FET FET FET FET
CLGHONE  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$ 000
EERE Total assets 3,190,275 2,605,167 2,307,603 789,037 743,396
afERE Total liabilities (870,882)  (902,192) (1,132,142) (92,828)  (144,408)
2,319,393 1,702,975 1,175,461 696,209 598,988
RARIHA NELER Equity attributable to
owners of the Company 2,075,122 1,418,711 1,174,133 694,827 597,556
FEE MR Non-controlling interests 244,271 284,264 1,328 1,382 1,432
2,319,393 1,702,975 1,175,461 696,209 598,988
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